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Providing life-changing and transformative experiences for our students is core to our Being Westminster
strategy - experiences that enable our students to progress successfully, instilled with entrepreneurial vision
and ethical qualities, realising their ambitions and potential. All making positive contributions to businesses,
industries and communities around the globe in their chosen fields of work or further study.

Over the past financial yéar our ernphasis has been on building further the quality of the unique student
experience we offer and the outcomes that follow. This work has permeated every strand of our operations and
considerations. .

Malntalnlng -our impact on social moblllty is at the centre of our approach and we contlnue to make great

strides. We.are ranked second in England for social mobility (Institute for Fiscal Studies and the Sutton Trust
2021). Through Being Westminster, we are becoming established as a source and driver for new and different .
thinking and practice, open to new possibilities that- make a difference for our students, graduates and the|r
communltles locally and globally

In September 2023 we were very proud to receive a Silver award in the Teaching Excellence Framework (TEF)
recognising our student experience and student outcomes as very high quality. Our submission, led by Deputy
Vice-Chancellor (Educat|on) Dr-Sal Jarvis and Deputy Registrar (Quality and Standards), Emma Standen, and
" supported by a team of senior colleagues drawn from academic and professional services, reflects our

~ commitment to and success-in social mobility and the strides we have made in delivering and achieving very .
high-quality experiences and outcomes for our students: Our authentic, practice-based, personalised approach
to education and employability is enabling our graduates to succeed and bring a different dimension as they
progress as global citizens. . .

Being Westmlnster has transformed the way we work together and, we are making excellent progress in our
four key objectives: education; research and knowledge exchange; employability; and global engagement.

Connected and enterprising, we are bringing real world experiences to our campuses through our focus on
authentic learning and our partnerships and links with business and industry. We offer a unique proposmon as
one of the most internationally diverse universities in the UK.:

Forging links with those who share our values and can help us to enhance our impact is so important. We were
delighted to welcome in February this year our new Chancellor, Natalie Campbell MBE. Natalie’s experience,
energy and values fit so well with our own. As a successful entrepreneur with connections to so many industries
and enterprises, Natalie has launched the Chancellor’s Circle, a.new community of organisations offering -
employability opportunities that make a transformational dlfference to the lives of our Westminster students and

graduates.

Another critical step in supporting our students is our visionary enterprise and employability centre at 29
Marylebone Road. This year we secured a £5.8 million Office for Students (OfS) grant to support the
development and gained full planning consent - enabling us to progress our plans for this unique learning
space. The new centre will be a place for connecting minds and i |nsp|nng futures, leading our uniquely brilliant
Westminster students to positive graduate outcomes through immersion in live prolects with our business and
industry partners and professional bodies who accredit our courses.

Our student population continues to grow and we are in a robust financial position. With.our global outlook,

. high-quality delivery and reputation we are a top study choice in London, attracting students from more than

160 countries. In this financial year our University recorded the fourth highest growth in acceptances in
England. Our Westminster brand is visible and credible, and a highly appealing place to be and study.

Our student community is wonderfully active, with more than 10,000 students actively participating in our.
Students” Union’s clubs and societies over the year. Our Dragons sports teams have real energy and
widespread participation, with seven of our nine first teams winning promotion-in their respective ieagues this
year. Our clubs and societies provide very-good mechanisms for our students to'make friends, 'share interests,
come onto campus and feel a strong sense of belonging. This, in turn, supports better educational outcomes.

Our research continues to make societal impact.'BuiIding oh.our pioneering past as London’s first polyteéhnic,
through our research communities - highly ranked for impact in the latest Research Framework Exercise (REF)
- our colleagues, students, thinkers and creators are making a difference in our four priority areas of arts,
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communication and cultures; dlver5|ty and mcluswn health innovation and weIIbemg and sustainable cities and ’,
the urban enwronment .

Through Being Westminster, we contihuetO'p‘ush boundaries and break barriers, delivering an exceptional
experience for our inclusive global community, in line with our mission as we help students and colleagues from
different backgrounds fulfil their potential and contribute to a more sustainable, equitable and healthy society.

b (L

Professor Péter Bohfield OBE
Vice-Chancellor and President
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UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER ‘
Statement from our Chair to the Court of Governors

It gives me great pleasure to present to you the University of Westminster's Annual Report for 2022/23, which
outlines the first year of delivery of our refreshed Unrversrty Strategy Being Westminster 2022-29. '

During 2022/23, governance effectiveness has been a strong focus for the Court of Governors. As a governing

body we want to echo the aspirations of Being Westminster by daring to be bold and delivering an exceptional

experience for our governors, colleagues, students and all who engage with us. In October 2022 we received

* an independent report on our governance effectiveness, which concluded that our governance is high quality,

_demonstrating many strengths, and that our members have a passion for education and a commitment to the
University’s key priorities — inclusion, wellbeing and sustainable development. We decided to take things further B
by supplementing the review with our own explorations to identify ways in which we can better align our
structures and practice with the University’s priorities.snd values. In July 2023, the Court approved an ambitious
implementation-plan that we believe will enable us to play our part in shaping the agenda for the University —
and for governance — by 2029. As part of our ongoing commitment to maintaining diversity in the membershlp
of the Court, we conducted a very successful recruitment process with inclusion at its heart and are reaIIy

- excited to welcome three new members of the Courtiin 2023/24 :

Building on our approval of Being Westminster 2022-2029 in March 2022, we have approved two enabling
“strategies this year — our People Strategy ‘Being Me, Being Westminster’ in May 2023 and our Estates Strategy
in July 2023 - and we look forward to our refreshed Digital Westminster Strategy early'in 2023/24. Our proactive
engagement with the work of Academic Council continued with pre-Court briefings on Graduate Outcomes and -

employability, and academic governance - and with governor attendance as observers at Academic Council
meetings. At our meeting in July 2023, we received the refréshed Education Strategy and a new integrated
Research and Knowledge Exchangé Strategy, both of which'were approved by Academic Council in June 2023.

At the start of 2023, Westminster and other higher education institutions, made our latest submission to the
OfS’s Teaching Excellence Framework exercise. In March 2023, the Court reviewed the context statement
submitted to the OfS and discussed the lessons learned through the drafting process. We have much to be
proud of - in our performance against the 17 UN Sustainable Development Goals, our very high-quality
outcomes for continuation and completion, and our contribution to social mobility for our students. The diversity
of our student body means that our articulation of and support for learning gain reflects the lived experience of
applicants and students. We recognise, and build on, the resources, strengths and capabilities that our student
body brings: articulating disciplinary expertise, employability and. social responsibility as graduate attributes. We
will monitor the implementation of our Education Strategy 2023-2029, which will drive the University to develop

" experiences and environments that enable our students to develop these attributes. .

In February 2023, | was delighted to be a part of the inauguration of our new Chancellor - social entrepreneur
and CEO Natalie Campbell MBE: Natalie has brought a wealth of experience in business development, digital ,
and social innovation, and philanthropy, as well as her passion for sustainable development and inclusivity.
Launched at her inauguration event, the Chancellor’s Circle is an exclusive community of organisations who will
offer employability opportunities exclusively to Westminster students. | am looking forward to worklng with
Natalie on this and other initiatives during her tenure. :

The partnership between the Court and UWSU (the UnlverS|ty of Westmlnster Students’ Union) continues to be
strong, and our thanks go to the 2022/23 Sabbatical team, led by former student governor and UWSU President
Zahra Butt. We warmly welcome newly appointed student governor and UWSU President Taruna Bangia and
are pleased to continue working with student governor and re-elected UWSU Vice-President (Undergraduate
Education) Nandini Aggarwal in 2023/24.

As ever, with our new Chancellor and many of the other Governors, | have attended a number of graduation
ceremonies this year. What inspirational and joyous events they are. It is an honour to witness the extraordinary
achievements of our students as they celebrate with friends and loved ones. It's a privilege be able to thank our
fantastic academic and professional colleagues for the care, commitment and support they offer our students as
they recelve a life changlng education.

Finally, | would like to extend my heartfelt thanks to our outstanding team-of Governors, committee members
and University Executive Board members whose dedication to our students and colleagues, and shared
commitment to our values is unfailing. Working in close. partnership with the Vice-Chancelior | look forward to
overseeing the implementation of our new academic and enabling strategies and with my fellow governors to
delivering hrgh quality, inclusive governance in support of our wonderful University.

Professor Lynne Berry CBE

- Chair of the Court of Govemors and Pro Chancellor . QM
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~ ABOUT THE UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER

n

Who we are

- We, the- Umversrty of Westminster, are a diverse and dynamic mternatlonal education |nst|tut|on situated i in the
heart of London with more than 20,000 students from 160 different natrons

‘We have our origins as London’s first polytechnlc founded in 1838 to educate the working people of London.
Since then, we have developed into an institution that combines both metropolitan and cosmopolitan '
dimensions, and which is closely involved in business, professional and academic life within London, as well as
overseas. We have become known for the many ways in which we help our students to realise their full-
potential, regardless of background. Many of our achievements are ground- breakmg yet we are also
compassionate and caring. :

As a place to study or.to work, we strive to strengthen our reputation as a welcoming and inclusive organisation.
We promote a dynamic synergy between our Colleges: Design, Creative and Digital Industries; Liberal Arts and
Sciences; and the Westminster Business School. Our teaching is practical, relevant, and contemporary. Our
research has impact in the world; is internationally recognised and informs our teaching. ’ ,

The University of Westminster is incorporated under the Compames Act as a charity and company limited by -
guarantee and not having any share capital. The University is also an exempt charity in accordance with the
Charities Act:

The objects for which the University is established are recorded in the Articles of Association and reproduced in
the Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Controls.

The Charity’s beneficiaries, as reflected in the objects, are the students enrolled at the University and the public
at large who stand to benefit through the impact of our teaching, research, and enterprise activity.

CELEBRATING SUCCESS

OUR PRIORITIES .
Inclusion

Our Black Lives Matter Commitments — three years on

In June 2023 we reflected on and celebrated the progress made since.the publication of our 15 Black Lives -
Matter Commitments in June 2020. The Commitments were designed to further strengthen the University’s
resolve with regard to anti-racist practice.

Professor Shirley Thompson’s Women of the Windrush opera tours the UK marking the 75th
Anniversary of the HMT Empire Windrush’s arrival in England.

The opera, from Professor Shirley J. Thompson's groundbreaking series, Heroines of Opera, portrays
inspirational narratives from the lives of a variety of women settlers who travelled to the UK from the West
Indies from the late 1940s through to the early 1970s:

The Black Music Research Unit hosted an event on Prostate Cancer among Black Musicians. The event
was held to raise awareness of the prevalence.of the cancer amongst black musrcnans and to assess risks for
the disease.

Our Active Travel Academy published the first research into the cycling expene‘nces of women of
colour. The research shows that the interplay. of race and gender is a key factor; and stereotypes and lack of
representatlon couId reinforce low cycling rates.

We held our second annual Challenging Racisms in Higher Education and Beyond conference. The
2023 event featured a diverse range of speakers and panel discussions aimed at exploring and challenging
various forms of ramsm present within academia and wider somety



UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER
Strategic report '

- Our academic colleagues are contributing to a new study on inclusion and academic integrity. The }
Quality Assurance Agency (QAA) funded study aims to engage students inclusively in learning and developing
academic integrity skills. The project, titled The Improvement of Student Learning by Linking .
Inclusion/Accessibility and Academic Integrity, is the result of a 15-month-long collaboration between lead
. researchers at Oxford Brookes University, the University of Westminster, and colleagues based at the

- Bloomsbury Institute and University of Southampton. Stephen Bunbury, Senior Lecturer in Law, Dr Sylvie

Bacquet, Principal Lecturer in Law, and Dr Claire Robertson, Senior Lecturer in Nutrition and Public Health,

formed the Westminster team of researchers. . '

We celebrated inclusive theatre at the launch of Soho Poly: Inspiring Future Generations. The project,
which was made possible by a grant of £88,300 from the National Lottery Heritage Fund, has enabled
Westminster to develop and deliver outreach activities to build new audiences and increase engagement
around the restoration of the historic Soho Poly Theatre, located in the basement of Westminster's Riding

- House Street building. The event celebrated inclusive theatre with a gala screening of the film ‘Sus at Regent
Street Cinema. . ‘

We celebrated LGBT+ History Month 2023 with a rich- programme of events. :
From the largest student LGBT+ event in Europe to a-discussion at the University’s Fyvie HaII about why a | '
London AIDS memorial matters, Westminster offered an eclectlc and varied programme of events in support of
LGBT+ History Month throughout February.

Sustainability

Our students learnt how to farm vegetables from our new hydroponic wall installed at Marylebone
Campus. With the help of the urban farming company Square Mile Farms and our Architecture + Cities Climate.
Action Task Force (ArCCAT), student representatives have been learning how to look after the. hydroponrc wall
which was mstalled at Westmrnsters Marylebone Campus in 2021. .

Breakthroughs from our Ioglstlcs and freight transport research group could srgnrflcantly cut carbon
emissions. The Centre for Sustainable Road Freight (CSRF), which the University is a partner member of, has
produced ground-breaking research and policy proposals to help put the road freight sector on a zero-carbon
trajectory. The CSRF is a collaboration betwéen the University of Cambridge, Heriot-Watt University and the
University of Westminster, and works closely with leading road hauliers and companies as well as industry and
government groups. The Westminster team focuses on policy advice at regional, national and international
levels. They are working on a project aimed at identifying the main challenges faced by small and medium road
freight transport companres to develop tools and gurdance specifically designed for small, and medium-sized
enterprrses

Our students’ artwork was the basis for the Sustainable Planet Exhibition in King’s Cross.

Following a competition to find ten pieces of student work reflecting inspired by Earth Day, Westminster
students’ artworks were on display in April 2023 in King's Cross. The pieces speak to three of this year's Earth
Day themes: Plant Trees, End Plastics and Sustainable Fashion. They aliso reflect a range of art forms,
including painting, photography fashion design and poetry. The project was funded by the Quintin Hogg Trust.

The Westminster Green Fund supported more projects this academlc year.

The Green Fund, established by the Centre for Education and Teaching Innovation (CETI) and

the Sustainability Team in 2021 provides grants of up to £5,000 to students on all courses for short-term co- .
created sustainability projects.

This.year the projects, which completed in June explored topics including: planet-friendly denim; a sustainable
fashion hub in Harrow; a smart and sustainable weather station; furniture design in co|laborat|on with Brazilian
social enterprise Pedra Furada Transformation Workshop agreen approach to microbial identification,
rainwater harvesting and robotic recycling.

Our students presented at the London Student Sustainability Conference’

The student-led Conference offered a platform to London-based students from ten universities to showcase
their UN Sustainable Development Goals-related work and collaborate with one another. Logistics and Supply
Chain Management MSc students Sarala Ireddy and Trinh Viet Thi presentéd Sustainability: A Retail Versus
Freight Perspective which explored the efforts two major UK-based companies, Tesco and DHL, in-the retail
and freight industries respectively, have undertaken to implement sustainable business practices. '

They showed the audience the similarity and differences between the two companies’ approaches and
evaluated how: closely their sustainable busmess practices alrgned to the UN'’s Sustainable Development
Goals :

5.
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The University of Westmlnster was one of 20 signatories to the London ngher Sustainability Pledge. v
The pledge represented universities who have committed to building upon the sustainability work to reduce the . *
environmental impact of higher education institutions, and to address the challenges of the climate emergency.

Westminster students and colleagues re-green Marylebone Campus )

The Sensory Bench Project has created new green spaces for the University community in Central

London. Rebecca Weller and Christy Prothero, who studied Architecture. BA Honours at Westminster, have
created palleted benches from scaffolding boards, that incorporate flower beds, in the rear podium of
Marylebone. The project was supported by Maria Kramer, Senior Lecturer in Architecture and Cities. The

- benches encourage social mteractlons on campus, |mprovmg the experiences of colleagues, students and
visitors.

The Sensory Bench Project was part of the Green Fund initiative. lt is also part of the Live Design Practice,
which includes the community hub live prototype, on the same podium at Marylebone Campus

Wel/be/ng

We expanded our support for care leavers. The Dr Maud Tyler Final Year Care Leaver Scholarship was
- renewed for a further three years, extending the scholarship to provide maintenance grants to six deserving
care leavers entering their final academic year in September 2023, 2024 and 2025. The Sir Simon Milton
Foundation also awarded £30,000 to support 15-University of Westminster final-year care leaver -
undergraduates.

Music brought back to Regent Street through a series of community concerts in Fyvie Hall providing
access to music for all. From April to July 2023, Westminster hosted a free monthly public concert series in
the historic Fyvie Hall to reignite the University’s concert life and provide access to live music for all. Through
the series, which consisted of three organ concerts and one early music ensemble, audiences were able to

. come together to enjoy music in the heart of London. o

In. 2022/23 we supported colleagues and students with the introduction of free breakfasts and
subsidised hot and cold meals across our campuses and in partnership with the University of
Westminster Students Union (UWSU[ we started and continue to provide free sanitary products across
all campuses. )

The new socral learning space at Marylebone Campus was completed. The development is the result of
cooperation between the University of Westminster's Student Union (UWSU), Westminster School of
Architecture + Cities, Andy Pitchford, the Head of CETI, and marketing agency Nina & Co.

~ The project follows the completion of two extensive pieces of student research by Nina & Co. across all four

campuses to support the UWSU’s Strategic Plan to improve the student experience. The research aimed to
learn more about the needs and wants of students, particularly around social Iearnlng spaces and food and
drink.

A new podcast, Blabla Time, by Westminster’s Dr Sandra Gaundenzi launched to help students tackle
their issues in an innovative way. The podcast has been made to address the little and big challenges of
student life. It invites students tolisten to their internal ‘blabla’ and, hopefully; learn from it - mixing practical
advice, coaching exerC|ses and visualisations tailor-made to students

As part of our commitment to wellbeing support we were proud to renew our partnership with Student . '
Minds in 2022/23 to create cultural change as part of the University Mental Health Charter programme.

In 2022 we developed and launched free critical thinking course for schools and colleges. Designed to

" alleviate some pressure from school teachers preparing post-16 pupils for higher education across the UK and.
around the world we built an online short course on critical thinking and research skills. Developed in -
partnership with Future Learn, the course was designed in.response to teachers reporting a need for materlals
to support learners with developing the essential skills of critical thinking and research. -

Artworks by our students were installed in Northwick Park Hospital to create a positive and welcoming
atmosphere. The artwork, installed in the corridor, conference room and patient waiting area of the Research
and Development Department improves the wellbeing of all those working and visiting in the hospital.
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We launched new Sanctuary Scholarships which aim to help displaced students enter UK higher
education. The scholarships were developed in recognition of the impact of ongoing conflict and political
upheaval around the globe on the livelihoods and opportunities for displaced people.

OUR OBJECTIVES
Employability

Westminster Working Cultures UK won a Circle of Excellence Award from the Council for Advancement
and Support of Education (CASE). In June 2023, Westminster Working Cultures (WWC) UK was awarded
the Gold award in the category of Alumni Relations Pivot in this year's CASE Circle of Excellence Awards.
CASE’s annual Circle of Excellence Awards recognise exceptional work in advancement services, alumni
relations, communications, fundraising, and marketing. Awards are given to creative and inspiring projects that
impact institutions and their communities.-

Planning permission was granted allowing us to progress plans for our new inclusive centre for
employability and enterprise at 29 Marylebone Road. '

Keeping sustainability at the heart of the plans, the building will be retrofitted and refurbished to.create a new
hub for enterprise and industry. When complete, the centre will feature creative spaces to.support collaboration
and engagement with local businesses as well as event and exhibition spaces to'showcase student enterprise
and achievements. It will also host an array of state-of-the-art training facilities, including a digital studio and
maker space.

Future Ready Mentoring shortlisted for Times Higher Education Award for Outstanding Support for
Students. Future Ready Mentoring is one of the flagship programmes within the University's Employability
strategy. Designed as an inclusive programme with a range of opportunities to support mentors and mentees
from every background, industry and career level, Future Ready Mentoring connects our students with
employers for-graduate career success. Future Ready Mentoring has seen a substantial expansion, from
supporting just over 500 mentoring relationships in the 2018-2019 academic year to over 1000 relationships just
two years later. ' .

Our refurbished Gallery Coffee Shop became a shopfront for student artwork. In addition to being the only
_ independent artisan café on Regent Street, student artworks are on display for customers and passers-by and
can be bought through a dedicated online store.

Westminster was awarded #1 in the UK University and Educator Awards for student employability
initiatives. The awards feature the UK's top 30 universities for work-based learning. Westminster achieved an
overall 91.8 score and has been recognised for the Work-Based and Placement Learning Project (WBPL), the
University-Wide Electives, and the Westminster Employability Awards.

Our new Chancellor Natalie Campbell MBE launched the Chancellor’s Circle, a new network to bring
students and business together. Natalie Campbell MBE was officially installed as the Chancellor of the
University of Westminster on Friday 10 February in a ceremony at the University’s Regent Street Cinema.
"Natalie launched the Chancellor's Circle which is a new and exclusive community of organisations offering
employability opportunities that make a transformational difference to the lives of Westminster students.

Global Engagement

We celebrated 20 years of partnership with Westminster International University in Tashkent

2022 marked the 20th anniversary of the University of Westminster’s Transnational Education (TNE)
partnership with Westminster International University in Tashkent (WIUT). Over the past 20 years the
partnership has become a beacon of educational quality and transformative TNE. It remains the best example
of a sustainable. British-Uzbek HE partnership. Future collaborations between Westminster and WIUT will
continue .across the spectrum of teaching, learning, research and knowledge exchange, guided by a recognition
in both institutions of the vital role transnational educational collaboration plays in bslateral UK-Uzbek relatlons
at a time of unparalleled social and global change.

‘Westminster's Global Experience Bursary increased participation in' short term mobility by 68%. In the
first year of the Global Experlence Bursary, the Student Mobility Team awarded £88, 612 to 62 students °
supporting more to take part in international experiences.
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Westminster Busmess School cemented a new student exchange relatlonshlps with Hanoi University.
The new agreement which was signed in April will allow students based at Hanoi University (HANU) to study for
a semester or full academic year at Westminster's Marylebone Campus. Westminster Business School

* students based in London will also be able to go abroad to study in Vletnam s capital city.

The First Uzbekistan — United ngdom Education Forum boosted transnatlonal collaboration. The
Forum is a joint initiative between the Ministry of Higher Education, Science and Irninovation of the Republic of
Uzbekistan, the British Council in Uzbekistan, the University of Westminster, and Westminster International
University in Tashkent (WIUT). The event saw Uzbek Government officials, invited delegates from UK and
Uzbekistan universities, and representatives of international agencies and think tanks share ideas, knowledge
and expertlse and discuss future partnership and education policy.-

A new cohort of Westminster students were selected for the internship programme of the United .
Nations’ International Organisation for Migration (IOM) through its special partnership with the
Umver5|ty The students are due to be stationed across Asia, Africa and Europe.

) Eo‘ucat/on ;

Our new Business of Film MA in partnership with the BFI and Regent Street Cinema. The course, a
unique parthership with the British Film Institute (BF!) and Regent Street Cinema will boost the business, legal,
negotiation and networking skillset of film professionals starting out-or who have a few years of experience
under their belt. It is also designed to attract those who have studied subjects such as Business, Finance or
Law, and wouId like to apply their knowledge to the film mdustry ’

In January, the University uploaded its submission to the Teachmg Excellence Framework (TEF)
exercise being carried out by the OfS. The TEF is a national scheme that assesses excellence in teaching,
learning and student outcomes through a set of metrics and a provider submission. Our submission was
-authored by a number of colleagues across the University. We are very proud of the work that has gone into
articulating our journey and showcasing the many ways in which we enrich the student experlence at
Westminster. . .

Our Fine Art Mixed Media BA course was ranked in The Guardian’s ‘Best UK umversmes for fine art’
league table. The course ranked 7th receiving 78.7 points out of 100, with the overall rating of flnal-year
students being 73.5 points accordlng to the National Student Survey (NSS) .
Self-Leadership Programme Iaunched for student entrepreneurs -

The programme, which is supported by the Graham Shapiro Foundation was Iaunched on 13 June 2023. The
programme focuses on showing students the importance of self-awareness and providing them with resources
for developing resilience and avoiding burn-out while achieving their aspirations and vision. It recognises the
unique challenges entrepreneurs face in the world of work, particularly young entrepreneurs, as they must
make crucial décisions and tackle demanding workloads with little support or opportunities for delegation.

Westminster academics, students and international experts collaborated on'innovative Al in DNA -
damage research. The Genome Engineering Lab brought together Westminster academics and students of .
different study levels with international experts in DNA damage and Atrtificial intelligence (Al), who spent two
years collaboratlng on research that can potentially revolutionise DNA damage studies in cancer and disease..
research .

We launched The Ignite Fund to unlock students’ potential. Formerly known as the 125 Fund, The Ignite
Fund-will support even more students to access funding to realise their potential through a dream project, in
addition to the 700+ who have received funding since 2016. The funding is made available by the generous
support of alumni and friends of the University of Westminster, and further bolstered by the Quintin Hogg Trust
which matches every donatlon to the fund pound for pound.

‘Liberal Arts and Sciences celebrated student success at Excellence Awards. Every year LAS organises -
an Excellence Awards ceremony to celebrate undergraduate students’ achievements and recognise their hard
work. In total 102 students from all four schools in LAS — Westminster Law School, the School of Humanities,.-
the School of Life Sciences, and the School of Social Sciences - were presented with an achlevement
certificate by Professor Andrew Linn, Pro V|ce Chancellor and Head of College :

Archltecture alumna selected as fmahst for Young Talent Architecture Award for final diploma project.
Master of Arc_hitecture (MArch) (RIBA pt I} alumna Ruta Perminaite was selected as a finalist in the EU Mies

8




UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER
Strategic report

Van der Rohe Young Talent Open Architecture Award for her project Paradise on the Edge. The awards
recognise excellence in final diploma works by recently graduated architects, aiming to support the future of the
archrtectural and urban planning industry.

Our Computer Games Development BSc students designed two games for the Imperial War Museum

War Games Jam. Two teams from Westminster, including 12 students from the Computer Games '

- Development BSc course took part in the imperial War Museum’s (IWM) Games Jam. The competition was
organised in partnership with the Historical Games Network, University of Glasgow’s Games and Gaming Lab

(GGLAB), and World of Tanks .

Computer Games Development students showcased their work at 2023 Barclays Games Frenzy event.
The event allowed them to network with games industry professionals at Barclays headquarters in Canary
Wharf, London. A

Research

. Our research on suic¢ide prevention using surveillance technologies was awarded £1.1m. The research,
titled Effectiveness of Surveillance Technologies to Prevent Suicides at High-Risk Locations, led by Dr Jay-
Marie Mackenzie, Reader in the School of Social Sciences, and co-lead by Professor Lisa Marzano from
Middlesex University, was awarded £1,120k by the National Institute of Heath and Care Research (NIHR) as
part of their Public Health Research programme. -

Our academ:cs contributed to research which found that low traffic neighbourhoods in London -
borough cut daily driving among residents by 1.3km. Residents in the London Borough of Lambeth started
driving less once their area became a low traffic nelghbourhood (LTN) relatrve to those living in surroundrng
areas, accordrng to the study.

Westminster-led research found that ethnic minority patients yearn for warmth from health- care
professionals.

Responding to reports of drscnmrnatron and treatment lacking in empathy, the researchers led by the University
of Westminster and including scientists from Oxford University, Queen Mary University of London, King’s
College London and the University of Portsmouth, analysed the social and cultural influences in the experience
of ethnic minority psychological and/or cancer patients in 29 studies. The researchers found that developing
better connections between ethnic minority patients and health care professionals could drive more positive

" health care experience for. ethnic minority patients.

Major study showed youth custody harms earnings prospects. A major University of Westminster-led
research project demonstrated the harmful effect of youth custody on young people’s career prospects. It also
showed that having higher- attarnrng peers whrle at school can reduce the likelihood of being imprisoned as a
young person :

Westminster-led menswear project Iaunched to mvestlgate connectlons between British and Italran
menswear. An international research network is investigating the cultural and industrial connections between
London, Liverpool, Manchester, and Milan, and how they have influenced the production, dlsplay and '
consumptron of British menswear.

‘Westminster-led research project made recommendations to improve social integration of Syrian

~ refugees in London. A research project led by Westminster investigated the nature and functioning of the
-Community Sponsorship scheme in London, which is a refugee resettlement programme with local people at its -

heart. The researchers made recommendatrons for how resettiement planning can be improved to support

Syrian refugees’ social mtegratlon in London.

Westminster Research Fellow contrlbuted to Chief Medical Officer's 2022 Annual Report on Air
Pollution. Dr Harrie Larrington-Spencer, a Research Fellow in Westminster's Active Travel Academy, co-wrote
the section about active travel for. the Chref Medrcal Offrcer S annual report on air pollutlon for this year.

Professor Nitasha Kaul received prestlglous British Academy award for international and
interdisciplinary research. Professor Kaul, Director of the Centre for the Study of Democracy (CSD) was
awarded a 2023 Knowledge Frontiers Symposia award from the British Academy.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES AND OBJECTIVES
OUR STRATEGIC PRIORITIES ‘ '
Our Strategy - Being Westrninster 2022-2029 ('‘Being Westminster’) is guided by our three priorities:

Inclusion

Westminster will be known as a place where everyone can brrng their whole self to work or study and know they
belong — our commitment to equality, equity, diversity and inclusion is at the core of how we engage with
everyone. All Westminster colleagues and students will be in a supportive and safe learning and working
environment which is equitable, diverse and inclusive, is based on mutual respect and trust, and is a place
where harassment and discrimination are not tolerated. As a responsible institution, we strive to ensure and to
champion equality. As a progressive institution, we take pride in our diversity. As a compassionate institution,
Cwe commrt to an lnclusrve culture that allows students and colleagues to reach their full potential.

Wellbelng

- Working and studying together at Westminster as a communlty of students and colleagues is a big part of our’
lives — doing so in an environment that places our wellbeing front and centre helps us to be safe and feel safe.
We care for the safety, health and wellbeing of those around us as well as ourselves. We believe that everyone
has the right to feel fulfilled at work and study, connected to a community of colleagues and students who are
passionate about making a positive impact on themselves, our workplaces, study spaces and those around us.

Sustainable Development

We take inspiration from the 17 United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) in how we drlve our

* actions, activities and governance across our University, in line with our progressive, responsible and
compassionate values. As a community, we bring together our collective energies to play our part in addressing
the climate crisis and inequalities to enable a more sustainable and socially just world.

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES °
Being Westminster identified four-objectives that were ourfocus for the period:
Education: Authentic learning, preparing for success ina changing world.

Research and Knowledge Exchange: Finding solutlons to make a difference for our communities and the
world. . :

Employability: Connecting students and employers.for graduate career success.
Global Engagement: Westminster — World of Difference.

To achieve these objectives, we work together with our People and our Digital and Physical Environment to
achieve the following outcomes:

Reputation :
We will be known for the things that matter most tous—asa place where discoveries are made, barrrers are
broken diversity is celebrated and where everyone is welcome. :

Financial sustarnabrllty

We will invest in our future and manage our finances to create a secure and sustainable base. Our mvestments
will be ethical and in line with our values. We will continue to focus on the key performance measures — income
generation, our costs, surplus and work|ng capltal —to guarantee the University’s long—term financial
sustamablllty

Visit our website for more details on our Strategy westminster.ac.uk/about-us/our-university/our-purpose-
. mission- and-vafues A
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BEING WESTMINSTER: PERFORMANCE AND IMPROVEMENTS 2022/23 -

Education A

‘University Student Module Evaluation (SME) data shows that levels of satisfaction havé continued to improve
steadily in the category of Assessment, with 80% of students agreeing that assessment criteria was made clear
in advance compared to 79% in 2021/22 and 78% in 2020/21. Black students are at bénchmark for satisfaction
with assessment and feedback, but there are gaps observed in satlsfactron levels for students of other
ethnicities agarnst benchmark.

While the University is not at benchmark for academic support, in this year's SME outcomes at Levels 5 and 6
the most significant SME increases are in response to the statement '/ have received sufficient support-and
-guidance with my studies’ (+3pp"' and +7pp respectively). Although for Level 7 this shows a reduction of 4pp, "
postgraduate taught (PGT) satisfaction, in SMEs, with teaching and academrc support overall (and also with .
. assessment) is above benchmark for all Colleges. ,

Our new Student Centre service dealt with 29 000 queries in its first six weeks of operation. The Centre dealt
with 43% of queries immediately and was rated excellent by 77% of students. With UWSU, we are. developing
peer mentoring to be introduced for 2023/24, building on the work of the FANS programme and introducing a
call centre to ensure every student is contacted. In June 2023, Academic Council approved a new approach to
personal tutorlng which will be implemented from September 2023

Teaching Quallty satisfaction levels overall have remained broadly statrc during the period, but SME data for
Level 6 shows increases in six out of nine areas, with two static and one lower. Data for 2022/23 suggest that,
for Teaching Quality, the University is broadly at benchmark for Black and Asian undergraduate students.

Research and Knowledge Exchange

Income to the University from research grants and contracts was £6.2m (July 2023), this is up 17% from £5.3m
~in 2021/22. Success rates on funding bids have been increasing year by year from 20% in-2019/20 to 28% in

2020721 to 35% in 2022/23; against the national average success rate of 20%2. Both the increase in income .
and the high success rate point to positivé progress in our research and knowledge exchange activities.

" The 2023 Postgraduate Research Experience Survey (PRES, July 2023) reports our- hlghest satisfaction rate
ever (83% against a sector average of 79%), placing us 18/100 natronaIIy for overall satisfaction (18/89 in
2021). Our Being Westminster. key performance target is to remain in the top 20 nationally. Our response rate
was 51.7% versus a sector average of 30.2%. :

~ We continue to receive our annual Higher Education and Innovation Fund (HEIF) award from, Research

England to the value of apprOXImater £800k per annum. Knowledge exchange performance is benchmarked in
sector clusters of comparable universities via the Knowledge Exchange Framework (KEF). We perform well in
CPD (continuing professional development) and Graduate Student start-ups (5 quintile) and Local Growth and
Regeneration (4! quintile) and moderately well in Working with Business (3" quintile). In other KEF areas there
is a lower Higher Education Business and Community Interaction Survey (HE-BCIS) return via HESA (Higher
Education Statistics Agency) and therefore we are in quintiles 2-1 for Public and Community Engagement
(PCE), working with the public and third sector, research partnerships and IP (intellectual property) and
commercialisation. Our short courses have benefited from a review and improvements to our processes and
support. : .

1 Percentage poin'ts'_
2 UKRI metrics report 4
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Employability

Results for our undergraduate (UG) graduates from 2020/21 show the gap between Westminster and the sector
benchmark has increased to 4.6pp for this full-time UK domiciled UG cohort who graduated in 2020/21 from
3.1pp for the cohort who graduated in 2019/20. We are working to ensure full and ongoing engagement in
Schools and Colleges with our employability support provision, and will attend to demographic gaps
purposefully with growth in targeted provision.

We are pleased that the results for our postgraduate taught (PGT) graduates from 2020/21 show an increase of
3.5pp in the ‘highly skilled’ employment and study rate when compared to results for graduates from 2019/20. In
comparison to our sector benchmark in ‘highly skilled’ employment/higher-level’ study for full-time UK domiciled
~ PGT graduates from 2020/21, there has been a shift from being 1.4pp below in the previous year to being 2.1pp .
above, which is now just 0.4pp below our Being Westminster 2022-2029 target. This reflects enhanced
engagement of PGT students and programmes with the employability agenda.

~ We have refocused the remit and membership of our Employability Task Force to focus |ts work even more
closely on graduate outcomes.

Global Engagement

Current enrolment forecasts indicate that overseas students will constitute 25% of -our UG new starts and 72%
of our PGT new starts in September 2023. Based on current data, we are set to exceed our overseas
aspirational targets (these being carefully managed within overall CAS — Conflrmatlon of Acceptance for
Studies - allocation). :

STRATEGIC FOCUS 2022/23

Education

During the first half of the year, work was ongoing to prepare for submission to the Teaching Excellence
Framework in January 2023. Our submission articulated our journey and showcased the many ways in which
we enrlch the student experience at Westminster.

National Student Survey results were released in July 2023. This survey is for all final year undergraduates.
Outcomes show that the University has made some progress, with 7 out of 10 areas in line with benchmark,
indicating typically very high-quality provision. These areas include assessment and feedback; learning
opportunities; and organisation and management There are three areas, teaching, academic support and
awareness of wellbeing provision, where outcomes are still below benchmark and further work is needed. The
Postgraduate Taught Experience Survey (PTES) showed student satisfaction in line with benchmark in every
category except ‘community’ which was below benchmark. The Schools of Finance and Accounting, Media and
Communications, and Humanities, were at or above benchmark in every category in PTES 2023.

Research and Knowledge Exchange

Research

Following a period of extensive consultation across and beyond the University, our new strategy for Research .
and Knowledge Exchange (KE) (Making a Difference) was approved.by Academic Council and sets out our
ambitions and commitments for the period to 2029: We aim to be at the forefront of research and KE globally in
Arts, Communication & Culture, Diversity & Inclusion, Health Innovation & Wellbeing, and Sustainable Cities
and the Urban Environment, and amongst the most diverse communities of researchers in the world. Building
on work carried out last year to articulate our integrated commitment to education and research, we are now
committed to offering every student the opportunity to experience and benefit from learning in a research and
knowledge exchange environment, and to be a leading modern university for the nexus of research and
education..

In 2022 the sector learned the outcome of the national Research Excellence Framework, and Westminster
recorded our best ever results, having returned the work of twice as many Westminster researchers as in 2014.
Overall, we were ranked 65= out of 157 institutions for the quality of our research (according to Times Higher
Education). Notable successes were achieved in the impact of our research, with Art and Design in first place
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nationally, Business & Management 2nd, and Politics:& International Studies4th. We can also point to .

. significant improvement in our research environment with 71% of our environment recognized as world- -leading |
or internationally excellent compared with 53% in 2014. With 72% of our research outputs deemed to be either
‘world-leading’ or. ‘internationally excellent’, we have exceeded our Béing Westminster key performance target

" of more than 70% of outputs being-at this Ievel of quallty

As a result of our excellent performance in the REF we have seen our annual allocation of Quality-Related
(QR) funding by Research England increase by 48% to £6.5m per annum, compared with an average 5%
increase for London institutions. This is allowing us to invest in research support in new and creative ways,
including the appointment to three two-year postdoctoral fellowshlps for researchers from under-represented
backgrounds.

Excellent research requires resourcing, and we have this year been restructuring our Research and Knowledge
Exchange Office to provide the best possible support for our research ambitions. New income to the university
from research grants and contracts in 22/23 is £6.2m which is up 17% from £5.3m in 21/22. Success rates on
funding bids have been increasing year by year from 20% in 19/20 to 28% in 20/21 to 35% in 22/23 (RKEO
monthly report July 2023), against a national average success rate of 20%. Both the increase in income and the
high success rate provide a strong basis for the future. Major new awards in 2022/2023 include:

Swarmchestrate (£516k) -awarded to Tamas Kiss, Gabor Terstyanszky, Francesco Tusa and Barbara Vlllarlnl
(School of Computer Science and Englneenng) by the European Commission

The impact of exclusion on peers educational and labour market outcomes (£18‘|k) awarded to Veruska
Oppedisano and Richard Dorsett (Westminster Business School) by the Nuffield Foundation.

- Motivations for sharing political disinformation on social media (£147k) awarded to Tom Buchanan and Deborah
Husbands (School of Social Sciences) by the Leverhulme Trust :

In July 2023 we received the outcome of the biannual national Postgraduate Research Experience Survey of-
doctoral researchers (PRES). Overall satisfaction at Westminster is 83%, which is our highest ever and -
compares to a sector overall satisfaction of 79%, making Westmlnsterthe 18th highest ranked institution
nationally out of 100 and based on a response rate of 51.7% compared to the sector average of 30.2%. We will
continue to provide a sector-leading environment for our PhD researchers as we open our new Graduate
School Centre at Regent Street in the autumn of 2023. ‘

_ Knowledge Exchange

The Knowledge Exchange Framework (KEF2) results this year reflect our commitment to, and significant
investment in, enhancing our engagement with industry; supporting employability opportunities and outcomes
for students; and mcreasmg levels of engagement with Iocal communities.

Our priority areas are: (1) Research partnerships (creatlng a dynamlc dlgltal space to advertise to orgamsatlons
externally); (2) Working with business (creating flexible spaces where business is attracted — shop fronts for
student enterprise); (3) Skills, enterprise and entrepreneurship/start-ups (29 Marylebone Road); and (4) public
and community engagement, ensuring public and community engagement is promoted sustainably, celebrated
and rewarded. :

After an extenswe unlverslty-W|de consultatlon our new Public and Community Engagement Strategy is built on -
these four pillars.

1.~ Research into action — We will work to translate our research into real world solutions through
business and policy engagement, research dissemination and knowledge exchange.

2. Knowledge co-creation — we will work with our communities to identify projects that meet our
stakeholder's needs and co-develop solutions.

3. Creating Civic Citizens - We will embed community- -based learning generating powerful Iearmng
outcomes with students working in partnership with communities and. co-producing new knowledge.

4. Giving back - We will utilise our place in the heart of London to host public events and make
connections and develop collaboratlons with those who share our values and create mutually beneficial
outcomes. .

Our focus will be on those organisations that can support our mission (and enhance our capacity) to deliver
economic and social impact in our four declared thematic priority areas — dlverSIty and inclusion; health'and
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well-being; sustainable cities; and arts, communlcatuon and cuIture Our new Public and Communnty
Engagement Strategy will provide the necessary building blocks for this to happen.

We successfully restored the UnlverS|ty s iconic London Fringe theatre, the Soho Poly, which reopened its '
doors to the public this year with.the Soho Poly Summer Festival, opening up a whole new era for performing
arts innovation and community collaborations at the University.

Building on our ‘Stimulating Short Courses’ strategy paper, we have placed our short course portfolio on a firm
footing. Our short course income in 2022/23 well exceeded target focussing on executive education and .
business to business. Examples include contracts funded by the Foreign and Commonwealth Office, as part of
the Chevening Scholars Programme and a new contract awarded from the Ministry of Defence.

Westminster City Council awarded planning permission for 29 Marylebone Road, our sector leading new
enterprise centre heIplng connect businesses and the wider community to the UmverSIty to address skills
needs: _

Our work to support students to develop enterprise skills, freelance and work for themselves secured three
National Enterprise Educator Awards - Enterprise Catalyst, Inclusive Enterprise Award and People's Choice.
The awards recognise our work to develop an inclusive approach to enterprise, that is accessible to the whole
Westminster community: this is done by placing alumni at the centre of our work to act as role models and
share their experiences. Awards recognise work across WeNetwork and Alumni Relatrons teams

.KnowIedge exchange grant income awards included £2m from Calico Life Sciences; £110k from Savanna
Ingredients GmbH and other major awards from the British Library, TFL, the European Commission and Koda.

Employability

Engagement with our employability support provision, general and targeted, has grown significantly during
2022/23. .

Our EmployabiIity work has been recognised as sector-leading with national awards secured by both our
Careers and Employabilty Service and Business Engagement directorate in 2022/23:

e Our Careers and Employability Services was awarded the Association of Graduate Careers Advisory
Service (AGCAS) Quality Standard accreditation in August 2022, in recognition of the hlgh standards of
professional delivery.

' Our work across our Business Engagement directorate to engage alumni to demystify enterprlse .
secured three National Enterprise Educator Awards in September 2023 - Enterprise Catalyst, Inclusive
Enterprise Award and People's Choice. The awards recognise our commitment to developing an

* inclusive approach to enterprise, that is accessible to the whole Westminster community: this is done
by placing alumni at the centre of our work to act as role models and share their experiences. This was .
a successful collaboration between WeNetwork and the Alumni Relations teams.

o The Westminster Working Cultures UK programme was also awarded the Gold award in the category
of ‘intensive employability programmes for students’ in the CASE Circle of Excellence awards. The
CASE Awards recognize exceptional achievement in advancement services, alumni relations,
communications, fundraising, and marketing.

o Future Ready-Mentoring was shortlisted in the Outstandlng Support for Students’ category at the
Times’ Higher Education Awards. ,

Our Westminster Employability Award (WEA) has had a record-breaking year in 2022/23. Dunng the period we
overhauled the WEA, introducing more activity choice, focusing on inclusivity, and launching two brand-new
levels - the Postgraduate Gold level, and the Platinum level. In the reporting period 4,642 students registered-
for the award and 2,356 students completed a level of the award, representing a 71% increase from 2021/22.
Students who completed the WEA this year completed a total of 29, 863 employability activities.

~ Our Work Based and Placement Learning (WBPL) Project has’ progressed to 89% in terms of the courses
meeting requirements with embedded employability and WBPL, up from 78% in 2021/22. .

Our Inclusive Futures Fair (IFF), set up at Westminster as a Quintin Hogg Trust (QHT) funded pilot in 2019, in".

partnership with four universities, has grown to a consortium of seven universities. The focus is on working with

organisations who are committed to building a diverse workforce and to promoting inclusive recruitment
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practices.' In 2022, the IFF saw the development of a toolkit in p'artnership with the' QAA and with GTl as our
partner for the platform. it has won an AGCAS award in the Building Effective Partnerships category.

In terms of recruiter engagement, we welcomed many employers back to campus across all Colleges, whilst
others engaged with our students virtually. More than 175 employers and external organisations engaged with
‘students through careers:fairs, panels, presentations and other activities. 1,313 organisations and more than
4,900 vacancies were added to Engage-in 2022/23. :

Our QHT funded Talent Bank-Work With Us project provides students with paid on-campus roles to support -
them in gaining hands-on experience and developlng employability skills. In 2022/23, the programme attracted
1,764 applicants. 764 students received training in relation to writing and submitting applications and 93% of
these have reported that the training has been very useful. 38 students were employed across 17 roles,
completing 7 821 hours of experrence :

Another QHT-funded project - Early Careers Programme and Preparing PGTs (taught postgraduates) for the
Workplace - is aimed at enhancing the employability, career development and Graduate Outcomes of
graduating students and recent graduates, including taught postgraduates. It offers support to graduates for
three years after graduation, with dedicated support to the graduating cohort of each year. The focus is on
preparing them for the world of work and to be ‘fit for the future’ in a post-pandemic labour market that
continues to evolve. Graduates have access to an exclusive careers support package to help their ongoing
journey which includes the Graduate Success Series workshops and bespoke support and resources.

Part of the support for taught postgraduates is focussed on engagement with offer holders, and via monthly
newsletters to graduatrng students during the summer. A pré-arrival on-demand mini-course has been
developed and piloted in 2022/23. This was formally launched on 31 August 2023 as the UK Career Ready
Programme. In 14 days, this saw more than 250 registrations and 80 students complete an activity.

V Emp/oyab/'/ity and EDI -

Our employability provision is designed to be inclusive of the whole Westminster community. All students and

recent graduates have access to individual client-centred 1:1 support to suit their needs. Specialist support is in

~ place for disabled students, and care- experienced and rndependent ‘students also have a named Careers
Consultant they can contact.

+ Our Careers and Employment Service continues to promote activities organised by MyPlus Consulting,
_an organisation which provides support, training and advice for students, employers and careers
. professionals to positively impact the careers of disabled students and graduates.

e Continued participation in the Employ Autism programme in partnership with Ambltrous‘about Autism,
and funded via QHT, supporting autistic students and recent graduates to undertake internships - the
programme provided training opportunities for team members and funded internship opportunities.

¢  EDI-QHT programme ran Black History Year Create as a pilot, with overwhelmingly positive feedback
from participants and stakeholders. All nine student participants were given bespoke career progression

.workshops, a mentor and a £1,000 bursary to spend on further development.

e Inclusive Futures Insrghts is an employability-focused programme designed to provide students with the
opportunity to grow their own network, build confidence and gain an invaluable insight into the huge
range of career opportunities that London has to offer: The programme is aimed at students from '

_ underrepresented groups in higher education.

e Successful alumni role models feature prominently in our. employabrllty communications and activities,
‘providing inspiration to current students and demystifying career and entrepreneurial options for our
students. Examples include the What It Takes and What Comes Next events series, WeNetwork and
our Westminster Working Cultures programmes, all of Wthh scaled significantly in 2022/23 (see
below).. .

Our Business Engagement directorate has continued to grow e€ngagement with alumni, businesses and
-partners to support student employability and graduate success. Key achievements include'

¢ ' Continuing to expand our Future Ready Mentorlng programme, which has supported 1,706 mentoring
relationships (compared to 1,400 in 2021/22). As part of this, group mentoring continued to grow;
reaching students who might not otherwise participate in mentoring programmes, working with students
across nine modules with challenging Graduate Outcomes results in 2022/23.Future Ready Mentoring
was shortlisted i in the ‘Outstanding Support for Students’ category at the Times Higher Educatlon
Awards.
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e - Our Westminster Worklng Cultures (WWC) programme supported 441 students in 2022/23 across its
UK, International and Professional strands, with 89% self-identifying as from.a widening-participation
background. WWC International was successfully delivered at scale (nine trips) for the first time since
the COVID-19 pandemic. WWC UK won a Gold Award in the category of Alumni Relations/Alumni Pivot
in the Council for Advance and Support of Education (CASE) Circle of Excellence Awards.’

e What Comes Next, our new alumni speaker series, included seven events across all Colleges with 328
students attending the events and more than 7,500 students having access to the recordings and
highlights videos. Through this programme, we established relationships with 32 recent graduate

. speakers from different professional and personal backgrounds.
. o Nine What It Takes events took place in 2022/23 and were attended by 722 students and graduates
-16 alumni speakers shared thelr expenences with students to support their-career ambitions and future
success.

e Ouralumni achievements have continued to grow media traction: five alumni were named winners and
finalists at the British Council Study UK Alumni Awards 2022/23 at several ceremonies worldwide. Our
annual Alumni Awards received 250 nominations from across our global alumni communlty and 18
finalists will be put to a public vote in autumn 2023.

e Westminster Connect, the University’s online aIumm network now has more than 16, OOO members
(+5,000 since August 2022).

e The Westminster Enterprise Network (WeNetwork) continued to extend its reach across the University,
supporting 3,031 students and recent graduates in 2022/23, compared to 2,094 in 2021/22 (a 44.7%
iincrease). Activity has been further targeted towards underrepresented groups, with 25% of those
supported being first generation Higher Education (HE) students (compared to 10% in 2021/22) and

35% being from a BME background (increased from 20% in 2021/22).

e Expanding programmes that support aspiring entrepreneurs. These included the Ploneer Bursary, for
underrepresented founders (22 bursaries of £500 each awarded) - our annual Big ldea competition for
freelance, ideation and acceleration pitches attracted 140 applications (126% increase from previous
year), £22,000 awarded at semi-finals stage and nine finalists will compete in October 2023 - and the
new Elevate programme for early-stage businesses founded by graduates. The first cohort of 10

.businesses engage in a comprehensive and tailored programme to grow their revenue and optimise

. their processes, they will receive up to £10,000 grant funding to future-proof their business.

‘e Supporting the launch of the new Chancellor’s Circle to bring together our key employer partners to
support student success across a range of programmes including mentoring, work shadowing, visits to
the workplace and guest lectures. -

e Offering 12 Leadership Experiences with Chief Executrve Officers (CEOs) to students who secured the
highest levels of success in the Westminster Employability Award. These short, inspirational work-
shadowing opportunities were positively received by students and CEOs and will be expanded in
2023/24. :

e The dellvery of a flagship employer and supporter celebration event at Madame Tussauds in February
2023 to thank our partners for supporting our students to succeed and to grow new relationships linked
to our planned expansion in advance of the opening of 29 Marylebone Road. .

¢ Successful delivery of two QHT-funded employability programmes to test and develop activities in

" advance of the opening of 29 Marylebone Road. .

We have continued to build relationships with our local and regional business networks to increase our
business engagement. Joint events have been delivered with Westminster Business Council and the Baker
Street Quarter to support local businesses and we have partnered with the London Chamber of Commerce and
Industry on their Black Business Association and Asian Business Network. The University Industry Engagement
Board continues to provide advice on our curriculum and employability offer and the membership and operation
of School Employer Advisory Boards has been refreshed to support the implementation of our Employab|||ty
Strategy

Global engagement

Support for International Students

During 2022/23 the International Student Support Group collated mformatron relating to international student
experience and our service provision, mapping the results of the external International Student Barometer
survey (December 2022), student focus groups and internal surveys of academic colleagues to identify gaps
and key areas for improvement. The University Executive Board (UEB) has confirmed additional support and
resources to deliver on the recommended outcomes of the Group and an implementation group is working '
towards delivery across multiple areas. Significant improvements have already been made in web content, on
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enrolment process and New_to UK sessions. Our online offer.holder event has been expanded to
" undergraduate students. Enhancing support for international students is a key priority for 2023/24.

International Partnerships

Recruitment to programmes at our TNE partners is very positive, with more than 5,000 students in Uzbekistan
and 4,000 in Sri Lanka, and we continue to widen our portfolio as well as explore new TNE connections
lncludlng with a potential new partner in Nepal.

Our primary TNE partnership with Westminster Internatlonal University in Tashkent (WIUT) remains very
‘strong. During the year the inaugural Uzbekistan-United Kingdom Education Forum was held at WIUT. The
Forum was organised.as a joint initiative between the Ministry. of Higher Education, Science and Innovation of
‘the Republic of Uzbekistan, the British Council in‘Uzbekistan, the University of Westminster, and WIUT. The
conference brought together key senior stakeholders and actors in Uzbek-UK TNE with the overall aim to boost
TNE collaboration. This year also saw a number of student visits to and from WIUT including a visit by the
UWSU Dragons Men'’s Basketball and Women s Volleyball sports teams to play international matches against
the WIUT Wolves. WIUT was also delighted to host a visit by members of the UK Foreign Affairs Committee,
led by its Chair Alicia Kearns, MP. o
International Recruitment ' :

Demand for Westminster remains strong. Compared to the previous year, there was a significant 30% growth in
applications for September 2023 entry and the Admissions teams received just under 40,000 overseas
applications compared to 28,000 for the previous cycle. Of note is the fact that our undergraduate applications
are up 20%.compared to a 3.5% increase seen at national level (UCAS JuIy 2023). To handle this surge in
applications, we allocated additional permanent and temporary resource in the postgraduate and South Asia
admissions teams, as well as within visa compliance. Admissions resourcing remalns under continuous review
as a critical success factor. .

In terms of enrolments, our new international students look set to represent an even greater proportion of the
total September 2023 new intake. Based on current predictions we look forward to welcoming more than 4,200
new international full degree students with target fee income of more than £61 million. Overseas students will
make up just under 45% of the total new students’ cohort in September 2023, compared to 39% the previous
year. This is a success of recruitment work done in 2022/23.-

Pre-existing demographlc trends continue to play out, with a growing concentratlon of students from South ASIa
and Nigeria. South Asian students will make up well over a third of the new cohort intensifying the challenges of

- nationality diversity and risks of reliance on single markets, particularly at postgraduate level. Nonetheless,
global diversification remains a cornerstone of our long-term recruitment strategy. As such, in 2022/23 we
delivered recruitment activity across all major continents. A return to face-to-face engagement was warmly
received by many partners and prospective students. However, the cost of travel as well as environmental
imperatives continue to shape recruitment tactics with digital platforms and virtual events continuing to play a
key role especially at the explore and enquiry stage of the recruitment process, reducing our need for printed
material and freight and other travel-related emissions.

Our global agent network of more than 180 agents and academic partner network contribute more than half of
our international cohort each year, with pathway providers such as Kaplan pivotal to undergraduate growth.
With more than 500 students on University of Westminster pathways at Kaplan’s London campus and across
their digital portfolio in 2022/23, we anticipate continued growth both from existing routes but also due to new
products such as the Internat|onal Year One in Computing launched in April 2023, and with the first intake due
for September 2024.
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Incldsion'
Education for all

‘We are unwavering in our-commitment to breaking down barriers to education and fostering equal access to
opportunities for all our students. Through pioneering social mobility projects and successful fundraising
initiatives to support their objectives, we embrace diversity and empower students from diverse backgrounds to
reach their true potential. . .

The generous support from the QHT has been a game-changer for our mission of equal access to education.
With £4.9 million in funding secured this year, we have enhanced facilties, created innovative learning spaces
and |mplemented initiatives benefiting students from all walks of I|fe

We were delighted to secure a substantlal grant from the OfS for £5.8 million to establish 29 Marylebone Road
the UK’s most inclusive enterprise centre, which is due to open in 2025. The building, and the programmes to
be run within the space, will support the employability and entrepreneurship of our students, alumni and local
community, providing the resources and confidence to thrive and contribute meaningfully to the economy.

The Ignite Fund exemplifies our dedication to supporting our students financially, enabling them to pursue their
aspirations without hindrance. £70,000 was awarded to a record number of students this year. Some 170
students were granted funding to support individual and group projects to support their employability and
enterprlse ambitions. . L

Our pannershlps with companies supporting inclusive scholarships increased significantly, generating .
substantial funding opportunities for students from underrepresented groups. To help with diversity of the future
talent pipeline entering industries such as Real Estate and Computer Games Design, we established fee waiver
and maintenance grants to offer a lifeline to talented students who face financial hardship. By doing so,

students are able to reduce their part-time hours in their jobs, which can be detrimental to their studies, and
dedicate themselves fully to their degree. As part of a package of support, these companies are also choosing
to mentor and provide work experience to our scholars, to ensure they stand the best possmle chance of
reachmg their full potentlal ‘

The soft launch openlng of the Soho Poly Theatre, supported by a number of major donors, marked a.
significant step towards promoting the arts and supporting wellbeing. As part of our commitment to inclusivity,
this historic theatre venue offers free access to the arts, regardless of background or circumstance. By
democratising access to the arts, we acknowledge the vital role creativity plays in personal growth and
wellbeing. 4

A number of international internships were supborted by our alumni, connecting students with global
opportunities to enhancing their academic performance and future career prospects. Open to students from
diverse backgrounds, these programmes ensure-equal access to enriching international experiences.

~ These are just some examples of how the generosity of our supporters is helping to empower our students to
overcome the obstacles they may face. Prioritising inclusivity, diversity, and fairness, we continue to pave the

" way for a brighter future where educatuon knows no boundaries, and all individuals can thrive and contribute
meaningfully to society. .

Access and participation

Since our founding, we have provided an environment, culture and education that has supported a hugely
_diverse and international community of students. Our diversity is a significant strength and something that we
are incredibly proud of. We are home to more than 20,000 students from 160 countries and 62% of our students
are from Black and minority ethnic (BME) backgrounds. Our Access and Participation Plan (APP) 2020-25
demonstrates our commitment to improving equality of opportunity for all our students and acknowledges the
areas in which we need to improve to make this a reality. We set ambitious targets for eliminating gaps in
continuation rates, degree completion and awarding of good honours degrees for students from
underrepresented groups and achieving these targets is a key objective of our Education Strategy.

We have continued our work in the delivery of our APP. in the last year through dedicated resource that is
supporting work on-impact and evaluation.of progress in our APP activities. We have developed and
implemented a new evaluation framework, facilitated evaluation workshops for both academic and professional
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services colleagues and implemented a new accountability structure for delivering:'on our APP targets through
our EDI (Education) Steering Group.

Overall undergraduate continuation rates have fallen from 82.4% for 2020/21 entrants continuing into 2021/22
to 80.4% for students joining the University in 2021/22 and continuing into 2022/23. This decrease has seen the
continuation rate gap widen for black students against their white peers, from -4.8% in 2020/21 to -7.6% in
2021/22. Asian students are still more likely than white students to continue their studies, although this has
decreased from 2.1- pércentage points (pp) in 2020/21 to 0.4% in 2021/22. Students declaring a disability are
now 4.8pp less likely than those with no known disability to continue with their studies, widening the gap of -

*1.6pp for 2020/21 entrants. Female students are 6.5pp more likely to continue than male peers, an increase of
1.9pp since 2020/21. : .

" Action continues to be taken in line with our published commitments to ensure an actively anti-racist, inclusive’
and safe environment for all of us to study and work, and in line with our APP commitments, to close these
gaps. During 2022/23 this has included the launch of our Student Centre service points. Located in our three
libraries and via online chat, the team can respond to.a very wide variety of queries directly and book students
to see specialists where expert advice is needed. This ‘one-stop shop’ model enables students to more quickly
receive support and to connect to specialist services. In this first.year the team have received almost 57,000
queries and typically can resolve 65% immediately. Two further interventions to deliver on our published
commitments have been developed throughout 2022/23 for launch in 2023/24. These are the Peer Support

~ Programme which will ensure every student is-called to check on their progress and support needs and a
redesign of our Personal Tutoring provision to enable students to develop. a strong sense of belonging and to

engage WIth the University’s values.

Equality, d/versrty‘and inclusion
Strategy and Action Plan

EDI is a matter of more than mere comollance at Westminster EDI is in our DNA: part of our long history and
culture. This is fully embedded in our refreshed Being Westminster strategy to 2029, reflected i in our
_ prioritisation of Inclusion, Wellberng and Sustalnable Development .

Our work through 2022/23 focused on the continued delivery of our EDl Strategy to 2025. That work was
supported through our annual EDI Action Plan, which was reviewed twice in 2023, in April and July, with the
EDI Committee deliberatlng over progress reports from action owners. Our EDI Committee also devoted time to
discussing key strategic issues — diversity and the workforce; training and development; student inclusivity; and '
EDI accredltatlons .

The second phase of our EDI core development programme was delivered for all colleagues, aiming to raise
awareness, knowledge and understanding, and encourage positive cultural change and promote inclusive
behaviours and practice across all areas.

Projects, -Programmes, Events-and Colleague Networks

This was the second year of the QHT supported EDI programme ‘Community. and Communities: Supporting

and Celebrating Diversity at the University of Westminster’. This project is intended to power up our institutional

. engagement with EDI, building community and communities at the University, and creating a space where all
students and colleagues feel safe’and comfortable bringing their whole selves to study and work. The project
was conceived through partnership between UWSU, academic and professional services colleagues and the
co-chairs of our EDI Committee. Major events included our World in Westminster.festival (March), Challenging
Racisms in Higher Education and Beyond conference (May), an international student conference (May), events
on challeging antisemitism (February and March), two day-long Queering Academia international conference
(June), and several others as part of Westmlnster Conversatuons More than 1,250 attendees came for these
events. .

In September 2022, we launched Being Ready, a targeted pre-enrolment programme for our students, bringing
professional and academic colleagues together with returning students to support the development of
confidence and a strong sense of belonging in new students. The purpose of the project is to increase
continuation rates and support successful transition into higher educatlon
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Our Centre for Education and Teaohing innovation (CETI) launched an Open Programme of professional -
development activities for 2022/23. The Programme is open to all colleagues and includes a range of sessions
focusing on EDI in teaching, learning and assessment.

We have also launched our ED! focused Westminster Inclusive Cultures Programme, developed in partnership
with-our Organisational Development team, CETI and UWSU. The Programme offers a series of development
opportunities for both colleagues and students and aims to support differing levels of understanding and needs
across colleagues and students within the context of EDI. :

Our colleague networks continue to be key catalysts for change. They continue to work intersectionally and
positively impact upon the culture of the University, helping to ensure that Westminster is a place where
inclusion and equity are core principles. Colleague networks and School EDI leads, along with representatlves
from Professional Services departments, our Research and Knowledge Exchange Office and the Students
Union, played a key role in our annual EDI Open Forum held in June 2023, on the theme. of breaking down
silos and working together .

As 2022 ended, our BME network celebrated our Black History Year programme at an event where colleagues
from across the University met to share our stories and had the opportunity to meet our new Chancellor, Natalie
Campbell MBE. We launched Black History Year Create, a QHT-funded skills-focused and personal '
development programme that delivered bespoke training to nine final-year Black students from across the
University to enhance their employablllty prospects after graduation. The first cohort of BHY Create celebrated
" the successful conclusion of their programme in July. The network hosted a workshop in June with our Senior.
Management Team on the theme of working together and its members participated as mentors as well as
mentees on London Higher's Mentoring Scheme.

Colleague Networks organised several events throughout the year. As part of international Women's Day and
our World in Westminster festival, the Women of Westminster (WoW) network hosted a panel discussion on
ground-breaking research from the Fawcett Society and the Runnymede Trust — ‘Broken Ladders: The myth of
meritocracy for women of colour in the workplace’ - and a further cohort of the Aurora programme (Advance
HE's leadership development lnltlatlve for women) and the WoW mentoring scheme contlnued through
2022/23.

During 2022/23 the Q+ network also continued to be active on several fronts. The network engaged with a
major intersectional survey of EDI inclusivity across Westminster campuses involving both students and
colleagues and promoted actlvmes including an ‘Open MiQ’ evening jointly organised with UWSU. -

Our Colleague Dlsablhty Network is committed to inspiring positive change, ensurlng everyone assomated with
the University of Westminster thinks and acts positively when considering disability. The network has ,
established a community which allows members to share information, advice and insights in a safe, open and
honest environment, to challenge biases any member feels exposed to, and create a fully diverse and mcluswe
worklng and learning environment. .

Our Faith, Splrrtuahty and Belief network contlnued to establish itself through 2022/23, growing their
membership as a digital and physical presence and collaborating with other colleague networks. The network
used the feedback from a colleague survey to support improved policy, practice, provision and consultation on
matters-of faith, spirituality and belief. .

The University partnered with London Higher's EDI Network to host a dicussion with Lord John Mann on the
challenges of antisemitism in higher education in March. It also hosted a workshop on governance equallty
charter marks and leadership in EDI with the London Higher EDI Network: in June .

Our Black Lives Matter Commitments

In June 2023, we published the third update on the commitments we published in June 2020. The work
captured reflects the progress made, the areas of challenge that remain, and the need for attentlon to equity
. within our EDI work. .

As mentioned above, Black history has continued to be celebrated across the year at Westminster. Now in its
third year, our Black History Year programme has featured an array of high-quality events spanning the breadth
of experiences for Black people and has provided workshops catering to the diverse needs of Black colleagues -
and students at the University, as well as the public who attend.

- 20



UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER
Strategic report

The second annual Westminster Conversations Conference on Challenging Racisms in Higher Education and -
Beyond took place in May 2023. This was the second conference of its kind at Westminster and brought
speakers and participants from institutions around the globe to explore and challenge various forms of racism
present within academia and society as a whole, making a powerful contribution to the anti-racist work of the
University..In addltlon to anti-Black racism, there was a focus on antisemitism, Islamophob|a and casteism as

. racrsm

Our work on decolonising and diversifyiné the curriculum continues through the Pedagogies for Social Justice
project, which included the Festival of Decolonial Learning in June 2023 a decolomsmg toolkit; and the . .
Students as Co-Creators programme. .

Work to reduce awarding gaps has included investment in internal research; the introduction of measures to
remove barriers to success; and interventions targeted on particular groups. Targeted interventions are having -
an impact. A new pre-enrolment programme, which in September 2022 targeted students across 12 courses
with high withdrawal rates, aims to increase continuation rates among new students from under-represented

" groups. 80% of students taking part said it prepared them well for university and that they felt more confident
overall. .

Westminster is committed to -enabling an inclusive and diverse.research culture. Our Research and Knowledge
Exchange Office has recruited for three Westminster fellowships targeting early postdoctoral scholars from
“under-represented backgrounds. These fellowships will be crucial tools in supporting the Commitments. Various
“‘research projects are taking place that are connected with lives of BME people in the UK and with those in the
Global South and our Black Music Research Unit held an important event on Prostate Cancer in Black
~ Musicians and opened a new series of talks with Afrobeat to Afrobeats.

Student enterprise is a key area of inclusion work. In November 2022, our WeNetwork delivered the

. Westminster Inclusion and Diversity Festival. The festival celebrates and advocates for diversity and inclusion
in industry and enterprise, showcasing progress towards inclusion and representation of all identity, social and
cultural intersections.. The stories and case studies celebrated inspirational success stories in the face of
adversity, showcased best practice examples of diversity and inclusion in enterprise and entrepreneurship,
brought people together, fostered a supportive community spirit and informed and inspired to catalyse
transformative action. The WeNetwork has also updated its Pioneer support for underrepresented founders and
helped fulfil the University’'s commitment to the work of the Diversity and Inclusion Research Community by
collaborating with Innovate UK (IUK) on an Inclusive Innovation event, where the CEO and experts from IUK
provided support to researchers from communities currently under-represented in their grant programme. The
WeNetwork-also conducted outreach to bring employers and organisations into the classroom to highlight
issues of discrimination and racism in business and broader culture, through the Live Briefs programme.

Our Report and Support platform supports our commitment to further develop safe WayS' for colleagues and
students to disclose and/or report microaggressions, harassment and unwanted behaviour. Work continues to
enhance our EDI colleague development programme and train colleagues on key areas.

EDI is a core component of creating a more just and sustainable world and we will continue to measure our,
impact, locally, nationally and globally through the framework of the Sustainable Development Goals.

. Wellbeing
University Mental Health Charter. Programme

We continue to engage with the sector-wide University Mental Health Charter programme to achieve a whole-
university approach to positive mental health for students and colleagues. In May 2023.we hosted a sector
networking event for this programme, focusing-on Intersectional Approaches to Student Mental Health.

Student Residential Life

Qur new partnership with Unite Students has extended the provision of student accommodation available to our -
_ students, with up to 400 places available in two residences in the Wembley Park area. Unite’s student support
team works closely with our services to ensure that students receive appropriate wellbeing support while they
are living in Unite residences. A -
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Cost of Living Support for our students

Through collaboration with UWSU and generous support from the QHT, we designed and delivered a range of
proactive interventions this year to support students with the impact of the cost-of-living crisis. These included a
new Cost of Living Financial Assistance Scheme, open to all students who were impacted by increased costs,
especially in relation to household costs.

Student Wellbeing and Mental Health Serviceé

We have enhanced the provision of casework, transition and outreach work with students who have mental
health support needs, through the creation of additional Wellbeing Adviser and Mental Health Practitioner roles
in our Student Support Services. These.roles have extended the opportunities for us to work in partnership with
NHS services, ensuring that students have easy access to community health services where these are
required. Our new team of Student Wellbeing Ambassadors has worked creatively with our student
communities to promote positive approaches to mental wellbeing.

" Sustainable Development

Over the last 12 months, we have continued our contribution towards the 17 Sustainable Development Goals

(SDGs), developed by the United Nations as the blueprint to achieve a better and more sustainable future for

all. We acknowledge that we have a role to play in the achievement of the SDGs and recognise that we will all

benefit from engaging with them. We continue to embed the SDGs within-our strategic plans and ambitions and

" use these as a framework to report on our progress and achievements to the benefit of students, colleagues
and other stakeholders. :

We have fully embraced a commitment to the SDGs as part of our operations, teaching and research. This
year, we have placed a particular focus on how we engage our students with sustainable development; to
ensure we are providing students at all levels with a strong understanding of sustainability and the complex,
interconnected nature of social, environmental, and economic factors alongside a ‘sense of belonging to a
common humanity’ (Global Citizenship Education | United Nations).

This has led to the development of a new area of work, and an understanding of how we are contrlbutlng to-
~ SDG Goal 4.7: Education for Sustainable Development (ESD).

Our Sustainability Team and CETI are driving our progress on ESD by adapting existing models of learning,
developing new approaches to learning, empowering our academic colleagues to become sustainable
development educators, and continuing to transform our campuses into ESD learning ecosystems. This work
will be done in collaboration with students and academic colleagues.

As part of this developing ESD programme, 2022/23 saw a successful second year of the Westminster Green
Fund. The Green Fund scheme was designed to offer all our students, regardless of their course, degree, or
level, with an opportunity to bring their sustainable project ideas to life. This year seven collaborative
colleagues/student teams were provided with funding: .

) Planet-fnendly denim — Experimentation with the use of bacterla to manufacture environmentally
sustainable indigo dyes for blue jeans. .

« Sustainable fashion hub — The creation of a dynamic focal point at Harrow Campus W|th the theme .
‘Fashion as Change’. The project will be exploring sustainability, collaboration, community,
entrepreneurship, education, and inspiration in fashion.

e Smart and sustainable weather station — The design and development of a low-power, minimal-
maintenance weather station with a multitude of sensors to measure temperature hum|d|ty pressure,
rainwater gauging, air quality etc.

¢ Furniture design in collaboration with Pedra Furada Transformation Workshop — The student designs
will be shared with the Pedra Furada workshop, a Brazilian social enterprise that makes furniture from
recycled plastic; they will realise the designs to sell at Global North price points.

o Green approach to microbial identification — The implementation of a new technology and technique in
Westminster Labs that will reduce the need for single-use plastic during the microbial identification

" process.

« . Rainwater harvesting — Exploration of issues around rainwater harvestmg in design and in practice by

trialling a rainwater collection point at Marylebone Campus.
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¢  Robotic recycler — A robust, remote-controlled arm to sort waste whlch will eliminate the need for direct
contact with waste processmg for recycling. ~

The next academic year will be a year of co-creation with students and colleagues across our University, with
our ESD plans being published by the end of 2023/24. Our focus will be on strategically embedding ESD.in our
current learning offer and creating new approaches to learning via practice- and project-based authentic
learning experiences. We will focus on guiding course ‘and module leaders and teaching colleagues through the
process and collaborating with studernits and UWSU to ensure the ESD vision accurately prepares students to
_lead a more sustainable world.

Our impact has been externally measured and recognised through submission for a fourth year to the Times
Higher Education (THE).Impact Ranking. Despite an increasing number of universities participating this year,
we have been recognised in the top 20% of universities worldwide for our work. on contributing towards the
SDGs. This is the third year in a row that we have maintained our high overall ranking, with notable
achievements across several individual SDGs, including maintaining a posmon of top 20% globally in SDG 5
Gender Equality and SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities. -

Our highest scoring SDG this year was SDG 12: Responsrble Consumption and Production, where we ranked
in the top 10% gIobaIIy hlghllghtlng our commitment to sustalnablllty within our operations.

We continue to work collaboratively with coIIeagues, students and external stakeholders, to ensure that the
SDGs are reflected in everything we do. We continue to offer sustainability-focused workshops to colleagues
and students, work closely with all at Westminster to develop new ways of embedding sustainable thinking into
our practices and ensure that sustainability is reflected in our University wide policies and practices. Key to this
is managing our operational impact, with the following projects being undertaken in the past year: -

e Our Environmental Management System (EMS) was re-certified with the Gold Award through the
EcoCampus Scheme. Our EMS provides a robust framework to manage sustainability and helps us
improve our environmental performance. ,

¢ Westminster's first ‘vertically integrated project (VIP) was launched Cavendish Living Lab focuses on
developing sustainable solutions to: food waste and urban food-growing, plastic pollution, and water

. waste/management.

e Secured a £1.2m grant as part of the Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme, to transform one of our
* buildings at our Harrow campus by installing a low-carbon heating system, improving the energy
-efficiency of the building and adding solar panels to generate renewable energy. This will reduce the
" carbon impact of the building significantly and is a great step towards achlevmg our net-zero ambitions.

e Maintained the Hedgehog Friendly Campus Gold Award accreditation.

Committed to externally verifying our carbon emlssrons and makmg year on year |mprovements by
becoming certified through Planet Mark. |
Achieved the Food for Life Served Here Bronze Award, affirming commitment to sustainable catering.
. Entered into a new three-year contract for 100% renewable electncuty supply to all our sites.
Continued organisation of active travel sessions.
Formation of a growing spaces community group to aid maintenance of the Unlver3|ty s green spaces.
Created a new role in the Sustainability Team (Sustainable Development Advisor) dedicated to
_ Education for Sustainable Development (ESD).
-+~ Co-organised for the second year in a row in the London Student Sustalnablllty Conference, this time
collaborating with 10 London universities.
e Collaborated with academic colleagues to-host thé first annual SDG Workshop for UmverSIty
colleagues. :

Information on our Carbon Management and Reporting is available on page 28.

BEING ME, BEING WESTMINSTER OUR PEOPLE STRATEGY

-~ In 2022/23 our People Strategy Belng Me, Being Westminster was reviewed and updated to take us through to
2029. Measurement of our People Strategy key performance indicators (KPls) evidence that we have improved
both academic and professional services performance against all wellbeing, personal and professional
development and colleague community KPis, with more work to do over the coming twelve months to reduce

- the gap further and move closer to our set targets. The remaining KPls, to be reported on later in 2023, reflect
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our Professional Development Review (PDR) completion rates for all colleagues and we have developed a
single overall diversity pay gap KPI to provide an indicator of progress on a broad range of activities that are
monitored, reviewed and reported.

We appointed to the role of Director Péople, Culture and Wellbeing with one of the first measures put in place
being the rebranding of the Human Resources department to People, Culture and Wellbeing. This better
reflects the full range of work of the directorate that feeds directly into delivering Being Westminster.

"During the period we continued to focus on workforce planning through annual Workforce F’eople Plans aligning
priority actions to the University’s strategic objectives and the People Planning Charter, as well as providing
support to workforce changes, a rebalancing of the academic profile towards early career academics and
increasing diversity in certain areas. Professional services workforce plannlng data is currently being collated
and we will progress this work through 2023/24!

We launched a n‘ew,PDR online platform recording a positive level of engagement with the new process and
system across the University. Alongside this we continue to deliver our PDR training programme to support
managers and colleagues get the best experience from their PDR meetings and discussions, encouraging
accountability and ownership of the process from both the reviewer and reviewee - whilst emphasising the
importance of having SMART objectives linked to wider departmental/strategic priorities; focussed feedback to
support colleague with understanding their areas of success, strength and growth; and clear development goals
allgned with both the mdwudual s role and personal career aspirations.

We continued to review and improve our colleague development offer resulting in a positive increase in
engagement and take-up of workshops, particularly across our wellbeing workshops. We have seen an
increase in requests for support with planning and facilitation of team development events and away days
across both academic and professional service areas. Key drivers for this have been to reconnect teams post-
COVID, providing an opportunity to re-establish relationships and be together in-person again following a long-
period of remote working for most teams; refocus priorities and align activities to our Being Westminster
strategy; and provide a space to problem-solve and develop creative solutions to improve ways of working and
address challenges. ThIS work continues to have a really positive impact on team culture, wellbeing, and
motlvatlons

Coaching development continues to have a positive impact for colleagues and is proving to be increasingly
popular and-well-recognised as a valuable self-development intervention as we progress forward. We have
seen an increase in demand for individual coaching support across areas of personal-development, wellbeing, -
and leadership development over the last year. We continue to review our coaching offer with our pool of -
trained coaches, both internal and external, and ¢onsider new ways in which we can meet the needs of our -
colleagues. We have recently launched and trialled group coaching as a concept which appears to be working
well and will support us to meet the increased demands as well'as manage our costs and resources. Followmg
evaluation of this we hope to embed this as part of our coaching offer for 2023/24.

- We developed and approved our Colleague Wellbeing Action Plan this year. Progress against actions will be
reviewed three times a year and the Colleague Wellbeing'and Engagement Survey recorded one in ten
colleagues moving from the lower to the higher levels of general wellbeing compared to the survey 12 months
ago. We have committed to and begun work to further engage colleagues to work together to find solutions and
provide support to mitigate issues hlghlrghted through the survey in crmcal areas of workload, wellbelng,
communication and development .

There has been significant activity across Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) with events and programmes
over the last twelve months including our two key leadership programmes for this year, Aurora and Diversifying
Leadership, both of which have delivered impactful learning experiences for colleagues. Along8|de this our EDI
colleague development programme has expanded and has attracted positive momentum, we've been pleased
to see an increase in engagement with our EDI workshops such as ‘Challenging Micro-aggressions and Being
an Active Bystander’, ‘Neurodiversity’, and ‘Challenging Unearned Privilege and Navigating Intersectionality’.
We look forward to further developing the programme next academic year and broadening the range of
workshops offered to-support colleagues in enhancmg their EDI knowledge, skills and practice and measuring
the lmpact of the programme.
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As part of ongoing work to respond to the OfS Statement of Expectations on preventing and addressing
harassment and sexual misconduct, an external provider delivered two days of ‘trauma-informed’ development
training in January 2023 to a group of colleagues whose job role has a prescribed role within the processes
and/or who support as mvestlgatlng officers and panel members in this area of casework. This development
activity will be repeated in September 2023 to a second cohort of colleagues

" The Safety, Health and Wellbeing (SHW) team managed the reduction of our COVID-19 specific arrangements -
to reflect the significant decrease in the risk of harm posed by the ongoing pandemic. The team's focus is very
much returning to business. as usual, supporting the community to recover and thrive, as well as reducing the
risk of harm and increasing levels of compliance with legislation and best practice. Strong links developed
during the pandemic with other London HEIs and local authority public health leads continue to prove mutually
beneficial. To support all colleagues to play their part in creating and maintaining a safe environment for
everyone we redeveloped and relaunched our risk assessment e-learning module this year.

We continue to support our Sustainability team to accelerate our efforts to integrate the SDGs across our
University and continue to support the annual submission to the Times Higher Education Impact Ranking to
enable us to monitor and improve our performance and social, environmental, and economic impacts at a local,
national and global level. :

AN ESTATE FOR THE FUTURE

Our physical estate remains a critical part in enabling the delivery of Being Westminster. Our estate will
continue to reflect our special place in the heart of London and at Harrow. Our physical estate inspires learning,
provides a strong sense of community, and provides the best possible experience for all those using our
buildings. The Court of Governors signed off our new Estates Strategy in July 2023. The Strategy forms the
foundation of the work we have already started in delivering our estate plan and we will be developing detailed
master plans for each campus in coming months. We intend.to create a series of campus-based workshops to .
enable us to share the Estates Strategy and discuss the master plans for each campus. These workshops will
enable a high level of collaboration with the campus users to ensure the development of their campus reflects
their inputs.

The master plan for each campus will be developed to reflect the development needs for each campus from an
operational perspective, including the replacement of old inefficient parts of the estate and plant and equipment
that has been identified for replacement. This ongoing programme of investment will dovetail with the large-
scale refurbishment and development of the estate, defined in the Estates Strategy, and sponsored by our
Heads of College. This investment is focused on supporting our students and colleagues’ experience and will
include the development of new, authentic teaching spaces to support all our existing and new students as
numbers increase over the next five years.

We will use these master plans to forecast ongoing cash flow requirements and identify and manage
programme risks over the next five years. The development of the master programme for all campuses is an
essential output for our Estates Strategy as we consider large scale, high value investment projects, such as 29
Marylebone Road and the Student Hub at 115 New Cavendish Street, alongside lower cost but no less

" important investment projects. ‘

We continue to work toward introducing real time space utilisation tools, to create more data-led decisions on
space utilisation, investment planning and refurbishment/new build designs. This data is considered particularly
important when looking at the profile of office utilisation and will support the development of high capacity,
flexible working environments that better serve the needs of all colleagues and students.

In the last 12 months we have completed the following capital investment projects:

« Nearly £6 million invested in plant and equipment across the estate, introducing more reliable, more
efficient systems; alterations to the building management systems, low energy lighting, lifts and a
~continuation of investment in toilets and general teaching spaces.
e Harrow — a new broadcasting suite and authentic TV production and presentatlon space, ‘creation of a
new botanical garden space.
¢ Harrow Hall of Residence - completlon of the fourth phase of refurblshment to student bedrooms
shared kitchens and circulation space:
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e Little Titchfield Street - the first phase of the project to revive the Soho Poly Theatre has been
completed.

e Marylebone — new, improved entrance and welcome desks for the student centre the development of a
new Dwell Park space in the entrance, funded by the QHT, a very popular development at this busy
campus; the creation of a second Bloomberg surte to supplement the heawly utilised space adjacent to

~ the learning platform.

¢ New Cavendish Street — relocation of the library facilities from Little Trtchfreld Street, mtegratron within
newly refurbished library space at New Cavendish Street; new flexible office facilities; creation of new
and improved facilities for the teaching of psychology including additional research cubicles. )

¢ Regents Street — conversion of office space to high quality teaching space.

s Wells Street - Whole fagade refurbishment and new windows.

Our major projects for investment continue to move forward. Harrow and the Harrow One Public Estate

programme have seen significant progress. The new road, that serves the hospital and forms the southern

boundary to the Harrow Campus, is nearing completion. There has been considerable work in refining the

overall master plan for Harrow that now includes the development of a 500-bed halls of residence and hard

. surface games spaces. Also under consideration is the development of a standalone space for our Students’
Union. The development of a new sports hall obtained planning permission in April 2023 and is programmed

for completion early in 2024 _

The developme_nt of the Student Hub project remains a priority at New Cavendish Street. Work on the
development of an acceptable solution for planning has been ongoing as well as technical design of the new
building. Careful consideration of how this new building fits with the wider master plan for New Cavendish
Street has-been critical and later in 2023 we will be opening up the planning process for public consultation.

Marylebone Halls now has a programme for refit starting in June 2024. At the time of writing we are completing
more detailed structural investigations to ensure the whole building will be step free to all floors with a resilient
lift solution, both key outputs for the refurbishment. We are also carefully consrdenng the investment to make
this building as energy efficient as possrble

29 Marylebone Road reached a key mllestone in May 2023 when planning permlssroh was granted. The
procurement of the contractor to take this prolect on srte is nearlng completron We anticipate going on site in
November 2023.

The development of our programme for change as we move to a dlgltally enabled timetable process has taken
some significant steps forward this year. There is still work to do as we focus on the development of our
timetabling software and internal process. This will support the key outcomes of this project in delivering much
earlier publication of student/colleague’s trmetables with a new focus on the personalisation of student
timetables by students, for students. : .

DIGITAL WESTMINSTER: OUR STRATEGY .2020-23 '

We continue to improve our digital environment in line with stakeholder feedback and our Digital Strategy.
We regularly involve our students in the co-creation of their digital journey and a review of our managed
learning environment has gathered feedback on needs from significant numbers of colleagues and students.
- Much of our feedback is derived from direct engagement with our students alongside the use of the JISC Digital
Insights Surveys (as below). This is leading to a number of enhancements to the digital 'environment to enhance -
" the ease through which students and colleagues can access different information and services and.to provide a
high degree of integration across the digital environment.

We continue to improve the digital capabilities of our physical spaces, ensuring that there is a seamless
connection between the physical and digital to support the learning of our students. This not only serves to
enable academic colleagues to detach themselves from the constraints of the lectern but also opens up the
possibility for students to play a more directly active role i in the classroom space ensuring their Iearnlng is
authentic and immersive. :

We collect feedback and measure the success of our digital environment through the JISC Digital Experlence
In5|ghts Surveys. These perceptions of the quality of the digital envrronment dr|ve the education and Iearnlng
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experiences of students, and the working experiences of colleagues, and are measured by the percentage of -
students and colleagues rating our dlgltal serwces as ‘good’, ‘excellent’ or ‘best |mag|nable

Our student survey was most recently conducted in January 2023.In that, 95% of students rated the overall
quality of our online and digital learning environment as either best imaginable, excellent, good or average. This
rating continues to be in line with the sector.as a whole as measured by the JISCs benchmarking exercise that
is run post-closure of the surveys. We also continue to see our students as being more positive than the sector
in relation to the extent to which their university was supporting their digital skills development and ensuring
they have high digital dexterity in preparation for their working lives.

In January 2023, more than 92% of our academic colleagues rated.the support for teaching online as ‘best
imaginable’, ‘excellent’, ‘good’ or ‘average’ and 95% rated the quality of the online teaching environment'as
average or above. In response to whether or not the digital environment allowed them to assess students fairly,
only 4% of respondents disagreed. :

Also in January 2023, across our professional services colleagues, 975 rated the online working environment
- as average or above (88% rating it above average) and 96% rated the support for working effectively online as
. average or above (92% rating it above average).

We continue to strive for further excellence in our digital environment and have made significant achievements

i our cyber security posture, our student facing systems, and addressing the digital exclusion agenda for our
students. We are due to publish our latest Digital Westminster Strategy later this year. .

PUBLIC AND PRIVATE BENEFIT

. Publ/c beneflt :

The Umversﬁy of Westminster is a public benefit entity. Our strategic obje_otives are stated on page 10 and our
2022/23 academic achievements are summarised on pages4 to 7.

The University's Court of Governors is the institution’s governing body. It meets at least five times a year and is
ultimately responsible for the effective conduct of the activities of the University, including its strategic
development, its educational character and mission and its financial health. The members.of the Court of -
Governors are the trustees of the charity and directors of the company. In setting and reviewing the University's
objectives and activities, the trustees have due regard to the Charity Commission’ s Public Benefit Guides;
Public benefit: the public benefit requirement (PB1), Public benefit: running a chanty (PB2) and Public benefit:
‘reporting (PB3), published 2013 and updated 2014.

In accordance with the Charities Act 2011 the Office for Students is the respon5|ble body for regulatlng
universities as charities on behalf of the Charity Comm|SS|on ,

" The objects for which the University is established are:
. ‘To establish, carry on and conduct a university.

+  To advance learning and knowledge in all their aspects and to provide industrial, commercial,
professional, and scientific education and training

+ To prowde courses of education or technical study both full tlme and part time for students at all levels
of and in all branches of education. .

+ To provide opportunities and facilities for research of any kind, including the publication of results,
papers, reports, treatises, theses, or other material in connection with or arising out of such research.

s To provide for the recreational, social and well-being needs of students of the University.

The objects are récorded in the Articles of Association and reproduced in the Statement of Corporate
Governance and Internal Controls. '
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The Charity’s beneficiaries, as reflected in the objects, are the undergraduate and postgraduate students
enrolled at the University and the public at Iarge who stand to benefit through our teaching, research and
i knowledge exchange activities.

!

Pr/vate beneflt

Commercially funded research and some types of knowledge exchange actrvuty may generate the possibility of - -
private benefit. Our trustees recognise that any private benefit must be incidental. The Research Committee is
responsible through the University’s governance structure for the development and implementation of our .
strategy and polrcnes on research and research degrees.

CARBON 'MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING

We are committed to reducing our energy consumption and carbon impact as reflected in our commitment to’
the SDGs. We continue to work towards our ambitious target to reach net zero for Scope 1 and 2 carbon
emissions by 2035, with a reduction in Scope 3 carbon emissions by 50% by 2035.

To support this, we have this year completed comprehensive decarbonisation plans for all our sites to bring
together key elements of our net-zero planning and develop clear actions to outline how we will act to reduce
carbon emissions up to 2035. These decarbonisation plans include:
+ Measuring our impacts: We have srgned up to Planet Mark’s Net Zero Certification. This programme wil
' measure and verify our carbon emissions and ensure we have credible, science-based net zero targets in
place. We have also expanded our energy monitoring system to ensure that we proactively make energy
reductions and carbon management improvements across our sites. This includes developing a
_ methodology to measure our scope 3 carbon emissions in‘a more robust way.
- o Offering Carbon theracy training: We have continued to offer students and colleagues the opportunity to
" take part in Carbon Literacy Training. This training supports colleagues and students to develop a common
understanding of how climate change will affect them and understand what actlons they can take to mitigate
this, both personally and as part of the University community. '

s Focusing on energy reduction: We have made continuous |mprovements to our sites by ensuring that :
energy efficiency and environmental improvements are considered in our capital projects and programme of -
refurbishments. Specifically, we have continued to upgrade lighting, heating and building fabric to ensure
that our campus operates in the most sustainable way possible and offers a comfortable enwronment for
building users.
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GHG Emission Data for period 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2023 * o ,
’ 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023
Scope 1 (tonnes CO2e) :
. : 4,207 3,737 3,502
Direct Emissions - Gas ) =
Direct Emissions - Diesel consumption 0 0 0
Scope 2 (tonnes CO2e) . )
- 2,421 - 2,202 2,398
Energy Indirect Emissions - Electricity
-| Scope 3 (tonnes CO2e) : _
, o : 3 3 3
Indirect Emissions - Waste Disposal to incineration
Indirect Emissions - Waste disposal to landfill 0.1 0.1 .01
Total Emissions :
: 6,628 5,939 5900
Total Scope 1&2 Emissions ‘ :
Total Emissions (Scope 1,2 & 3) 6,631 : 5,942 5903
Intensity measurement- Scope 1 &2 only (ton’nes CO2e) A
0.037 0.034 10.037
Intensity ratio - tonnes Co2e perm2 Gross Internal Area '
(GIA)
Inténsity ratio - tonnes Co2e per capita 0.35 0.32 - 0.035
Energy Usage
Gas Consum‘p.tion (kWh) 20,727,001 20,509,685 19,456,876
Electricity Cohsumption (kwh) - 11,403,904 + 11,151,699 - 12,619,321
Diesel Consumption (Litres) 0 0 0
Purchaséd Electricity Renewable Percentage (%) 100 100 100
Purchased Green Gas Percentage (%) ' 20 .20 25
Notes .
* University procured 100% electricity from renewable sources since 2012 but C02 emissions -
has been‘included in scope 2 calculation

METHODOLOGY

We report on Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions sourceés as required under the Streamlined Energy and
Carbon Reporting (SECR) legislation. The methodology we used to calculate our GHG emissions and energy
use is the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have also used the GHG Reporting
Protocol — Corporate Standard. Data has been calculated using Government emission Greenhouse gas .
reporting: conversion factors 2023 for all carbon streams. The chosen intensity. measurement ratios are (1) total
gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per capita and ( 2) total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per
gross mternal area (GIA). )
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TRADE UNION ACTIVITY | Y

The Trade Union (Facmty Time Publication Requirements) Regulatlons 2017 reqUIre the Unlver5|ty to publlsh
information on trade union facility time annually.

The table of data for the reporting period 1 AprII 2022 to 31 Mareh 2023 is ae follows:

Table 1 - Relevant Union Officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the relevant

" period : ' ‘ : 33
Full-time equivalent employee number _

100% FTE ‘ o ‘ : : - |

90% FTE . o SR ' )

85% FTE ‘ ‘ L | 1

' 50% FTE ' ' - : : . 1

" Table 2 - Percentage of time spent on facility time

: _ . A Number of
Percentage of time : ' : employees
0% : L A A ‘ 13
1-50% - ‘ o . _ 20
51-99% - ‘ ' ' -
100% ' : : R : -
Table 3 - Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time
‘ : ' Figures
Total cost of facility time - A - £71,617
 Total pay bill ' o o L A £99,187,106
Percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time : _ o 0.072%
Table 4 - Paid relevant trade union activities
Time spent on paid trade union activities* as a % of total paid facility time _
hours - . o : 57.17%
Time spent on paid trade union duties** as a % of‘total paid facility time hours . .42.83%

* Activities encompasé such thingslas branch meetings, el'ect_ions‘and conference attendance
** Duties encompass such things as casework, representation of employees
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FINANCIAL REVIEW .

The University has delivered another strong financial performance which again has been driven by the
continued growth in student numbers, recruiting very well in the international market for our post graduate
courses. As a result, the University financial position continues to strengthen and this year a surplus before
other gains and losses of £22.2m achieves an 8.5% surplus to income return. This year has also seena ~
reversal in the Local Government Pension Scheme position. The £64m pension liability reported in 2022
turning to a £17.1m pension asset; further commentary on this is included on page 35. '

- The University’s financial strategy is designed to generate a self-sufficient cashflow to enable mvestment in
people, buildings ‘and technology sufficient to provide the investment needed to deliver on the ‘Being
Westminster’ 2029 strategy and to ensure the continuing financial sustainability of the University. To
achieve this the University focuses on two key financial indicators: an operating surplus of 6% to income

- and to maintain a current liquidity ratio greater than 2:1. Salary costs being the single largest expense for
the University are maintained at levels in line with the sector average, after adjusting for year-end pension
scheme accounting movements. : '

The key results for fhe‘ﬁve years ended 31 July 2023 are summarised in the table below. -

FY18/19 FY19/20 | FY20/21 { = FY21/22 FY22/23
£m £m £m fm £m
Income : 210.3 216.4 215.8° 243.0 260.4
Ekpenditure ' } (193.0) (197.3) | (207.8) - (225.6) (238.2)
Operating surplus before exceptional ' - : :
~ items and other gains and iosses 17.3 191 | |- 8.0 17.4 - 22.2
-Capital expenditure 15.1 221 ; 20-.7 . 26.2 .. 29.2
Borrowings ) ‘ : 34.3 307 269 | 248 23.2
Net assets 260.3 222.0 2260 | - 405 5 . 5143 B

-Student numbers increased to 18,792 fuII time equwalents (FTEs) from.18,046 FTEs in 2022, and this is
reflected in the year-on-year increase in tuition fee income.

Cashflow has remained strong and a net cash inflow from ope'rating activities of £48m has been achieved
~ and the University cash position was strengthened with a balance sheet total of cash deposits and short—
term investments of £162.6m. -

Capital investment has continued £29.2m has been spent maintaining and enhancing our estate and digital
infrastructure, dlgltally enabling our learning spaces and providing the additional capacrty to accommodate
the continuing increase in student numbers. .
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Income’

Total income of £260. 4m increased by 7:2% from levels £243.0m achleved in 2022 which reercts the
mcrease in other income, post covid and the Increased tuition fees.

A summary of where the University income is derived from is set out in the charts beIow

2023 University Group Income

12022 University Group Income

Research grants
and contracts,
£6.15m,2.4%

Tuition fees and
Education
Contracts,
_LEISQm, 79.8%

grants, £16.19m,
6.2%

‘ tnvestment Oonations,
income, £4.80m, £4.85m, 1.9%
18% :
Other income, z Funding council
£20.75m, 8.0% g —

income, £0.54m, Donations, £5.13m,
0.2% 2.1%
Other income,
£17.09m, 7.0% —

Fundmg council

grants, £14.19m,

Research grants 5.8%
and contracts,
£5.35m, 2. 2% ¥

Tuition fees and
Education

Contracts,
£200.72m, 82.6%

Tuition Fees and Education contracts account for 80% (2022 83%) of total income. Undergraduate
students account for 75% (2022: 74%) of this income. Income received from Undergraduate students . -

- increased by £6.5m from the prior year following a successful recruitment of international undergraduate
students which comipensates for the continued fall in home Undergraduate students.

Other income increased by £3.7m over the prior year reflecting the return to full operation and growth
returning to near full capacity for residential and commercial service activity.
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Operating Expenditure

Total expenditure increased by £12.6m (5.6%) in 2023 to £238‘2m‘. (2022: £225.6m) and a
summary breakdown is provided in the charts below: ' .

2023 University Expenditure

~

2022 University Expendrture

£18.56m, 7.8%

Other operating
expenses,
£76.69m, 32.2?6

. { £139.50m, 58.6%

. : Interest & other finance
—— costs, £3.46m, 1.5%
| ———

" Salary costs,

I
I
| -
|
»
|
I
I

expenses,

-Other operating

£65.76m, 29.6%

Imeresl& other finance
Deprecrauon costs, £4.58m,:2.0%
£17 96m, 8.0%

A key measure of salary spend in the sector is salary spend asa percentage of i mcome given this is
the University’s largest area of spend, 58.6%. Total salary spend for the year is £139.5m as .
compared to £136.3m in 2021/22. The salary to income ratio, a key metric used to manage this area
of spend is 53.6% (2022: 56.1%) which is'in Ilne with the target ratro of 54%. '

Ot,her operating costs have increased by £9.9m to £76.7min 2022/23 (2021/22; £66.8m) which
reflects inflationary pressures on key areas of spend together with additional spend supporting

students and colleagues during the year with various cost of living initiatives. -

r

The UniversIty spende a significant sum year-on-year maintaining the estate, this 'year capital‘spend
equaled £29.2m on upgrading the estates and IT infrastructure. The depreciation charge for 2022/23

is £18.6m(2021/22: £18. Om).

Interest and Other Frnance costs for 2022/23 total £3.5m (2022: £4.6m), the reduction reflectlng the
repayment of the Deutsche Bank loan in the prior year together with a reduction in pensnon lnterest ,
payments No new loans were entered into in the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Spend

During the year £29.2m was sbent on capital improvements to maintain our infrastructure, funding for this
. activity was provided from internally generated cash flows. Over the last five years £99.2m has been
invested in the Umversrty estate as illustrated.

Five year capital spend
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wem Annual capital spend w——— Cumulative capital spend

Significant investment is planned ever the next five years upgrading the estate to be fit for the.
" future. Investment will also be made in discrete-projects expandrng the Unrversﬂy residences,
creating a student hub space and the development of the 29 Marylebone Road Enterprlse Centre.

Net Assets i

" After recognising other galns and losses arising from investment property market value
movements and actuarial gains the total reported comprehénsive profit for the yearis £108.8m .
(2022: £179.5m). As a result, the University Group net asset posmon has mcreased to £514.3m
(2022: £405.5m).

Cash flow and //qurd/ty : “

The net cash inflow from operatlng activities was £48.0m. After accountrng for net cash flows from
“investing activities and for financing-and borrowing costs, the year end cash deposits and short-term
investments totalled £162.6m, an increase in cash deposits of £21.1m from the prior year._

"The University continues to pursue a low-risk approach:to managing investments and liquidity. In
balancing risk against return, the University is more concerned to avoid risk than to maximise return.
However, the investments have yielded £4.8m in investment income (2022: £0.5m), benefiting from the
increase in interest rates. The Treasury Management Policy determines the limits in terms of the credit
ratings of institutions used for investments and on the sums placed with any one provider.- The
Resources Commlttee regularly review and approve the counter-party list. .

The year finished with net current assets of £122.3m (2022 £106.3m). A key element of our
finance strategy is to maintain a positive liquidity position - a key measure is to maintain a current
liquidity ratio (a measure of current assets to current Ilabrlmes) above a minimum level of 2:1. At the
financial year end this was 3:1.(2022: 2.9:1). .
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No addmonal borrowings were required in the year and at the year-end the outstanding loan
commitments were reduced by £1. 6m to £23.2m (2022: £24.8m).

Retirement Benefits : : .

The University Group recognises all pensron liabilities in so much as they can be reliably quant|f|ed
and attributed to the University and its subsidiaries. We participate in three multi-employer defined
benefit pension schemes. The Teachers’ Pension Scheme (TPS), to which most of our academic
colleagues belong, is unfunded. The majority of professional services colleagues are members of the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS); which is administered by the London Pension Fund
Authority (LPFA). There are also approximately 100 active members of staff in the Universities
Superannuation Scheme (USS). :

. Itis not possible to identify the University s share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the TPS.
Therefore, contributions are accounted for as if the TPS were a deflned contrlbutlon scheme and
pension costs are based on the amounts actually paid.

The University’s share of the LGPS scheme assets and liabilities can be determined on a
reasonable basis and, therefore, reported on the University’s Balance Sheet. Due to the more
favorable financial market conditions and the increase in returns on corporate bonds the £64.0m
LGPS: pension liability at 31 July 2022 has reversed and the actuarial valuation of the University-
share of the LGPS at 31 July 2023 has become a pension asset of £17.1m. The actuarial
assumptions, which contributed to the significant reduction- of the pension liability to pension asset
was primarily in respect of the discount rate increasing from 3.4% in 2021/22 to 5.15% in 2022/23.
The discount rate used to assess the future pension liability position is based on financial market
performance linked to the market return on corporate bonds, at the ac¢ounting date. As LGPS
Funds are usually invested in a range of asset classes, the performance of the assets may be
quite different from that of accounting for the pension liabilities and so the results can be very
volatile from year to year, this reversal highlights this.

Provision is also made in respect of the Umversnty S obllgatlon to fund the USS def|C|t which at 31 July .
2023 was £4.3m (2022: £5.0m). .

Outlook

" There continues to be many changes in the internal and external environment and the University
needs to be robust but agile to respond to the opportumtles and challenges that face us now, and in
the future. .

The rising mflatlonary challenges and the impact of this on increasing costs together with pressure on
Government departments to-find savmgs continue to impact on the Higher Education sector in an
adverse way. However, we remain well positioned to respond to those challenges and to continue to
deliver on some of our most pressing societal and external needs: an older population; the needs of
the young (a group that has started to grow again from 2020): a growing awareness that mental health -
matters and of the effects of stress; digital and wrtual learning; and |nternat|ona| recruitment and
expansion. S

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

We manage rlsk through the risk management process described in the Statement of Corporate
Governance and Intérnal Controls. :

As with any change environment, we recognise the risks associated with the changing HE landscape
and seek to control these risks through the University risk register.

In February 2023, the University Executive Board refreshed the risk register, updating key risks that
might impact on the dellvery of the 2029 Being Westmlnster Strategy. 18 key risks were |dent|f|ed
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that are being managed to dellver our strateglc objectlves and that are key to our long-term financial
sustainability. -

The important risks and 'unce‘rtainties that remain relevant and mitigations are noted below:

e . Failure to achieve student recruitment targets

Tuition fees are a substantial proportion of our total income and are dependent on delivering -

- annually successful recruitment and retention initiatives. We mitigate this risk through a
continuous review and refresh of our course portfollo together with a strategic focus designed to
improve the student experience.

'

¢ Meeting students’ expectations and delivering on the student experience

A key measure of student experience comes through the National Student Survey (NSS). This -
year the OfS introduced many changes. Although the results are not directly comparable to -
previous surveys there has been strong evidence of improvements in a number of areas,
however there remain a few areas needing improvement to meet student expectations. The .

~results from the survey adversely impact the Unlversuty in the ranklngs in all the Good Unlversny
Guides. ,

The University remains focused on improving all areas of poor performance to dehver a standard,
" high quality student experience across all academic disciplines.

e Policy, Regulatlon and Compliance

Potentlal changes to fees, minimum entry requirements, and other pohcy changes are all highly
significant challenges for the Higher Education sector over the comlng years and which are
constantly changing as government priorities change :

The Unlversny aims to mitigate against these risks through sound financial and strategic
planning and through playing an-influential .role m engaging with pollcy makers to actively
) shape policy and agenda-setting.

« Financing pension costs

- We have members in the LGPS, TPS and USS pension schemes, all of which continue to put an
increasing cost pressure on our finances as we respond to the contmumg increases in employer
contributions because of reVIsed funding requirements.

While we operate effective cost control measures in the management of our operations, pension

costs and contributions are not within our direct control. The University continues to proactively

monitor the pension horizon and continues to consider optlons to mitigate the future liability risks.

. IT systems and data securlty

The University has invested and WI|| continue to invest in new technologles and its network infrastructure
“ to enhance our students’ learning experience and to improve the way we work.

With the ever growing reliance on technology comes greater risk. IT systems, 'applicatibns and software
become ever more vital. A major disruption to our systems and network could have a significant impact
on student experience and staff working from home. We are also dependent on the national ‘
infrastructure and individual students’ and staff members’ access to the internet. Providing remote
access to new software packages to support digital Iearnlng and teaching increases the risks to the

- University of attempted hacking into our systems and other fraudulent attempts. The University has a
robust cyber security system and plans to mitigate those risks, but the risk cannot be entirely eliminated.

~

36 -



UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER
Strateglc report

STA!(EHQLDER ENGAGEMENT AND COMPANIES ACT SECTION S§172 STATEMENT

In accordance with section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 each. of our Members of Court acts in the way that
they consider, in good faith, would most likely promote the success of the UnlverS|ty ‘Our Members of Court

have regard, to the:

e likely consequences of any deC|S|ons in the Iong term
e interests of our students °
e interests of our colleagues : :
s the public benefit of the work we do and the need to ensure that any public funds are properly managed
e need to foster the University’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and other key
stakeholders .
« impact of the University’s operations on communities and the enwronment
« desirability of the University to maintaining a reputation for high standards of conduct.

The Court and its committees consider the potential consequences of its decisions on its key stakeholders in .
the long term, taking.into account a wide range of factors, as set out in the following pages. The Couirt fully
appreciates that the University can only grow sustainably through having regard to the views and needs of
these stakeholders, being its students, colleagues, partners and the wider community. Decisions made by the
Court are informed by the University’s mission, vision and values, as described in the next section of this report.
The Court agenda includes presentations and reports with regular updates on operational, performance and
people matters. The executive team attend Court meetings as do functional heads on a rotational basis, as
relevant to the agenda, to ensure that the Court is in touch with all parts of the organisation in order to inform its
judgments on longer term strategy. Both colleague and student members sit on the Court in order to ensure
regular engagement of all members to representatives of these two key groups. During the year, the Court
approved the new 2022-29 strategic plan as set out earlier in this report. The three priorities of-Safety, Health
and Wellbeing; our commitment to equality, equity, diversity and inclusion; and the bringing together of
collective energies to play our part in enabling a more sustainable and socially just world. This focus on our
priorities will shape the decisions and actions of the Court and underline the aim of the University to achieve
positive outcomes for all its stakeholders. c

Strategic report

The strategic report has been approved by the Court of Governors.

Lj |
.

Professor Lynne Berry
Chair of the Court of Governors
29 November 2023
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- Our vision

. Our University is a place where discoveries are made, barners are broken. Drver5|ty is celebrated and where
everyone'is welcome : '

Our people stand out as significant contributors to their communities — through thelr innovation, enterprise and
problem -solving-seeking to make the world amore sustamable healthier and better place. '

‘Qur m|SS|On '

To help students and colleagues from d|fferent backgrounds fulfil their. potential and contr:bute to a more '
sustamable equitable and healthier socrety .

Our values
Progressive: We look forvvards, anticipate what’s changing and embrace the new with energy and imagination.. -
Compassionate: We are thoughtful ahd sensrtlve supportive and encouragln‘g making time to talk, especr‘ally _
- when the pressure is on. We are inclusive, united, careful to consider.what enables each and every one of us to

play our part.

Responsible: Indrwdually and collectlvely we take responS|b|I|ty for our actions, work to the hlghest ethrcal
standards and help each other to do. the rlght thlng always.
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Status“and objects

The Unrversﬂy of Westminster is mcorporated under the Companres Actas a Company Limited by Guarantee
and not having a share caprtal

The University is also an exempt charrty in accordance with the Charltres Act 2011. In accordance with the
Charities Act 2011 the Office for Students is the responsrble body for regulating universities as charities on
behalf of the Charity Commrsswn . : :

The Court of Governors approved the University’s current Articles of Association in May 2021. The objects for.
which the Umversﬂy is established are set out in its Articles as: .

(Ay To establlsh carry on and conduct a unrversuty

(B) To advance Iearnrng and knowledge in all their aspects and to provide rndustnal commercral
‘ professional, and scientific education and training.

(C) To provide opportunities for learning and courses of education or technical study both full time and
part time for students at all levels of and. in all branches of education.

(D) To provide opportunities and facilities for research of any~kind including tne publication of results,
papers, reports, treatises, theses, or other material in connection with or arising out of such research.

(E) To p.rovide for the recreational, social and well-being needs of students of the University.
| Governance Codes

The Court of Governors has formally adopted the HE Code of Governance (revised September 2020) and in
May 2021 formally adopted the Charity Code of Governance for Larger Charities (2020). The Court of
Governors is committed to the values expressed in the Codes and members apply the good governance
practice written into the Codes in the execution of their responsibilities as governors, directors, and trustees.
We introduce new governors and independent (non-governor) committee members to the expectations of the
Codes during the induction process? and they are reflected in the Court of Governors Code of Conduct. The
Court of Governors considers the University’s submissions under the Office for Students’ Prevent Duty

* monitoring-framework and reviews annually our Code of Practice on Freedom of Speech*5. The Court of
‘Governors has also adopted the Committee of University Chairs’ Higher Education Senior Staff Remuneration
Code® (revised November 2021) and the CUC® HE Audit Committees Code of Practice (May 2020).

During 2022, Halprn conducted an mdependent assessment of the effectrveness of our governance?’&7 and
concluded that governarice is compliant with the principles set out in the HE Code of Governance, the HE Audit
Committees Code of Practice, the HE Remuneration Code and the.Charity Code of Governance. This report
uses footnotes to highlight where the Court of Governors.has applied these Codes.

Public benefit

" The members of the Court of Governors are the trustees of the Charity. In setting and revtewing the University's
objectives and activities, the trustees have due regard to the Charity Commission’s Public Benefit Guides;
Public benefit: the public benefit requirement (PB1), Public benefit: running a charity (PB2), and Public beneflt
reporting (PB3), published 2013 and updated 20148, .

3 HE Code Primary Element 5 — effectiveness
4 HE Code Primary Element 1 - accountability
5 HE Code Primary Element 2 — sustainability
8 Committee of University Chairs :
7 hitps://www.westminster.ac.uk/about-u s/our-unlversny/corporate |nformat|on/governance -and- structure/court-
of-governors
8 HE Code Primary Element 6 - engagement
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Public beneﬁt (continued)

The Charity"s beneficiaries, as reflected in the objects, are the students enrolled at the University and the public
at large who stand to benefit through the teaching and research undertaken at tne University of Westminster.

v

The University’s charity gateway page is Westminster.ac.uk/about—es/our-universitv/corporate-
information/charitable-status*
The Court of Governors -

The Governors are also dlrectors of the Unuversﬂy in its status as a company and trustees of the
University inits status asa charity.

In Iine with the HE Code of Governance th’e Court of Governors is “collectively responsible and accountable for
institutional activities, approving all final decisions on matters of fundamental concern within its rem/t’ 4 and
prov:des strategic leadership in line with the charity’s aims and values"9

The Governors of the University during the year ended 31 July 2023 are listed below.

Appointed (A) or Retired or Committee membership
- reappointed (R) resigned ] )
Professor Lynne Berry . ‘ ' R : Governance and Nominations,
Chair : _ Remuneration- .
Lin Phillips Deputy Chair . : Governance and Nominations,
; . Remuneration
Canon David Stanton Vice- Co Audit, Remuneration
Chair '
Mei Xin. Wang Vice-Chair : ’ Remuneration, Resources
Nandini Aggarwal | 1 July 2023 (R)
Professor Dibyesh Anand g 3 June 2023
Justin Bairamian ) . Resources
“Taruna Bangia .1 July 2023 (A) . Academic Council
Professor Peter Bonfield ) - Academic Council, Governance
. and Nominations, Resources .
Victoria Foster . ) ] . : Audit'®, Resources™
Sean Griffiths 4 June 2023 (A) e ’
Sara Hafeez . , s
Professor AIexandra ) ' 22 November 2022 | Academic Council
Hughes .
Dr Sal Jarvis 23 November 2022 (A) Academic Council
Jameela Khan . 1 December 2022 (A) : Audit
Professor Graham Meikle : . ’ ' Academic Council, Governance
and Nominations
Charlotte Morgan _ . ' Audit" Resources'®
Helen Owen ’ ) 30 November 2022 | Audit.
Jane Robson ) ' . ' 'Governance and Nomlnatlons
Professor Fiona Ross . ) _ Audit, Governance and
. ’ B Nominations Committee
Matthew Smith : ) 27 November 2022. | Audit
Philomine Wales - o : Resources

Simon Wylie . | 30 November 2022 | Resources

® Charity Code Principle 2 - leadership
10 To 27 November 2022
" From 28 November 2022 -
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The Court of Governors, which meets formally at least five times a year, comprises up to 18 independent (non-
executive) governors; three co-opted (colleague) governors; two co-opted (student) governors, and two ex-
officio governors (the Vice-Chancellor and the nominated Deputy or Pro-Vice-Chancellor)3. The co- opted
(colleague) governors are nominated by the Academic Council, academic colleagues, and professional services
.colleagues through an election process and the student governors are elected officers nominated by the
Students’ Union. There is a clear separation of the roles of the non-executive Chair and the Chief Executive
(the Vice-Chancellor)*. The Court of Governors has between one and seven current vacancies for independent
governors'2. The Governance and Nominations Committee has worked with a talent advisory firm during the
period to recruit candidates to join the membership from August and December 2023.

The Court of Governors approves the University's long-term objectives and strategies and provides overall
financial and organisational control*. It delegates responsibility for operations to the Vice-Chancellor who,
supported by UEB, implements the Court of Governors’ policy, and develops and manages the University’s
business to meet its financial objectives and standards of quality and services in education and research?.

Further information about the Court of Governors (including meeting minutes, member biographies, the

- appointment process, terms of office for governors, committee responsibilities and membership, and outcomes
of effectiveness reviews?) are published on our website: .https://www. westmmster ac.uk/about-us/our-
university/corporate- mformatlon/qovernance and-structure.

Statutory committees of the Court?

The Academic Council® meets up to five times a year. During the period it comprised 19 colleagues (including
the Vice-Chancellor as Chair), the President of the University of Westminster Students’ Union (UWSU) and two
currently registered students. The Council is the supreme academic deliberative and decision-making body
responsible for strategic oversight of all academic provision and considers a broad range of issues that relate
directly to our academic direction and focus. The Council approves policies for the support of students, codes of
behaviour, disciplinary and appeals procedures and has responsibility for oversight of our academic
collaborations and partnerships®.

The Audit and Risk Committee® meets up to five times a year and comprises four independent governors,
including the Chair Charlotte Morgan'3. The Committee reviews the work of our external and internal auditors
and reviews our annual financial statements and accounting policies at a meeting attended by members of the
Resources Committee. The Audit and Risk Committee considers detailed reports on risk management, control,
governance, and value for money. The Committee meets the external and internal auditors on their own for
independent discussion and members meet privately in advance of each meeting. There iS NO Cross-
representation between this Committee and the Resources Committee.

The Governance and Nominations Committee?® usually meets three times a year and comprises four
independent governors, including the Chair Professor Lynne Berry, plus the Vice-Chancellor, the University
Secretary and Chief Operating Officer and one of the academic co-opted (colleague)'govérnors on the Court
(Professor Graham Meikle). The Committee advises the Court on the effectiveness of governance structures
and arrangements and during the period has led the periodic governance effectiveness review. The Committee
regularly reviews the composition and membership of the Court and its sub-committees and continues to
ensure that there is effective succession planning, an appropriate balance of skills and experience, and equality
and diversity in the membership and the senior leadership team'4. It is also responsible-for the procedures for
nominating individuals for honorary awards of the University and, when required, leads the process of search
and appointment of the ‘holders of senior posts’ and the Chancellor.

~ The Remuneration Committee® meets twice a year. It comprises four independent governors, including the
Chair Lin Phillips, the Chair of the Court, and the Chair of Resources Committee, plus an independent (non-

governor) member (Matt Appleton). The Committee reviews the salaries, terms and conditions of employment

and schemes of remuneration for UEB members. The Committee also devises and implements appropriate

12 |n June 2020, the Court of Governors agreed the number of independent governors would be reduced to 12
through retirement/resignation, with the opportunity to appoint more than 12 (up to the maximum allowed in the
Articles of Association) if there is a need for specific skills not available in the existing membership.
13 Charlotte Morgan took over the Chair in November 2022 when the former Chair Matthew Smith retired from
the Court of Governors ,
4 HE Code Primary Element 4 — inclusion and diversity

' ' 42

'



UNIVERSITY' OF WESTMINSTER
Corporate Governance and Internal Controls

measures and procedures whereby the Vice-Chancellor's performance may. be assessed and agrees with the
Vice-Chancellor such measures and procedures for the other UEB members. '

Resources Committee

The Resources Committee (Chair — Mei Xin Wang) meets up to six times per year and completes the-
governance structure reporting to the Court of Governors. The Committee advises the Court on strategic
matters related to the human, financial, digital, and physical resources of the Unlversny and oversees
associated strategies.

. Management

" The Vice-Chancellor is supported by the University Executive Board, -which he chairs. UEB is our senior
management committee, and its primary focus is to consider, approve and monitor the effectiveness of our
. strategic objectives and operations. :

- The-Vice- Chancellor is joined on the UEB by the Deputy Vice- Chancellor (Educati'dn) the Deputy Vice-
Chancellor (Employability and Global Engagement), the University. Secretary and- Chlef Operatlng Offlcer and
the three Pro Vice-Chancellors and Heads of College. .

, Colleague partlc1pat|on8

Our commlttee structure ensures that colleagues participate in our deC|5|on making processes. Senlor leaders
hold regular formal and informal meetings with both recognised Trade Unions. The Vice-Chancellor
‘communicates to colleagues about University business and his activities through a regular email blog and
through news items and on our intranet (including a bi-weekly email digest of news items — ‘Westminster
Weekly’). He also briefs and consults with colleagues on the University’s.performance and plans through
participation in events, meetings, discussions.with colleague networks and through his daily interactions.

Student participation®

In the exectition of their responsibilities, governors are mindful that the needs and interests of students are
paramount. As such, governors ensure students’ needs and interests are adequately reflected in the strategic
plan, when considering issues of institutional sustainability- and in our committee structure.

Following an internal audlt of student voice activities and the work of a Student Voice Task and Finish Group,
our new Student Voice Forum replaced the Student Experience Committee as a sub-committee of Academic
Council from September 2022. The Forum is jointly chaired by the UWSU President and the Deputy Vice-
Chancellor (Education) and most of the membership are students or UWSU officers. The Forum'’s primary focus
is to receive and respond to feedback from student representatives. The Forum enables a more action-based

. approach to meetings and aIIows student representatives to take amore active role.

- Our student representatlon arrangements contlnue to adhere to a set of principles that consider the expectation
and the core and common practices in the UK Quality Code and the OfS Regulatory Framework where it deals -
with student engagement. .

Our Student Charter, produced jointly by the University and UWSU, sets out expectations for a successful and
effective partnership between students and colleagues, and a culture of respect and opportunity for all. The
Court of Governors receives the UWSU annual report and financial statements and approves the annual UWSU
budget. The Court meets with the new sabbatical team at the beginning of each year to discuss their priorities
for the coming year.

Inclusive governance'*

’

Equality, diversity and inclusion forms part of the terms of reference of all University, College and School level

committees. We provide inclusive practice guides for colleagues on gender-inclusive language and digital

accessibility. Through our 2022/23 governance effectiveness review, we explored how well our governance

structures and practices align with our values and priorities. Halpin — external consultants who conducted a

governance review in 2022 — rated our Court of Governors as Good to Leading Edge in the elements of their

University Governance Matunty Framework relating to inclusion. Our Effectiveness Review Working Group built.
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‘on Halpin’s report to produce a set of recommendations that the Court approved in May 2023, In July 2023 the
Court of Governors approved an implementation plan with several enhancements that support our aim to
establish our Court of Governors as an exemplar in inclusive governance.

The Court of Governors routinely reflects on its own composition and, wrth consrderatron of the expectatlons of
the governance Codes, monitors and addresses equality and diversity of its own membership. We continue to
make progress in gender equality; on 31 July 2023 72% of the Court membership, including 82% of
independent governors were women'4. Women are also represented well in the leadership of the Court and its
committees; on 31 JuIy 2023, the Chair of the Court, the Deputy Chair, and four out of five Committee Chairs
were women.

We have worked on the inclusion of other protected characteristics at this level through implementation of our
inclusion and diversity action plan; however, we recognise that we have more work to do, as reflected in the
recommendation from our 2022 governance effectiveness review that “the Court’s future recruitment gives
greater focus to diversity in its broadest sense, with particular consideration to achieving greater ethnic diversity
and a more granular focus on individual ethn/C/ty groups instead of these being grouped together as
BME/BAME’ 15, :

Risk management and systems of control'®?

We have produced a néw strategic risk register that is streamlined and aligned to our refreshed Being
Westminster strategy. The strategic risk register is updated throughout the year and reviewed in full every year
by UEB, the Audit and Risk Committee and the Court. Operational risk registers covering the three Colleges,
each professional services department, Business Engagement and Transnational Education are also in place.
This year we have added Safety, Health and Wellbeing to the suite of operational risk registers reported to
UEB. We are scheduling a workshop for members of the Court - in discussion with UEB members and
operational risk register owners - to review our risk appetite statement and the supportrng narratlves which
together form the risk appetite framework.

Our Risk Management Policy defines risk as the possibility that an action or event will adversely or beneficially
- affect our ability to achieve a planned objective and effective risk management is therefore regarded as a
critically important part of our work. The risks identified cover business, financial, operatronal reputatronal and
compliance issues. .

The Audit and Risk Committee has responsibility for advising the Court of Governors on the adequacy and

" effectiveness of the University’s Risk Management Policy and procedures, and approves changes where
necessary, on behalf of the Court. UEB has ultimate responsibility for risk management and identifies,
evaluates, and reports on University level risks associated with the achievement of our strategic objectives.
Individual members of UEB are assigned responsibility for areas of risk on the strategic risk register and are
responsible for identifying and holding to account individuals who are tasked with implementing mitigations
relating to those areas of risk. The Risk Management Policy requires an annual report to be made to the Court
on risk management. The Policy, which is approved and reviewed from time to time by the Audit and Risk_
Committee on behalf of the Count, clearly states the Court’s responsibilities for determining the appropriate risk
appetite or level of exposure for the institution and satisfying itself that approprrate mitigations are in place and
working effectively. . ‘

During the period, the Audit and Risk Committee has continued a series of discussions with Strategic Risk
Owners exploring the Ievel of risk relating to each strateglc area and how effectively those risks are berng
managed .

This risk management process has been applied throughout the year under review and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and accounts. .

Our approach to internal control is risk based and in line with this and the OfS Audlt Code of Practice, the
programme of internal audit work during the year has focused on our most significant risk areas and designed
to evidence the achievement of value for money regarding efficiency, economy, and effectiveness. On the
recommendation of the Audit and Risk Committee, the Court extended the contract with TIAA to provide internal
audit services to the University to 31 July 2024. The Audit and Risk Committee approves the strategic internal

15 https://www.westminster.ac.uk/about—us/our—university/corporate-information/governanoe-and—structurefcourt-

‘of-governors
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audit plan and receives internal audit reports from TIAA at its regular meetings during the year. Where
appropriate, individual audit reports are considered by UEB and/or referred to other committees for information.
Governors have access to all internal audit reports via the Court’s online ‘Reading Room’. The internal auditors
provide an annual report, which includes an opinion on internal control, risk and the adéquacy and effectiveness
of our arrangements for economy, eff|C|ency, and effectiveness. ’

In addition to.the annual assurance report received from Internal Audit, the Audit and RISk Commlttee and
Governors receive benchmarking and sector specific reports from both Internal and External Auditors to assist
them in discharging their responsibility to monitor the University’s performance in delivering value for money.
The Audit and Risk Committee receive an update at each meeting on action taken by the Unlver5|ty in- response
to the issues identified.in these reports.

Our policy towards fraud, malpractice and corruption is one of zero tolerance. The University’s Anti-Bribery, -
Fraud and Corruption policy sets this out in detail, whilst the Financial Regulations set out the arrangements for
reporting and responding to fraud. The Anti-Bribery, Fraud and Corruption policy is reviewed periodically and
the Financial Regulations-annually; both are approved by Court. The main emphasis of the Policy’is on fraud
prevention, achieved through risk assessment, process design informed by awareness of fraud risk, and by
keeping colleagues alert to risks. Reportlng of any fraud and rrregularltles is a standing |tem on the Audit and .
Risk Committee agenda.

Govern,ors and senior managers are required to ensure that their behaviour is demonstrably selfless and open .
and that they champion the University’s policies on bribery, conflicts of interest, hospitality, travel, and gifts.
These are set out in the Financial Regulations and associated policies. The University’s External Auditors
obtain an annual statement signed by all governors and senior managers to the effect that they are personally
unaware of any fraud, conflict of interest, or other breach of legislation. The Chair of Court also signs a Letter of
Representation on behalf of the governing body which includes such assurances. This would include instances
of bribery. These arrangements provide an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating, and managing the

* significant risks faced by the University. The system is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide a reasonable and not absolute assurance agalnst
material’ mlsstatement or loss.

The overall assurance opinion provided by the. Internal Auditors for the year confirmed that, for the areas
reviewed during the year, the University has reasonable and effective risk management, control, and

' governance processes in place and, based on the work carried out, there was evidence to support the
achievement of value for money with regard to economy, efficiency or effectiveness of the systems reviewed.
There have been no ‘limited assurance’ or ‘no assurance’ opinions provided during the year. Action plans have
been developed to implement the recommendations of the reviews and the Internal Auditors follow. up all
recommendations and report on completion to the Audit and Risk Committee. .

There were no significant internal control weaknesses identified during 2022/23.
Governors’ responsibilities

The Court of Governors are respon3|ble for preparing the strategic report and the Statement of Corporate
Governance and Internal.Controls and the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the ofs
Terms and Conditions of Funding for Higher Education Institutions and Research England s Terms and
Conditions of Research England Grant and applicable Iaw and regulatlons

The Court are responS|bIe for ensuring the funding received from the OfS and Research England are expended
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the grants being given and for reporting to the OfS or Research
England any irregularity, impropriety or non-compliance with the terms and conditions of the funding received.
The Court of Governors gain assurance that the funds are being used:in line with the funding terms and_
conditions through the governance commlttee structures and management representation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each fmancral year. Under that law they -
‘have elected to prepare the group and parent University financial statements in accordance with UK accounting
standards and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. The terms and conditions of funding further
require the financial statements to be prepared in accordance with the 2019 Statement of Recommended
Practice — Accounting for Further and Higher Education, in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts
Direction dated 25 October 2019 issued by the OfS :
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Under company law the dlrectors must not approve the fmanual statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and parent University and of their income and
-expenditure, gains and losses and changes in reserves, and of Group’s cash flows for that period. In preparing
each of the group and parent University financial statements, the directors are requwed to:

. .select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

‘e state whether applicable UK accounting standards and the. 2019 Statement of Recommended Practice—
.Accounting for Further and Higher Education have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explalned in the financial statements;

o assess the group and parent Umvers1ty s ability to continue asa gorng concern, disclosing, as applicable
matters related to going concern; and .

* use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to Iiguidate the group or the parent
" University or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Court is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
parent University’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
parent University and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are responsible for such internal.control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the group and to
prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. :

The Court of Governors are also responsible for ensuring that:

' . funds from whatever source administered by the Group or the University for specific purposes have been
properly applied to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation;

e income has been applied in accordance with the University’s Statutes

¢ funds provided by the OfS and UK Research and Innovation (including Research England) and the .
Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education, have been applied in accordance
with the terms and conditions attached to them;

e ensuring that there are appropriate financial and management controls in place to safeguard pUb|IC funds
and funds from other sources; and .

. e securing the economical, efficient, and effective management of the Unlver5|ty s resources and
expenditure.

The Court of Governors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the University’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The governors who held office at the date of approval of the accounts.confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and each governor
has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a governor to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

None of the governors had an interest in any contract which subsisted during the period of this report, other
than those who are full-time members of staff and those associated with the transactions disclosed in note 9
(staff costs) to the accounts. The Clerk to the Court maintains a register of interests and governors are required

" to declare any conflict of interests at the start of each Court and committee meeting they attend.

The Court of Governors, in compliance with the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, recognises and
accepts the responsibility as far as reasonably practicable.as an employer to provide a safe and healthy
workplace for all its employees. It also accepts the responsibility as far as reasonably practicable to conduct its
undertaking in such a'way as to ensure that persons not in the University's employ - that is, students visitors,
and members of the public - are not exposed to risks to their health, safety, or welfare. '

The University holds Professional indemnity and Officers’ Liability insurance, which provide indemnity to
governors and. officers of the University, in their personal capacity, against damages and legal costs and
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expenses arising from claims made agalnst them by reason of wrongful acts commltted by them in the course
of their official duties.

A resolutlon to reappoint KPMG LLP as auditors for the reportlng cycle for the year ending 31 July 2024 was .
approved at the Annual General Meetlng in November 2023 .

- Approved by the Court of Governors. and signed on behalf of the Court
Professor Lynne Berry

" Chair of the Court of Governors
29 November 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT TO THE COURT OF GOVERNORS OF THE
UNIVERSITY-OF WESTMINSTER

'REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE'FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion .

We have audited the financial-statements of the University of Westminster (‘the University”) for the year ended
31 July 2023 which comprise the Consolidated and University Statement of Comprehensive Income and

- Expenditure, Consolidated Statement of Change in Reserves, Consolidated and University Statement of Financial
Position and Consolidated Cash Flow and related notes, including the accounting policies in note 1.

_ In our opinion the financial statements:

e - give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the University's affairs as at 31 July 2023, and
of the Group’s and of the University’'s income and expenditure, gains and Iosses and changes in reserves,
. and of the Group’s cash flows, for the year then ended; .

e have been properly prepared in accordance ‘with UK accountmg standards, including FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable i in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and o

o have been prepared in accordance with the requnrement_s of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audlt in-accordance WIth lnternatlonal Standards on Audltmg (UK) (“ISAs (UK)” ) and applicable

law. Our respon5|bllltles are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are

independent of the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We
, belleve that the audit evidence we have obtalned is a suff|C|ent and appropriate basis for our opinion.

Gomg concern

The Court of Governors has prepared the financial statements on the going concern. basis as it does not mtend
to liquidate the Group or the University or to cease their operations, and as it has concluded that the Group and
the University’s financial position means that this is realistic. It has also concluded that there are no material

. uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern for at least a-
year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going concern period”). .

In our evaluation of the Court of Governors' conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Group’s business
- model and analysed how those risks might affect the Group and UnlverS|tys flnanC|aI resources or ab|I|ty to
continue operations over the going concern period.

‘Our conclusions based on this work::

e we consider that the Court of Governors’ use.of the gomg concern baS|s of accountlng in the preparatlon
of the-financial statements is appropriate; :

e we have not identified, and concur with the Court of Governors’ assessment that there is not,.a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the Group or the University’s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However as'we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes
that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusnons
arenota guarantee that the Group or the University will contlnue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of Iaws and regulatlons abllrty to detect /dent/fy/ng and respond/ng to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud. :

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud ("fraud risks”) we assessed events or cOnditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunlty to commit fraud. Our risk assessment
" procedures included:

¢ Enquiring of the Audit and Risk Committee, Int'ernal audit and management and inspection of policy
: -documentation as to the Group’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and. detect fraud and the
Group’s channel for * ‘whistleblowing”, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud.
¢ Reading meeting minutes of the Court of Governors Audit and Risk Commrttee Finance and Resources
Committee, Remunerations Committee and Nominations Committee; and :
o Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relatlonshlps

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud - -
throughout the audit. .

As required by audrtlng standards and taking into account possrble pressures to meet loan covenants and to
lmprove financial performance, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls,
in particular the risk that Group's management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On
this audit we do not believe there-is a.fraud risk related to revenue recognition due to nature of the revenue
received during the year, which for the Unuversrtys primary revenue streams is straightforward in nature and
requires little judgment in determining’its recognition. We therefore assessed that there was limited opportumty
for the Group and University to manipulate the income that was reported

We did not.ldentlfy any additional fraud risks. We performed procedures including:

« ldentifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to supporting
documentation.- These included those posted by unusual users, material post close journals and those

~ journals posted with unusual accounts combinations. .

o Assessing whether the Judgements made in making accounting estlmates are indicative of a potentlal
bias. :

Identifying and respondmg to rlsks of material misstatement due to noncomphance with laws and
regulations: :

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected 'to have a material effect on the

financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with
management (as required by auditing standards). We discussed with management the policies and' procedures

regarding compliance with laws and regulations. We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout - '

our team and remained alert to any indications -of non- compluance throughout the audit. The potential effect of
_these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

“Firstly, the Group is subject to laws and'regulations that directly affect the financia! statements including financial
reporting legislation (including related companies’ legislation), taxation legislation and pensions legislation and
we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
financial statement items.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of noncompliance
_ could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: health
and safety, data protection, employment laws and.compliance with regulatory requirements of the Office for
Students. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non- compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal.
correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not dlscIosed to us or evident from -
relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

We have reported separately on the Group’s use of funds in the section of our audit report dealing with other legal
and regulatory requrrements
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Context of the abrlrty of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulatron

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some :
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our
audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently
limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a hrgher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may mvolve
collusion, forgery intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed.to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncomplrance
or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-complrance with all Iaws and regulations.

Other mformatlon

The Court of Governors is responsible for the other mformatron which comprrses the Strategic Report and the
Statement of Corporate Governance and Internal Controls. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except. as explrcrtly stated
below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work; the information therein is materially misstated or |nconS|stent with the financial statements
or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

e we have not |dent|f|ed material mrsstatements in the other information,

e inour opinion the information given in Strategic Report and the Statement of Corporate Governance
and Internal Controls, which together constitute the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the
financial year, is consistent with the frnancral statements; and :

) in our opinion those reports have been prepared in.aocordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are requrred to report by exceptron
Under\the Companles Act 2006 we are required to report to you |f in our oprnron

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent University, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the parent University’s financial statements are not in agreement wrth the accounting records and
returns; or

e certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not madej or
«. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Court of Governors responsibilities

As explained more fully in its statement set out on page 45, the Court of Governors (the members of which are
the Directors of the University for the purposes of company Iaw) is responsible for: the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as it determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are-free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and parent University’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting
- unless it either intends to liquidate the Group or the parent University or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so. .
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Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor's report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of:assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud er
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to.influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. :

A fuller  description of our responsibilities_ is provided . on the FRC's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. :

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

We are required to report on the following matters by the Accounts Direction dated 25 October 2019 issued by
the Office for Students (‘the Accounts Dlrectlon ). : ‘

In our opinion, in all material respects
« funds from whatever source administered by the Group or the University for specific purposes have been
properly applled to those purposes and managed in accordance with relevant legislation; -

e income has been applled in accordance with the University's Statutes;

o funds provided by the Office for Students UK Research and Innovation (including Research England)
the Education and Skills Funding- Agency and the Department for Education have been applied in
accordance with the relevant terms and conditions; and .

o the financial statements meet the requirements of the Accounts Direction.

Matters on which we are required to report by exce’pt'ion

We are required by the Accounts Direction to report to you where the University has an access and participation
plan that has been approved by the Office for Students’ director of fair @ccess and participation and the results of
- our audit work indicate that the Group’s and the University’'s expenditure on access and participation activities. for
the financial year disclosed in note 12 has been materlally misstated. :

We are also required by the Accounts Direction to report to you where the results of our audlt work indicate that
the Group’s and the University’s grant and fee income, as disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements, has -
been materially misstated. : :

We have nothing to report in these respects.

THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO V_VHOM WE OWE OUR RESPdNSIB_ILIfIES

This report is made solely to the Court of Governors, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and paragraph 13(2) of the University's Articles of Government and-section 124B of the Education
Reform Act 1988. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Court of Governors those
matters. we are .required-to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Umversuty and the Court of
Governors for our audit work, for this repont, or for the opinions we have formed.

Tew” Niaoun™

Fleur Nieboer ‘
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

. Chartered Accountants London E14 5GL

1 December 2023
‘ 51



UNIIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER

Consolidated and University Statement of Comprehenswe

Income and Expenditure
Year Ended 31 July 2023

- Year Ended 31 July 2023

Year Ended. 31 July 2022

All'items of income and expenditure relate to continuing activities.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

52°

Notes Consolidated University  Consolidated University
. £000 £000 £'000 £000
_Income
Tuition fees and education contracts 2 207,690 207,690 200,722 200,722
* Funding body grants 3 -16,186 " 16,186 14,189 14,189
Research grants and contracts 4 6,150 5,080 5,350 4,253
Other income . 6 20,746 19,464 17,088 16,063
Investment income 7 4,797 4,781 537 . 536
Total income before endowments and donations ‘ 255,569 253,201 237,886 235,763
Donations and endowments ) 8 4,851 -+ 4,846 ' 5,127 5,104
Total income 260,420 " 258,047 243,013 240,867
Expenditure '
Staff costs . ' ' 9 139,495 138,440 . 136,282 135,313
Other o;,)erating expenses .M 76,693 76,048 66,763 . 66,161
Depreciation . © 14 . 18,561 18,287 17,956 17,681
Interest and other finance costs - 10 3,456 3,456 " 4,575 4,575
Total expenditure 238,205 236,231 225,576 223,730
ISurplus before other gains and losses ‘22,215 21,816 17,437 17,137
Loss on disposal of fixed assets } (26) (26) - -
. Gain on fnanmal investments . 15 16 28 58 65
" Unrealised (loss)/galn on revaluation of investment property 15 (2,582) (2,582) 1,500 1,500
Surplus before tax’ 19,623 19,236 18,995 18,702
' . \ )
Taxation . ’ 13 - - - -
Surplus for the year 19,623 19,2_36 . 18,995 18,702
Actuarial gain in respect of pension schemes 2? 89,141 89,141 160,528 160,528
Total comprehensive income for the year 108,764 108,377 179,523 179,230
Represented by:
Endowment comprehensive incomel/(loss) for the year 15 18 (30) - 4
Revaluation reserve comprehensive loss for the year (510) (510) (510) " (510) -
Unrestricted comprehensive income for the year 109,758 - 109,368 179,070 178,743
Restricted comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (499) (499) 993 993
C = 108,764 108,377 179,523 179,230




UNIVERSITY OF‘WES'TMINSTER

Consolldated Statement of Changes in Reserves

Year Ended 31 July 2023

Consolidated -

‘Balance at 01 August 2021

Surplus from the statement of comprehensive.ihcome and
expenditure '

Other comprehensive expenditure (note 27)
Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure
reserve ’

Transfer to unrestricted reserve
Total comprehensive inqomel(losé) for the year
Balance at 31 July 2022

Surplus/(deficit) from the statement of comprehensive
* income and expenditure’

Other comprehensive income (note 27)

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure:

reserves

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

Balance at 31 July 2023

University

Balance at 01 August 2021

Surplus from the statement of comprehensive income and
- expenditure,

Other comprehensive expenditure (note 27)

Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure

reserve
Total comprehensive |ncomel(loss) for the year

Balance at 31 July 2022

Surplus/(def cn) from the statement of comprehensnve
income and expenditure

Other comprehensive income (note 27)

. Transfers between revaluation and income and expenditure
. reserves . :

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

. Revaiuation
Income and expenditure account reserve Total
. Endowment Unrestricted Restricted
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
1,358 108,767 .. 115,851 . 225,976
@ 18,004 993 . 18,995
- 160,528 - - 160,528
- 510 . (510) -
(28). - 28 - -
~ (30) 179,070 993 (510) 179,523
-1,328 287,837 993 115,341 . 405,499
15 20,107 (499) - 19,623
.- 89,141 - - 89,141
- _ 510 - (510) -
15 . 109,758 '(499) (510) 108,764
1,343 397,595 494 114,831 514,263
. _Revaluation .
Income and expenditure account reserve Total
Endowment Unrestricted Restricted .
£'000 £000 £'000 £000 f £'000
350 105,129 = - . 115851 221,330
4 - 17,705 . 993 - 18,702
- 160,528 ) - - 160,528
- : 510 SR (510) -
4 178,743 993 (510) 179,230 -
354 '283,872 993 115,341 400,560
18 19,717 (499) - 19,236
- . 89,141 - - 89,141
- 510 . - (510)- -
18 . 109;368 (499) (510) 108,377
372 393,240 494 114,831 508,937

Balance at 31 July'2023

* The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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- UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER

Consolldated and UmverS|ty Statement of FlnanCIaI Position

As at 31 July 2023

Non-current assets
Fixed assets
Investments

Trade and other receivables due after one year

Pension asset .

Current assets

Trade and other receivables due within one year
Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

. Less: Creditors: amounts falling-
'c!ue within one year |

Net current assets
“Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after-
more than one year

Pension liability
Other pension provisions -
- General provisions

Total 'net assets

Restricted reserves

Endowment reserve
Unrestricted reserves . ;
Income, expenditure and pension reserve -

Revaluation reserve

Total reserves

by:

As at 31 July 2023

As-at 31 July 2022

Notess  Consolidated . University Consolidated University
' £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
14 386,095 382,884 375,442 371,989
15 38,176 37,555 40,660 40,027
16 - 2,900 - 3,096
20.1 17,082 17,082 .- -
’ 441,353 440,421 -416,102 415,112
16 19,612 . 19,871 21,089 21,039
17 151,423 151,423 135,110 - 135,110
22 11,160 - 9,148 6,381 4,483
' 182,195 180,442 162,580 160,632
18 - (59,873)  (62,514) (56,238) (58,239)
122,322 117,928 106,342 102,393
563,675 . 558,349 522,444 ' 517,505
19 (43,201) (43,201) (45,478) - (45,478)
201 ’ - - "(64,014) (64,014)
20.2 . (5,212) (5,212) (6,164) (6,164)
203 . (999). (999) (1,289) (1,289)
514,263 508,937 405,499 400,560
21 : 1,343. 372 1,328 . 354 .
398,089 . 393,734 288,830 284,865
114,831 114,831 . 115,341 115,341
405,499

514,263 . 508,937

) The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. . .

4

A%

Prof Peter Bonfield
Vice Chancellor and President -
29 November 2023

400,560

The financial statements were approved by the Governing Body on 29 November 2023 and were signed on its behalf on that date

Chair and Pro' Chancellor
29 November 2023



UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For period ended 31 July 2023

Yearended . Year ended

Notes 31 July 2023 : 31 July 2022

. £'000; ) £'000

- Cash flow from operating activities after tax ‘ . 19,623 18,995
Adjustment for non-cash items L ’ o .
Depreciation . ' o ‘ 14 18,561 . 17,956
Loss/(gain) on investments : ‘ ' .15 . 2,566 (1,558)
Increase/(decrease) in debtors e 16 - 4,477 - (5,905)
Increase in creditors ’ 18&19 3,897 - 7,337
. ) . - _— - 20.1,20.2 o

. Difference between Pension costs and contributions . 827, 7,093 20,608
Decrease in general provisions _' : . 20.3 . (290) . o ~ (688)

. Adjustment for investing or financing activities . '

_ Investment income ) . 7 ‘(4,797) .- (537)
Interest payable . ' : 10 1,214 S1,291
Deferred capital grant released to income . . . (1,350) ) ’ (1,309)

" Net cash inflow from operating activities ) - 47,991 : 56,190 -
Cash flows from investing activities )

Capital grants receipts o ’ : ’ 769 ) 152
Investment income ' o 7 © 4,797 537
Payments made to acquire fixed assets o L 14 (29,591) (24,909)
New non-current asset investments ' A 15 ’ 82y -
Cash (added to)/ removed from Fixed term deposits A . 17 (16,313) . (34,011)

‘ | (40,420) (58,231)
Cash flows from finani:ing activities

. Interest paid oo - : 10 1,211) (1,291)
Repaymients of amounts borrowed . ) . 19 (1,58‘i) (2,086)

' : (2,792) - (3,377)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents in the year . ‘ _ . 4,779 . (5,418)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year . 22 - 6,381. o - 11,799

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2 . 11,160 ’ 6,381

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER .

Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 July 2023

1 Accounting Policies

a) Company information

The University of Westminster is mcorporated under the Companies Act as a company limited by guarantee and not having share
capital. The University is also an exempt charity.

b) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP):
Accounting for Further and Higher Education 2019 and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 - 'The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom arnd Republic of Ireland’ (FRS 102'), and with the Companies Act 2006. The
financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, modified by revaluation as disclosed in the relevant notes,
and. are presented in sterling. ’

c) Gomg concern

The University-Group activities, together with the factors I|ker to affect its future development, performance and position, are set
out in the Strategi¢ Report which forms part of the Court of Governors Report. The Court of Governors Report also describes the
financial position of the University, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities.

The Court of Governors believe that the University is well placed to effectively manage its business risks, despite the uncertain .
economic situation. The University Group financial forecasts demonstrate that the University Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its obligations as they fall due over the period of 12 months from the date of approval of the financial -
statements (the going concern assessment period). Thus, the Court of Governors consider it appropriate that the University Group
financial statements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

d) Basis of consolidation .

The consolidated financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the University and lts subsrdlary undertakings for the
financial year ended 31 July 2023. Intra-group transactions are eliminated on consolidation. The consolidated financial statements,
do not include the University of Westminster Students’ Union because the University does not have control-over its activities.

e) Statement of principal accounting policies

income recognition

_Income from the sale of goods or services is credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expendlture
when the goods or services are supplied to the external customers ‘or the terms of the contract have been satisfied.

Fee income is stated gross of any expenditure which is not a discount and credited to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure over the period in which students are studying. Where the amount of the tuition fee is
- reduced, by a discount for prompt payment, income receivable is shown net of the discount. Bursaries and scholarships are
accounted for gross as expenditure and not deducted from income. ’ ’

Investment income is credited to the statement of comprehensive income and expenditure on a receivable basis.

Funds the University receives and disburses as paying agent on'behalf of a funding.body are excluded from the statement of
comprehensive income and expenditure of the University where the University is exposed to mmlmal risk or enjoys minimal
economic benefit related to the transactlon

Grant: funding

Government revenue grants and research grants are recognised in income over the periods in which the University recognises the
related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate. Where part of a government grant is deferred it is recognised as
deferred income within creditors and allocated between creditors due within one year and due after more than one year as
appropriate,

Grants (including research grants) from non-government sources are recognised in income when the University is entitled to the

income and_performance related conditions have been met. Income received in advance of performance related conditions being
met is recognised as deferred income within creditors on the balance sheet and released to income as the conditions are met.
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Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 July 2023

1 Accounting Policies (coritinued)

Donations and endowments ) o . )

Non exchange transactions without performance related conditions are donations and endowments. Donations and endowments

with donor imposed restrictions are 'recognised in income when the University is entitled to the funds. Income is retained. within -

the restricted reserve until such time that it is utilised in line with such restrictions at which point the income is released to general
reserves through a reserve transfer. : :

Donations with no restrictions are recognised in irrcome when the University is entitled to the funds.

Investment.income and appreciation of endowments is recorded in income in the year in which it arises and as either restncted or
unrestncted income according to the terms or other restriction applied to the individual endowment fund. ’

The main types of endowments identified within reserves are:

1. Expendable endowments - the donor has specified a particular objective other than the purchase or construction qf tangible
’ fxed assets, and the University has the power to use the capital. ’

2 Restricted permanent endowments - the donor has specified that the fund is to be permanently |nvested to generale an income
stream to be applied to a particular objective.

Capital grants

Government capital grants are recognised in income over the expected useful life of the asset. Other capltal grants are .
_recogmsed in income when the University is entitled to the funds subject to any performance related conditions being met :

Leases

‘Leases in which the University assumes substantially all the risks-and rewards of ownershrp of.the leased asset are classified as
finance leases. Leased assets acquired by way of finance lease and the corresponding lease liabilities are initially recognised at
an amount equal to the lower of their fair value-and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The fnance
. charge is allocated to each period durmg the lease term so as to produce a constant penodlc rate of interest on the remalnlng
balance of the liability.

Costs in respect of operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensrve Income and expenditure on a stralght -line
basis over the lease term )
. Taxation

The University is an exempt charity within the meaning of schedule 3 of the Charities Act 2011 and is considered to pass the tests
set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule'6 Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK
corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the University is potentially exempt from taxation in respeet of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by section 287 CTA2009 and sections 471, and 478-488 CTA 2010 (formerly s505 of ICTA
1988) or section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income'or gains are applied to
exclusively charitable purposes.

The Institution feceives no similar exemption in respect of Value Added Tax. Irrecoverable VAT on inputs is included in the costs
of such inputs. Any irrecoverable VAT allocated to tangible fixed assets is included in their.cost. The University‘s{sub'sidiary
_companies are subject to corporation tax and VAT on the same basis as any commercial organisation.

Deferred tax is provided in full on timing differences which result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a
right to pay less tax, at a-future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based on current rates and law. Timing
differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure in taxation computations in periods different from those in
which they are included in financial statements. Deferred tax assets are‘recogjnised to the extent they are regarded as more likely
than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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UNIVERSITY OF WESTMINSTER

Notes to the Accounts | S |
for the year ended 31 July 2023 ' o

1.Accounting Policies (continued)-

Fixed assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost / deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

. Costs incurred in relation to a tangible fixed asset, after its initial purchase or production, are capitalised to the extent that they
increase the expected future benefits to the University from the existing tangible fixed asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance; the cost of any such enhancements are added to the gross carrying amount of the tangible fi fixed asset
concerned.

'On adoption of FRS102, the Group took advantage of FRS102 provision 35.10 (c) to revalue land assets to fair value as deemed
cost, for which a market value report at 31 July 2014 was commissioned from Savills LLP. No subsequent revaluation has been

carried out for any non-current fixed assets. In addition assets previously treated as Investment properties when transferred to
non current fixed assets are transferred at fair value at the date of transfer. '

Computer and software costs

Significant investment is being made in introducing management information systems to support the effective management of the
University. The Group capitalises software implementation costs where future benefits will accrue. Management judgement has
been applied in quantifying the benefit expected to accrue to the Group over the useful life of the relevant assets. Where the
software does not produce the expected benefits in terms of the Group achlevmg its objectives, then the carrying value would
require adjustment. .

Reparrs and malntenance

Expenditure to ensure that a tangible fixed asset maintains its previously recognlsed standard of performance is recognlsed in the '
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and expenditure in the period in which it is incurred.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenditure in the period in whrch they are incurred.

Equipment
* Individual assets costlng over £10, 000 are capitalised.

’

Depreciation .
Depreciation methods useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the date of preparation of each Balance Sheet.

Depreciation has been provided on all fixed assets on cost or revaluéd amounts in equal mstalments over the estlmated useful
_economic lives of the assets: .

Freehold Buildings ) - - Fifty years

Freehold improvements post 2020 ' ’ . -Twenty Five years
Leasehold Buildings and Leasehold Improvements ' " . - Amortised over the remaining term of the lease
Motor Vehicles . - Four years ' o ‘
" Fixtures, Fittings and Equipment - ’ ‘ - Five years and twenty years
' Audio .Visual Equipment ’ o . - Seven years
Plant and Machinery - - - Five years and twenty years
Computer Equipment . . ' - Four years o
Computer Software R ' A ‘ . - Three to five years

Non- current |nvestments .
"~ Non- current investments rnclude Fixed assets and Investments. leed assets are carried on the balance sheet at amomsed costs.
Investments are held on the balance sheet at fair value.
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1 Accounting Policies (continued)

Investment properties

Investment property is land and buildings, or part of a bundmg, held for rental income .or capital appreuauon rather than for use in
delivering services, for administrative purposes or for the sale in ordinary course of business. Investment properties are measured
initially at cost and subsequently at fair value at the end .of each reporting date with movements recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued or reviewed annually according to
market conditions as at 31 July each year. Propeny that has mixed use is separated between investment property and tangible
fixed assets, propomonately .

Current investments ,
Current asset investments are carried on the balance sheet at fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash flows comprise increases or decreases in cash. Cash includes cashin hand cash at bank and deposits repayable on
demand. Deposits are repayable on demand if they are available within 24 hours without penalty

Foreign currencies : .
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of exchange at the dates of the transactlons Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at year-end rates Exchange differences are
recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Compréhensive Income and expenditure.
Deferred capital grants Cos ‘
Governmental capital grants for the purchase or construction of fi xed assets are recognlsed as deferred capital grants within
creditors. An annual release is made to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and expenditure over the useful
economic life of the asset, at the same rate as the deprecnatlon charge on the asset for which the grant was awarded.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when the University has a present legal or constructive obligation as aresultofa past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. . -

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of a note, when the definition of a provision is not met and includes three scenarios; a
possible rather than a present obligation, a possible rather than a probable outflow of economic benefits, the amount of the
- obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. - .

Contingent assets-arise when an event has taken place that gives the University a possible asset whose existence will only be -
. confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the University. These are
disclosed by way of a note, where there is a probable, rather than a present asset arising from a past event.

Accountlng for retirement beneflts . . :
The Group operates three pension schemes: the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
(TPS), and the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS). All schemes are defined benefit schemes:-

The assets of TPS and USS are held in separate trustee-administered funds. Because of the mutual nature of the schemes, the
scheme’s assets are not attributed to individual institutions and scheme-wide contribution rates are set. The University is therefore
exposed to actuarial risks associated with otherinstitutions’ employees and is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and liabilities of these schemes on a consistent and reasonable basis and therefore as required by section 28 of FRS102
"Employee benefits”, the institution accounts for these schemes as if they were defined contribution schemes.

A liability is recorded in provisions for the contractual comrnitment to fund past deficits within the USS Scheme. The discounted
value of any new commitments is charged to staff costs in the year in which the contractual commitment is made. .
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Accounting for retirement benefits (continued)
For LGPS the University obligation is to provide the agreed benefits to current and former employees, and actuarial risk (that
benefits will cost more or less than expected) and investment risk (that return on assets set aside to fund the benefits will differ
from expectations) are borne, in substance, by the university. The University recognises the liability for its obligations under -
defined benefit plans net of plan assets. This net defined benefit liability is measured as the estimated amount of benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, discounted to determine its present value, less
" the fair value (at bid price) of plan assets. The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit method.
When the calculation results in an asset, recognition of the asset is limited to the extent to which the university is able to recover
the surplus either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan. The university has not committed
to exit the LGPS fund or the intention to seek a reduction in future contributions. At 31 July 2023 the surplus is £17.08 million and
is fully recognised in these accounts. The actuary has considered the impact of the asset ceiling on the balance sheet and as '
this is calculated to exceed the surplus attributable, the restriction on the surplus is nil. The actuary has calculated the asset
ceiling based on the economic value basis. The economic value available from the surplus has been calculated in line with the
requirement of the relevant accounting standards.

Employment benefits .

Short term employment benefits such as salaries and compensated absences are recognised as an expense in the year in which
the employees render service to the University. Any unused benefits are accrued and measured as the additional amount the
University expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. ' ' ’ ’

Termination benefits .

Costs associated with specific schemes which a) terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the
normal retirement date or b) provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy
are recognised in the year in which the University is demonstrably committed to a termination scheme without a realistic
possibility to withdraw. The costs recognised are the termination payments paid out during the fnancnal year as weII as any
accrued benefits for the termination payments paid post balance sheet date.

Revaluation reserve
On adoption of FRS102, the Group took advantage of FRS102 provnsuon 35.10 (c) to revalue land assets to fair value as deemed
cost. This revaluation was credited to the revaluation reserve opening balance at 1 August 2014.

Where depreciation on the revalued amount exceeds the corresponding depreciation on the historical cost, the excess is
transferred annually from revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure reserve. .

Accounting estimates and judgements

Accounting policies are supplemented by estimation techniques where judgement is required to establish the monetary amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenditure and the disclosures made in the financial statements and the estimates and
associated assumptions are believed to be reasonable and prudent. These judgements and estimates are continually evaluated
and are based on past experience or are prepared by qualified advisors. .

Key judgments and estimates are as follows:

a. Pension provision

The Group operates three pension schemes: the Local Government Pensidn Schemev(LGPS), the Teachers' Pension Scheme
(TPS), and the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS). All schemes are defined benefit schemes. : :

TPS- The critical underlying assumptions in relation to the estimate of the pension enhancement obligation such as life
expectancy and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Variations in these assumptions have the ability to significantly influence
the value of the provision for unfunded liabilities recorded and annual expense (note 27).

USS and LGPS- FRS 102 makes the distinction between a group plan and a multi-employer scheme. A group plan consists of a
collection of entities under common control typically with a sponsoring employer. A multi-employer scheme is a scheme for ~
entities not under common control and represents (typically) an industry-wide scheme such as Universities Superannuation
Scheme. The accounting for a multi-employer scheme where the employer has entered into an agreement with the scheme that
determines how the employer will fund a deficit results in the recognition of a liability for the contributions payable that arise from .
the agreement (to the extent that they relate to the deficit) and the resulting expense charged through profit or loss in accordance
with section 28 of FRS 102. The directors are satisfied that the Universities Superannuation Scheme meets the definition of a
multi-employer scheme and has therefore recognised the discounted fair value of the contractual contributions under the funding
plan in existence at the' date of approving the financial statements.
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1 Accounting Policie’s (continued)

Accounting estimates and judgements (centinued).

A provision is reéognised in the financial statements for future contributions payable to the USS pension scheme that relate to the

deficit in the scheme and arise from the agreement with 'scheme employers as to how the deficit is funded. The carrying amount

of this liability is £4.3 million (see Note 20) and a key factor used to calculate the provision is the element future contribution rate

that relates.to funding the eX|stmg deficit. The last formal actuarial-valuation of the scheme was at 31 March 2020 and adoption of
. the new deficit recovery plan has been agreed effectlve 1 October 2021 (note 27 ().

The 2023 valuation is currently in progress and the aim is to complete the valuation in time to implement any changes decided by
April 2024. Given changes in the nmarket conditions .since 2020 valuation, it is likely the 2023 valuation will show an improved
funding position with the scheme expected to be in a surplus position. The deficit recovery libility is disclosed in line with the
current deficit recovery agreement until a-revised schedule of contributions and scheme funding is agreed and implemented.

' The present value of the LGPS and defined benefit asset or liability depends on a number of factors that are determmed on an
;acturlal basis using a variety of assumptlons The assumptions used in determmmg the net cost for pensions include the discount
rate, salary, pension and price u'gcrease and any changes in these. assumptions, which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the
‘carrying amount of the pension asset or liability. The assumptions adopted therefore represent an area of significant estimation
uncertainty within the accounts. The Board of Governors is satlsfed that the assumpuons adopted by the Scheme actuary are
reasonable. .

b) Investment property
The valuation of the Umversntys investment property portfollo is inherently subjectlve due to, among other factors the individual
- nature of each property, its location and the expected future rental revenues from that particular property. As a result, the
valuations the University places on its investment property portfolio are subject to a degree of uncertainty and are made on the
basis of assumptions which may not prove to be accurate, particularly in periods of volatility or low transaction flow in the property
market. The investment property valuation contains a number of assumptions upon which the University's independent
professional valuer has based its valuation of the portfolio. The assumptions on which the property valuation reports have been
. based include, but are not limited to, matters such as the tenure and tenancy details for the properties, ground conditions at the’
. properties, the structural condition of the properties, prevailing market yields and comparable market transactions. These
assumptions are market standard and accord with the Royal Insmutlon of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Valuatlon — Professional
Standards ('the Red Book') |ssued by RICS in force. .
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Year Ended 31 July 2023 Year Ended 31 July 2022

17

) Consolidated. University ‘Consolidated University -
Tuition fees and education contracts ©ogo00  £000 . £000 £000
Full-ime home and EU students’ 107,245 107,245 . 114,658 114,658
Full-time international students ' 86,828 ‘86,828 74,729 74,729
Part-time students 11,550 11 ,550 9,461 9,461

. . 205,623 205,623 © 198,848 . © 198,848
Research Training Support Grant 24 24 17
Non credit-bearing courses 2,043 2,043 1,857 1,857

) 207,690 207,690 200,722 200,722
Funding body grants :
Recurrent OfS grant
Office for Students
Teaching grant 6,266 6,266 6,336 6,336
Research grant 7,076 7,076 ‘4,812 4,812
Otfer grants 1,065 ° 1,065 1,317 1,317
Pension liability grant 429 429 " 415 415
OfS capital grant 1,350 1,350 - .. 1,309 1,309
’ ‘ 16,186 16,186 14,189 14,189
Research grants and contracts \
R'esearch councils 2,107 2,107 897 897
. Charities 576 571 440 386
Government (UK and overseas) 1,963 1,878 2,706 . . 2,608
Industry and commerce 346 19 426 58
Other bodies’ 1,158 505 881 304
6,150 . 5,080 5,350

4,253
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; .

5 Grant and fee income
The source of grant and fee income, included in notes 2 to 4 is as follows: . ) )
" Year ended 31 July 2023 : Year ended 31 July 2022 -

Consélidated University "Consolidated . University
£'000 £'000 £000 £000
‘Grant income from the OfS * : . 16,186 16,186 14,189 14,189
Grant income from other bodies - o+ 6,50 ' 5,080 - . .5,350 . - 4,253
Fee income for research awards o 1,809 1,809 1,931 1,931
Fee income from non-qualifying -courses ~ ' 2,067 ) 2,067 ) 1,874 . 1,873
Fee income for taught awards - . : 203,814 - © 203,814 196,917 196,917
Total grant and fee income B ) . 230,026 228,956 -220,261 219,163
6 Otherincome
-Residences, catering and conférences - 10,594 - . 9,988 -7 8,783 . 8,456.
‘Recreation - - ' ©319. 319 . 475 - a5
Rents and Lettings © 3,137 2,346 . 2,914 - 2,322
Photocopier Income . , . .79 78 82 82
- Sundry sales ' . _ 620 . 620 663 663
Other Incorme : 5997 . 6,113 4471 . . 4065

. 20,746 19,464 . 17,088 - 16,063

Included in Other income is-grant income of £471k (2022: £141k) received under the Turing Scherne'.
7 Investment income : ’

Other investment income:” -~ 21 : 34 RTINS . 5 4

Interest on fixed term deposits : . ’ 4,763 4,763 532 ' 532

4,797 ) 4,781 537 . 536
8 Donations and endowments

Donations and endowments . 4,851 " 4,846 ] 5,127 ) 5104
' : ' 485 4846 - 5,127 . 5,104
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9 Staff costs

Salaries
Redundancy costs

- Social éecurity costs
Other pension costs

Remdneration of highef paid staff, excluding employer’s pension‘contributions:

. £100,000 to £104,999 -
£105,000 to £119,999
£115,000 to £119,999
£120,000 to £124,999

" £125,000 to £129,999

- £130,000 to £134,999 .
£135,000 to £139,999
£140,000 to £144,999

© £145,000 to £149,999
£155,000 to £159,999
£165,000 to £169,999

_ £250,000.to £254,999

Year ended 31 July 2023

Year ended 31 July 2022 -

Average staff numbers by major category, expréésed on a full time equivalent basis, during the year :

Teaching and research
" Visiting lecturers
Support staff

Key management personnel

Consolidated University Consolidated University
£'000 £000° -£'000 £000
97,652 96,766 93,553 92,742
5,454 5,454 317 317
11,205 © 11,115 10,016 9,934
25,184 25,105 32,396 32,320
139,495 138,440 136,282 135,313
2023 2022
2 o2
.
1
2 1
- 3
3 1.
- 2
1 1
2 -
- A
1 -
1 1
14 13
Number * Number
935 ! 922
131 130
924 855
1,990 1,907

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsmllny for planning, directing and controlllng the
activities of the University. Staff costs includes compensation paid to key management personnel. Members of the Unlversnys
Executive Board are con5|dered to be key personnel of the Unlversny and comprise: .

- Vice- Chancellor

University Secretary and Chief Operatmg Officer (and Flnance Dlrector as Actlng Unlversny Secretary and Chlef Operatlng Offcer)
Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Global Engagement and Employablhty)

Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Education)

Pro Vice-Chancellors and Heads of Colléges .

Key management personnel compensation is made up as follows:

Salary
Employer's pension contributions
Total emoluments

B4

¢

. 31July 2022

31 July 2023
£000 £:000
1,246 . 1,077
191 161
1,437 1,238
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9 Staff costs (6ontinued)

The above compensation includes emoluments of the Vice-Chancellor as follows:

Vice Chancellor

Total ’ Total
31 July 2023 - - 31 July 2022
: £ 000 : £'000
Basic salary X 250 250 .
250 250 -

The Vice-ChanceIIor"s basic salary is 5.5 times (2022: 5.8 times) the median pay of staff, where the median bay'is
calculated on a full-time equivalent basis for the salaries paid by the G_roup and the University to its staff:

The Vice-Chancellor's total remuneration including pension is 4.4 times (2022: 4.7 tirﬁes) the median total remuneration of
staff including pension costs, where the median total remuneration is calculated on a full-time equivalent basis for the total
" remuneration paid by the Group and the University to its staff. .

* The median pay ratios have been prepared on the basis of‘all staff recorded dn the payroll. All staff include academic ‘and
non-academic staff including visiting lecturers that are requured to be included in real time reporting to HMRC. Agency staff
are excluded.

The pay multiple has decreased from that of the prior year as staff salaries have increased whereas that of the V|ce -
Chancelor's remained unchanged. :

The total remuneration package for the Vice- Chancellor comprises a salary of £250,000. There are no addmonal pensnon _
payments and no benefits in kind.

During the period, the Remuneration Commlttee reviewed the salary bands, which remain competitive; noted the level of
remuneration of colleagues on senior management contracts and discussed the student view of senior pay. The
Committee considered a corifidential pro forma report from the Chair to the Court on the performance of the Vice-
‘Chancellor during 2022/23 that assessed performance against a set of pre-approved objectives and measures and led to a
recommendation from the Chair of the salary zone in which the Vice-Chancellor should be posmoned During the period,
the Vice-Chancellor again declined any increase to the’initial salary
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9 'Staff costs (continued)

Compensation paid for loss of office

" . Redundancy and severance costs were incurred during the financial year as follows.:_ )
’ 3 JuIy 2023 31 July 2022

‘

_ b & 00 . £000

Compensation. paid for loss of office to employees earning‘in excess of £100k . 471 e
Compensatibn paid for loss of office to all employees . . 5,374 ' - 423
) ‘ No. . No.

Number of employees ‘ : : " o8 28

- Court of Governors :
The University’s governors are the trustees for charitable law purposes. Due to the nature of the University's operatlons and the
composition of the Court, being drawn from public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that transactions will take place
with organisations in which a member of the Court may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which a member
of Court may have an interest, including those identified below, are conducted at arms-length and in accordance with the University's
Financial Regulatlons and usual procurement procedures. : )

The members of the Court of Governors have confirmed that they are not aware of any related party transactlons between
themselves and the Unlversny .

The remuneration of the governors of the University is as follows: ’ _ 31 July 2023 31 July 2022
, _ | £000  £000
Total remuneration including employer's pension contributions.. : : 555 544

During the year £nil (2022 £80) was pa|d in respect of trustees' expenses (| e. expenses that were incurred in respect of thelr
~ services as trustees).

During the year, the University received and paid for services to the value of £3,605 from the Human Tissue Authority (HTA) and
£31,133 from London Higher, a membership organisation for Higher Education providers in London. The Chair of the Board of
Governors and Pro Chancellor of the University is a Chair of the Board of HTA. The University Vice-Chancellor and President is a
member of the Board of Trustees of London Higher. All transactions were conducted at arm’s length and in accordance with the

. Umversﬂys Financial Regulations and procurement procedures. .

Total governors' remuneration includes the remuneration of all staff members who are also trustees The independent members of
the University's Court of Governors are not remunerated for their services as trustees.

10 Interest and other finance costs

Year Ended 31 July 2023 : " Year Ended 31 July 2022,

Notes A Con.solidated : University , Consolidétéd ‘University

. £'000 -~ - £000 £000 £'000

Promissory note - - i ‘ . ' - 13 .- 13
Bank loans A : . : 1,241 . 1,211 1,278’ 1,278
Net charge on pension scheme 27 . 2,245 2,245 ' 3,284 : 13,284
3,456 ) 3,456 . - 4,575 . 4,575
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11 Analysis of total expenditure by activity

" Year ended 31 July 2023 Year ended 31 July 2022

Consolidated ’ X » Staff Other Total . Staff Other Total
) £'000 £'000 ‘ £'000 . £'00[.). £'000 £000
Academic Departments ) ; . 83,661 15,059 - eg720 - 73,182 T 12,917 L 86,009
Academic Support Services 2317 12837 . 34154 18477 - 1s7 30,054
Research o . E . 3,244 3233 6,477 © 2788 © 3,160 5,048
Administration and Central Services . ' . 20,379 16,667 37,046 22,652 15,728 38,380
Premises s : 3836 27,242 31,08 3620 - 2518 . 26138
Residences and Catering ’ . 943 1,594 2,537 - 7% 863 1,659
" Other expenses ' ’ o " 8115 ) 61 6,176 14,767 - 14,767
139,495 . 76,693 . 216,188 . 136,282 66,763 203,045
Other éperating expenses include:

V Group University . . (_;roup . Universit&
£000 £'000 ' - £000 .  ° £000.
External auditors’ remuneration in respect of audit servicés ’ . ’ 107 ) - o3 ) 135 . 123
External auditors' remuneration in respect of non-audit services . . 35 2 ) ) 27 - 27

Operating lease rentals: . . .
Land and buildings o ' 6,210 6,210 5,744 S 5744
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Year Ended

: : . 31 July 2023 31 July 2022

12 ‘Access and Participation o o 3 - £000 £000 .

Consolidated and University 4 .

Access investment - : s ’ ‘ 801 . 630
Financial support provided to students ) : : ' 2,525 ) 1 ,345
~ Support for disabled students o . ' : 788 . 934
Research and evaluation of acceéss and participation activities . - - 608 498
- : o 4,722 " 3,407

The Access and’ Partlcupatlon plan aproved by the OfS covers the period 2020-25 and is publlshed on the University websne at.
- hitps:/iwww.westminster.ac.uk/access-and-participation-plans.

The results above aré derived from direct and indirect costs associated with Access and participation actlvmes and differ from
that'in the original Access and Participation plan approved by the OfS. .

The Access and Participation plan approved by the OfS includes £867k for Access and Participation. Actual expenditure was
£801k. The amount spent on Financial Support in 2022/23 was £2,525k against a target of £1,309k. The signifcant increase in
Financial Support available to students in thls year was due to the cost of living crisis and the University making more support

available to students.

£1,870k of the above costs are already. included in the oyeréll staff costs figures in the financial statements (see note 9).
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13 Taxation note
Reconciliétion of current tax'ch'arg'e:f
Recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Consolidated surplus on ordinary activities

Tax on surplus on ordinary a'ctivitie-s at 'standard corporation tax rate in the UK of
21.00% (2022: 19.00%): -

Effect of: .
Non- taxable profit

Current tax expense

' Factors that may affect the future tax charge '

31July 2023 31 July 2022
£000 . £1000

A 19,623 18,995
4121, 3600
(a,121) (3,609)

‘There is a deferred tax asset which has not been recognised as it is not expected to crystalhse in the future The amount of
the asset in terms of the taxation not recognised, calculated at 21% (2022 19%) of the amount of the tammg dlfferences is

£21k asset (2022 £19k asset), and'it is analysed below

- Capital allowances not utilised
Tax losses not utilised
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14 Fixed Assets

Consolidated

Cost or valuation
At 1 August 2022
Additions

Transfers
Disposal

-

‘At 31 July 2023

Consis(ing of:
Land at valuation:
At 31 July 2014
* At 31 July 2020
Assets at cost
At 31 July 2023

. Depreciation
At 1 August 2022
Charge for the year
Disposal
At 31 July 2023

Net book value
At 31 July 2023

T At 31-July 2022

Freehold Leasehold Assets in the Plant and Fixtures, Computers and AV Total
Land and Land and Course of - Machinery Fittings and software  Equipment
Buildings Buildings " Construction Equipment
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 "£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
424,542 28,675 8,950 8,385 7,228 25918 10,632 514,230
2,238 436 16,942 4,476 747 2,805 1,570 29,214
8,965 666 (9,637) - 2 - 4 -
(66) (984) - - - - - (1,050)
435,679 28,793 16,255 12,861 7,977 28,723 12,106 542,394
120,570 - - - - - - 120,570
4,500 - - - - B - 4,500
' 310,609 28,793 16,255 12,861 7,977 28,723 - 12,106 417,324
435,679 28,793 16,255 12,861 7,977 28,723 12,106 542,394
93,143 14,625 - 3,047 4,452 17,346 6,175 138,788
7,736 1,198 - 2,520 1,136 4,713' 1,258 18,561
(66) (984) - - - - - - (1,050)
100,813 14,839 - 5,567 5,588 22,059 7,433 156,299
334,866 13,954 16,255 7,294 2,389 6,664 4,673 386,095
331,399 14,050 8,950 5,338 8,572 4,357 375,442
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14 Fixed Assets (continued)

Assets in the

Plant and

Total

Freehold Leasehold Fixtures,' Computers and AV
University .Land and Land and Cou_rse of Machinery Fittings and . software ) Equipment
. Building Buildi Constriction . Equipment
£000 £000 _ £000 £'000 £000 . £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost or valuation R . .
At 1 August 2022. 424,542 23,420 8,950 8,384 7,198 ) 25,845 . 10,531 508,870
Additions 2,238 405 16,941 4,476 747 2,805 © 1,570 29,182
Transfers . 8,965 666 (9,637) - 2 - 4 -
Disposal (66) (983) . - (@] - - - (1,050)
At 31 July 2023 435,679 23,508 - 16,254 - 12,859° 7,947 28,650 12,105 537,002
Consisting of: : ) )
_Land at valuation: . :
" AL31 July 2014 120,570 - - N - - . 120,570
“At31 July 2020 ’ 4,506 - . - - - - - 4,500
Assets at cost 310,609 23,508 16,254 12,859 ° 7,947 28,650 12,105 411,932
. 435,679 23,508 16,254 12,859 7,947 28,650 . 12,105 537,002
Depreciation : . . . C .
" At1 August 2022 93,143 12,781 - . 3,046' 4,442 17,293 6,176 136,881
Charge for the year 7,736 936 - 2,520 1,130 4,707 1,258 ’ 18,287
Disposal (66). (983) - (1) .- - - " (1,050)
At 31 July 2023 100,813 12,734 - ’ '5,565_ 5,572 22,000 7,434 154,118
Net book value . . .
At 31 July 2023 334,866 10,774 16,254 7,294 2,375 6,650 4,671 382,884
At 31 July 2022 331,399 10,639 8,950 B 5,338 2,756 ' 8,552 4,355 371,989
N
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15 Non-Current Investments

.. Other fixed
) Subsidiary Investment assets » )
" Consolidated . : Co companies . property investments ’ Total
‘ £000 - £000 - . £000 £'000
At 1 August 2022 : ; - 39,500 1,160 -~ 40,660
Additions . ‘ L 82 . 82
Revaluation - -7 . - .(2,582) : © 16 (2,566)
At 31 July 2023 . - ' - 37,000 1,176 . 38,176
" Univetsity A © £'000 : £000 £'000 £000
At 1 August 2022 D C 1 39,500 526 40,027
Additions - : . 82 - e
Revaluation , o (2,582) _ 28 (2,554)
At 31 July 2023 » - A 1 37,000 554 37,555

"Investment property includes one property held at fair value as at 31 JuIy 2023. The valuation was performéd by Cluttons at 31 July
2023 in accordance with appllcable professional standards.

Other non-current investments consist of: 5 Consolidated University
? ' ' : ' £000 - - £'000
Hypha Discovery Ltd e . . : K 382 382
CVCP Properties plc ' ‘ E ' 172 172
COIF Charity Investment Fund A . . ' : 622 -

' R : ' : : 1,176 554

The University and Group has a holding in CVCP Properties plc which represents an investment of 37, 111 fully paid Ordinary £1
shares. It is an unquoted company. This holdlng represents 0.8% of the issued share capital and represents a participating interest
with no significant influence exercised over the company. ’ . .

At 31 July 2023, the University and Groub own 2,235,803 Ordinary 0. 0001 _pence Shares in Hypha Discovery Ltd an unquoted '
company. This holding amounts to 18.7% of the issued share capital (2022:18.7% in the prior year) and represents a pammpatlng
interest with no significant influence exercised over the company.

An investment of £622k is held in the COIF Charity Investment Fund, which is managed by CCLA Ltd, a fund rn'anager authorised
and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. The total return for the fund for the 12 months ended 31st July 2023 was
negative 2%. o
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16

17

Trade'and other receivables

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade and sundry debtors
Finance lease receivable from subsidiary
Other amounts due from subsidiary corrip_anies
" Other debtors
- Prepayments and acqrued‘income

Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Finance lease receivable-from subsidiary

s

Investments

Short term deposits

Year ended 31 July 2023

Year ended 31 July 2022

Consolidated University Consolidated University
£'000. £'000 £'000 £'000
5,284 5,170 8,083 . . 7,834

- 337 So- 337

- 266 . - 48
1,551 1,257 - 1,620 . 1,537 .
12,777 12,841 11,386 - - 11,283
19,612 19,871 21,089 . 21,039
- 4 *2,900 - 3,096

- © 2,800 - . 3,09
22,771 21,089 24,135

19,612

Year»ended 31 July 2023

. Year ended 31 July 2022 -

‘Consolidated University Consolidated " . University

' £'000 £'000 £'000 - £'000
151,423 161,423 135,110 135,110 '
151,423 135,110 135,110

151,423 - -

Deposits are held with banks and b_uilding societies operating in the London market and licensed by the Financial Services
Authority. These short term deposits do not meet the definition of cash equivalent. The interest rate of these deposits are fixed for

the duration of the deposit and placement.

At 31 July 2023 the weighted average interest rate of these fixed rate deposits was 4.7% per annum and the rémaining weighted
average period for which the interest rate is fixed onthese deposits was 158 days. The fair value of these deposits was not

materially different from the book value.
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18 Creditors: amounts falling .due within one year

v

. Unsecured loans
Am'ourits owed to subsidiary undertakings
Trade payables
Social security and other taxation‘payable
Accruals and deferred income
‘Othier creditors ‘

Year ended 31 July 2023

Year ended 31 July 2022

-

159,873 -

62,514

" Consolidated Uni\;ersity Consolidated' - University
_£'000. £'000 . £'000 £'000
1,719 1,719 1,604 1,604
- 3,174 - 2,624
9,350 9,211 26,853 26,846
_352 . . 342 345 381
44,200 43,824 25,915 25,487
4,252 ° 4,244 - 1,521 1,297
56,238 58,239

Deferred income

Included with accruals and déferred income a're the following items of income which

performénce related conditions have been met.

" Grants - academic, research & other
Commiercial rent '
Accomodation charges

Academic.fees 7

Year ended 31 July 2023

have been deferred until specific -

Year ended 31 July 2022 -

Other income

Consolidated . University Consolidated University
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
3,749 3,749 1,286 1,286
233 233 323 323
1,038 . 1,038 155 155
21,064 + 21,064 6,863 6,863
368 360 365 365
26,452 - 26,444 8,992 -
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (continued)

Other creditors

Included with other creditors are the following short term components of the Office for- Students capital grant wh|ch have been

deferred under the accruals method of accounting.

Year ended 31 July 2023

Year ended 31 July 2022

Consolidated University Consolidated University

£000 £'000 ~ £'000 £'000

OfS capital grant , . . 1,350 - 1,350 »'1,30‘9 1,309
1,350 1,350 1,309 1,309

19 . Creditors : amounts falling due after more than one year

Year ended 31-July 2023

Year ended 31 July 2022

Consolidated University Consolidated‘ University
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Unsecured loans . : - 21,498 . 21,498 23,194 23,194 -
Deferred OfS capital grant ' : ' 21,703 21,703 22,284 22,284
’ 43,201 . 43,201 45,478 ' 45,478
Analysis of secured and unsecured loans: )
Due within one year or on demand (Note 18) ' 1,719 1,719 1,604 1,604
Due between one and two years 1,719 1,719 1>,719 1,719
Due between two and five years 9,347 9,347 5,158 5,158 |
Due in five years or more " 10,432 10,432',' 16,317 16,317
Total due after more than one year. ‘ ) 21,498 21,498 23,194 23,194
Total secured and unsecured loans 23,217 23,217 24,798 24,798
Analysis of total debt .
Unsecured loans, repayable by 2038 - . 23,217 23,217 . 24,798 - 24,798
23,217 23,217. 24,798 24,798
Included in loans are the following: . ) .
Lender ) . Amount Termination Interest rate Borrower
£'000 % .
Scottish Widows | 11,004 2038 5.28 University .
Lloyds Bank 12,213 2034 4.74 University
’ 23,217
Total . 23,217

There are two unsecured bank Ioans The first bank loan has a term of thirty years that commenced during the year ended 31 July
2008 with a fixed interest rate of 5.28% over the remaining life of the loan. The second is a £20m loan facility carried over a twenty

year term with a fixed interest rate of 4.74%.
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20.1  Pension asset .
-Defined benefit asset/liability

Consolidated and University B , ' . £000
Pension liabiility as at 1 August 2022 . ' . ' 64,014
Released o income o o . - © (81,09)
‘Pension asset as at 31 July 2023 - ‘ _ l . (17,082) -

) Note 27 includes detailed commentary on the defined benefit obligation.
20.2 Pension provisions '

Obligation to fund Pension " Total

deficit on USS enhancements on pensions

pension termination - provision.

. £'000 ~£'000 £000
Consolidated and University )

At 1 August 2022 ' . 4,986 1,178 6,16;1

Utilised in the year : - - (139) (139)

Released Unutilised : . - (661) | . (152) © T (813)

As at 31 July 2023 ' _ : : . 4,325 887 5212

USS deficit

The obligation to fund the past deficit on the Universities Superannuation Scheme (USS) arises from the contractual
. obligation with the pension scheme for total payments relalihg to benefits arising from past performance.
‘Management have assessed future employees within the USS scheme and salary payment over the period of the
contracted obligation in assessing the value of this provision. '

A new deficit recovery plan was put in place as part of the 2020 valuation, which requires payment of 6.2% of salaries

" over the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2024 at which point the rate will increase to 6.3%. The 2023 deficit recovery
liability reflects this plan (see note 27). As at 31 July 2023 the provision is £4.33 million, an increase of £0.66 million
from the the prior year end provision. S

Pension enhancement )

The assumptions for calculating the provision for'pension enhancemeht; on termination under lf'RS i_02, are as follows
Discount rate - 5.3% ' ' ’

Inflation - 29%

20.3 General Provisions

General provisions include provision for liabilities associated with rates re-evaluations.

Consolidated and University - . _ ‘ £'000

At 1 August 2022 : ) ) . - 1,289
Utilised in the year o ' ' : B - (290)
As at 31 July 2023 -~ o o ’ . ' 999
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21 Endowment Reserves

_ Consolidated -

Balances at 01 August
Capital
Accumutated income

Investment income

Expenditure '

(Decrease)/increase in market value of'in\_/estments
Transfer to unrestricted reserve

Total endowment comprehensive income/
(expenditure) for the year

At 31 July

Représenfed by:
Capital ‘
Accumulated income

Analysis by asset . .
Current and non-current asset investments
Cash & cash equivalents ’

77 .

Restricted )
permanent Expendable .
. endowments  endowments 31 July-2023 31 July 2022
Total Total
£000 £000 £'000 . £'000
859 296 1,155 1,162
4 169 173 196
863 465 1,328 1,358
21 13 34 5
(6) - (6) -
- (13) (13) FEEEN )
- - : (28)
- 15 - 15 (30)
878 465 1,343 1,328
859 283 1,142 1,155
19 - 182 201 173
878 465 1,343 1,328
622 1635
721 . 693
1,343 1,328
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21 Endowment Reserves (continued)

University

Balances at 01 August
Capital '
"Accumulated income

Investment income
Total endowment comprehensive income for the
year '

. A3 July

Represented by:
Capital
Accumulated income

Analysis by asset
Cash & cash equivalents

- 22 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash a_hd cash equivalents at 31 July 2023 comprised
Endowment cash
" Unrestricted cash

78

11,160

Restficted . )
permanent Expendable ,
endowments endowments 31 July 2023 31 July 2022
Total Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
85 150 235 235
4 115 119 115
89 265 . 354 . 350 -
5 13 18 4
5 13 18 "4
94 . 278 372 354
85 150 235 235
9 - 128 ° 137 119
94 278 372 354
372 354
. 372 . 354
Consolidated .
At 1st August Cash At 31st July
2022 _ Flows 2023
£'000 - £'000 £'000
6,381 4,779 11,160
6,381 " 4,779 11,160
£'OOQ
. . 721
A 10,439
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23

24

Capital commitments

v

Provision has not been made for the following capital commitments at 31 July 2023:

Commitments pontraéted for

Leéses
Total rentals payable under opératihg leases:

Consolidated and University

" Payable during the year .

Future minimum-lease payments due:
Not later than 1 year ,
Later than 1 year and not later than § years
Later than 5 years

Total lease payments due

Total rentals receivable under operating leases:

Consolidated and University

Receivable during the period ‘

Future minimum lease receipts due:

* Not later than 1 year
- Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

Total lease receipts due -

©31July 2023

31 July 2022 -

Consolidated University 'Corisolidéted . - University
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
12,304 12,304 7477 7177
12,304 12,304 7,177 7.177
. 31July 2023 - 31 July 2022
. Land and '
Buildings Total Total
£000 - £'000 £000
" 6,210 C 6,210 © 5,744
5,779 5,779 6,143
17,337. 17,337 17,358 -
80,726 80,726 92,762
103,842 103,842 116,263
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
Total Total
£'000 £000 -
1,832 1,881
1,640 " 1,560
4,834 4,890
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24 Leases (continued)

" 25

Total rentals receivable under finance leases:

The University has a finance lease arranged with UoW Regent Street Cinema Limited for 6inema equipment and leasehold
fixtures in which the University is the lessor. As of 31 July 2023, the total cost of cinema equipment and leasehold fixtures -

was £5,148k and present value of minimum lease payments receivable was £3‘,14_5k.

University .
31 July 2023 31 July 2022
£'000 . _ £'000
Receivable during the period 337 337
Future minimum lease receipts due: -
Not later than 1 year o337 337
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,347 1,347
Later than 5 years 1,956 2,293
Total lease receipts due : 3,640 3,977

Subsidiary undertakings

The subsidiary companies (all of which are registered in England & Wales), wholly-owned or effectively controlled by the

University are as follows:

Company 4 - Principal Activity

Uniwest (Finance) Ltd Igéue of.Promissory Loaﬁ note

Uniwest (Inygstments) Ltd ‘ Dormant

Uniwesf(ProApe‘rty) Ltd - Dormant

University of Wesfminster (Trading) Ltd Research & vac:ation Ietting of halls of residence |
- Westminnovation Ltd- "‘ E ' Dormant

UoW Regent Street Cinema Ltd Cinemé

Staﬁ:s

1 60% owned
100% owned
100% owned »
100%-owned
100%Aowr.1ed

100% owned -

The University has taken advantage of the exemption from disclosing transactions with related parties that are entities

within the group.
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26 Connécted cﬁaritable institutions .

A number of charitable institutions are administered by or on behalf of the: University and have been established for its general or
specific purposes. One of the connected institutions is the University of Westminster Prize and Scholarship Fund which is.
included as a subsidiary undertaking in these consolidated financial statements. The University of Westminster Prize and '
Scholarship Fund is a registered charity number 11010405. The activity of the fund is the advancement of education by the =
awarding of. prizes and scholarships tenable at the University of Westminster. The other charitable institutions. are not included in

the consolidation since the Upiversity does not have control over their activities.

The Students’ Union is a separate entity existing for the benefit of the students of the University of Westminster. It is not
-controlled by the University and has not been consolidated into the University Group financial statements. The sabbatical

President of the Students' Union was also a governor and trustee of the University during the 2023 financial year. The Students' '

Union is treated as a related party of the University.

The Students’ Union

Subvention payable to Studenté' Unjon )

Salaries reimbursed and invoiced by the University -

Other income receivable and invoiced by the University

Other eipendituré payable and invoiced by the Students’ Union
Amounts owed to the University, disclosed within debtors
Amounts payable to Students’ Union, disclosed within créditors
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2023
£'000
(1,678)
1,530
2

- (66)

129

(4)

" 2022
£000
(1,520)
1,211
o
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27 Pension Schemes

Different categories of staff were eligible to join one of three different schemes
* Universities’ Superannuation Scheme (USS) .

* Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)

* Teachers' F’ensnon Scheme

The two main schemes, being-USS and LGPS, are both defined-benefit schemes, the assets of which are held in
separate trustee administered funds.

Costs charged to Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expendlture

Year Ended Year Ended

31 July 2023 © 31 July 2022
' ) ] . ) . ] - £m £m
uss _ ) oo _ ‘ 066 . -
LGPS . o 1508 . 2485
6574 2485

(i) The Universities Superannua_tidn Scheme

- The University participates in Universities Superannuation Scheme. With effect from 1 October 2016, the scheme

. changed from a defined benefit only pension scheme to a hybrid pension scheme, providing defined benefits (for all
members), as well as defined contribution benefits. The assets of.the scheme are held in a separate trustee-
administered.fund. Because of the mutual nature of the scheme, the assets are not attributed to individual institutions
and a scheme-wide contribution rate is set. The University is therefore exposed to actuarial risks associated with other
institutions’ employées and is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities of the scheme.on a
consistent and reasonable basis. As required by Section 28 of FRS 102 “Employee benefits”, the University therefore
accounts for the scheme as if it were a wholly defined contribution scheme. As a result, the amount charged to the
profit and loss account represents the'contributions payable to the scheme. Since the University has entered into an,
agreement (the Recovery Plan) that determines how each employer within the scheme will fund the overall deficit, the
institution recognises a liability for the contributions payable that arise from the agreement (to the extent that they relate
to the deficit) and therefore an expense is recognised. .

Employers contributions paid and charged to the Statement of Comprehensnve Income and Expend|ture is £1,278k
(2022: £1,169k). . o

The latest available complete actuarial valuation of the Retirement Income Builder is as at 31 March 2020 (the valuation
o date),and was carried out using the projected unit method.

Since the University cannot identify its share of USS Retirement Income Builder assets and Ilabllmes the foIIowmg
disclesures reflect those relevant for those assets and liabilities as a whole.

" The 2020 valuation was the sixth valuation for the scheme under the scheme-specific funding regime introduced by the
Pensions Act 2004, which requires schemes to have sufficient and appropriate assets to cover their technical
provisions. At the valuation date, the value of the assets of the scheme was £66.5 billion and the value of the scheme’ S,
technical provisions was £80.6 billion indicating a shortfall of £14.1 billion and.a funding ratio of 83%.
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27 Pension Schemes (contmued)

The key financial assumptions used in the 2020 valuation are described below. More detailis are set out in the Statement of
Funding Pnncnples (uss.co.uk/about-us/valuation-and-funding(statement-of-funding-principles)

CPl adjustment . Term dependent rates in line with the difference between the
' Fixed Interest and Index Linked yield curves, less: 1.1% p.a to
2030, reducing by 0.1%.p.a to a long-term difference of 0.1%
p.a from 2040 )

Pension increases (subject to a floor of 0%) CPI assumption plus 0.05%

Discount rate (forward fate_s)' ' Fixed interest gilt yield curve plus:
! Pre-retirement: 2.75% p.a
. Post-retirement: 1.00% p.a

The main demographic assumption used relates to the mortality assumptions. Thése assumptions are based on analysis of the
- scheme's experience carried out as part of the 2020 actuarial valuation. The mortality assumptions used in these figures are as

follows:
| 2020 valuation -
Mortality base table ) ) . 101% of S2PMA "light" for males and 95% of S3PFA for
. females
Future improvements to mortality N CMI_2019 with a smodthing parameter of 7.5, én initial addition

of 0.5% and a long term improvement rate of 1.8% p.a for males’
and 1.6% p.a.for females

The current life expectancies on retirement at age 65 are:

2023 valuation 2022 valuation.
Males currently aged 65 (years) ‘ ’ 24.0 C 23.9
Females currently aged 65 (years) 256 255
Males currently aged 45 (years) ) 26.0 . 25.9
Females currently aged 45 (years) - : 27.4 o 273

A deficit recovery plan was put in place as part of the 2020 valuatlon which requires payment of 6.2% of salaries over the perlod 1
April 2022 to 31 March 2024 at which point the rate will increase to 6.3%. The 2023 deficit recovery liability reflects this plan. The
liability figures have been produced using the followmg assumptions:

2023 2022

Discount rate ' : S o 652% 3.4%

Pensionable salary growth - L ) n/a n/a
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27 Pension'Schemes (continued)

(i) Local Government Pension Scheme .

Thie LGPS is a defined benefit statutory scheme administered in accordance with the Local Government Pension
Scheme Regulations 2013 and currently provides benefits based on career average revalued earnings. The
admlmstermg authority for the Fund is the London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA).

LGPS is subJecﬁ'to a trennial valuation by mdependent actuaries. Th|s_scheme is for Pi‘oféssional Support Staff. -

The last formal triennial actuarial valuation of the scheme was performed as at 31 March 2022 by a professionally
qualified actuary. The next actuarial valuation of the Fund will be carried out as at 31 March 2025 and will set
contributions for the period from 1 April 2025 to 31 March 2028. There are no minimum- funding requirements in the
LGPS but the contributions are generally set to target a funding Ievel of 100% using the actuarial valuation assumptions.

During the accounting period, the Unlver5|ty paid contributions to the pen5|on scheme at the rate of 15.1% of
pensionable salaries plus a monetary amount of £1.5m as per the schedule of contributions. The rate ofemployee

contributions varies dependlng on salary bands.

Assumptions .

The financial 'assumptiAo_ns used to calculate scheme liabilities under FRS102 are:

Pension increases (CPl)
Rate of increase in salaries -
Discount rate

The key assumptions .used are set out below.

Post retirement mortality
Base table

Multiplier (M/F)

Future improVements model
Long-term rate of improvement
Smoothing parameter

Initial addition

2020 weight parameter

2021 weight parameter

2022 weight parameler

At 31 July 2023 At 31 JuI-y 2022

- %pa ‘ %pa
2.85% 2.75% .
3.85% - 3.75%

5.15% - 3.40%

At 31 July 2023

Club Vita tables
TR

CMI_2022

1.25% p.a.

7 o

0.0% p.a.

0%

0%

25%

At 31 July 2021
" %pa
2,80%
3.80%
1.60%

At 31 July 2022
Club Vita tables
P
CMI_2020
1.25% p.a.

7

0.5% p.a.

25%

n/a
n/a

The most S|gn|f'cant non-financial assumption is the assumed level of Iongevxty The table below shows the I|fe
expectancy assumptions used in the accounting assessments based on the life expectancy of male and female

members at 31 July 2023
Male

Non-pensioner
(currently aged 45)

Pensioner

At31July2022 2138

© At 31 July 2023 20.9

Female " Female
Non-pensioner

Pensioner (currently aged 45)
246 26.0 .

242 25.2
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27 Pension Schemes (continued)

Scheme assets and expected rate of return for LGPS -

- The expected return on assets has been derived as the weighted average of the expected returns from each
of the main asset classes (i.e: equities.and bonds). The .expected return for each asset class reflects a combination
of historical performance analysis, the forward looking views of the financial markets (as suggested by the yields
available) and the views of investment organisations.

The assets in the scheme were:
i ) Fair value as at R
31 July 2023 31 July 2022 31 July 2021

. E £m © fm £m
Equities ‘ ‘ 147.49 134.24 123.29
Target return portfolio.” . 4475 51.35 47.46

_ Infrastructure ’ : 31.36 - 24.89 19.26
Property : ‘ 23.75 23.23 : 18.33
Cash - A A - : "3.78 ‘ 2.84 11.37 .
Total ~ _ . 251.13 236.55 219.71

Year Enried Year Ended
31 July 2023 . 31 July 2022

£m £m
Analysrs of the amount shown in the balance sheet for LGPS i
Scheme assets ) 25113 236.55
Scheme liabilities . . : (231.90) (298.16)
 Present value of unfunded obligation : ' (2.15) (2.40)
Surplus/(deficit) in the scheme - net pension assetl(llabrllty) ) Ce - 17.08 (64.01)
recorded within pension provisions (Note 20.1)
Total service cost o ) ) . 12.88 . . 21.31
Administration expenses g . . o I 0.12 0.29
Total operatrng charge: - . 13.00 2160
Analysns of the amount charged to mterest payable/credited to other finance income for LGPS ‘
Interest cost : , _ : 10.16 © 679
Expected return on assets : - - (8.08) (3.54)
Net charge to interest and other flnance costs . 2.08 ° 3.25
Total profit and loss charge - ‘ 15.08 24.85
Analysis of other comprehensive income for LGPS . . .

"(Loss)/gain on assets’ ; o (1.02) 10.75
Experience (loss)/gain on defined benefit obligation _ . (17.90) (24.95)
Other actuarial gains/ {losses) on assets 5.16 : -
Change in demographic-assumptions . ’ X 13.11 -/
Change in financial assumptions for defined benefit obligation . ) 89.79 - 174.73
.Total other comprehensive income ' ' . ' 89.14 - 160.53
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27 Pension Schemes (continued)

At At

31 July 2023 . 31 July-2022
- £m £m
Analysis of movement in (surplus)/deficit for LGPS )
Deficit at beginning of year ’ .' : - 64.01 . . 206.64
Contributions paid by the University : g : . ‘ (7.03) . . (6.94)
Return on fund assets ) - ’ . ) (7.06) (14.30)
Current service cost . . o ' ‘ 11.88 . 2131
Past service costs including curtailments ) . ’ - 1.00 -
Interest cost ) o : . ' e 10.16 - : 6.79
Other administration expenses : ’ . ) - 012 . " 0.29
Experience loss / (gain) on defined benefit obllgatlon ) ) ’ 17.90 : 24.95
Changes in financial assumptions for defined benefit obligation ' (89.79) (174.73)
Other‘actuarial gains and losses . . - (5.16) : -
Change in demographic assumptions recognised in other comprehenswe income ' (13.11) .-
(Surplus)/Deficit at end of year : ) (17.08) ) . 64.01
S TN ‘ . . ’ Year to ) * Year to
- . : o . ) o . 31 July 2023 31 July 2022 -
' : S . - £m £m
Analysis-of movement in the present value of LGPS liabilities o - ’
Present value of LGPS liabilities at the start of the year ' B s 300.56 ° ’ 426.35.
Current service cost (net of member contributions) . . 11.88 . T 2131
Past service cost including curlallments : ’ . : R T 1.00. : . -
Interest cost . . -10.16 6.79
Change in financial assumptions . . ’ (89.79) (174.73)
Change in demographic assumptions : (13.11) -
Actual member contributions and other employer contributions . 2.73 . ‘246
" Experience loss / (gain) on defined benefit obligation . : 17.90 : 24 .95
Estimated benefits paid net of transferin : ) (6.93) 1(6.22)
Unfunded pension payments ' R - 4 (0.35) ’ (0.35) -
Present value of LGPS liabilities at the end of the year : 23405 .300.56
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27 Pension Schemes (continued)

Year to ) Yearto
31 July 2023 © 31 July2022
Analysis of movement in the fair value of scheme assets . .
Fair value of Scheme assets at the start of the year . . 236.55 - 219.71
Expected return on assets . S : : , 8.08 '3.54
Actuarial gain on assets ) C . (102 10.75
Other actuarial gains/(losses) ' : ' © 516 -
Administration expenses o : 0.12) 0.29)
Actual contributions paid by University . ) S ' . 7.03 6.94
Actual member contributions (including notional contributions) : . . 273 2.46
" Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of transfers in . 4 (7.28) . (6.56)
Fair value of scheme assets at the end of the year ' . ' 251.13 ' 236.55

LGPS assets do not include any of the Umversuty s own fnanmal |nstruments or any property occupled by the

University.
) Yeaf to Year to_ -
© 31 July 2023 31 July 2022
. " €m ) £m
Actual return on Scheme assets . . '
Expected return on Scheme assets ) ' o . 8.08 : 3.54

Asset loss/gain ) (1.02) = 1075

Estimated contributions for LGPS in the Financial Year 20232024 is £5.59m.
The Fund actuary updated the mortality assumption last year following general analysis of the polentlal COVID-19
impact on the Fund’s membership. Allowance was made for 25% of the 2020 mortality experience.

(nl)Teachers Pensmn Scheme (England and Wales) (TPS)

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016 and in accordance with the Public
Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 (as amended) (the directions'): The valuation
report was published by the Department for Education in March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and
subsequent.consultation are: . .

+ employer contribution rates set at 23 68% of pensionable pay |nclud|ng a 0.08% admmstratlon levy from 1 September
2019 .

- total scheme-liabilities for service to the effectuve date of £218. 1 billion, and notional assets of
£186.1 billion, giving a notional past service deficit of £22.0 billion; and

+ in line with a ministerial pronouncement in January 2019, the employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensmnable pay applied
to future valuations remains
Work on the next Scheme valuation based on data as at 31, March 2020 has commenced with any change to
.contributions taking effect in April 2024.
Itis not possn)le to identify the University’s share of the underlylng assets.and I|ab|lmes of the TPS. Therefore
contributions are accounted for as if the TPS were a defined contrubutlon scheme and pension costs are based on the
" amounts actually paid (i.e. cash amounts). In the year endmg 31 July 2023, contributions by the Group to the scheme
were £10 12 million (2022: £10. 20 million). .
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28

" 29

Contingent liability . '

In September 1994 the University entered into a guarantee and indemnity, in perpetuity, that provided additional
security for a £5m loan arrangement entered into by the Quintin Hogg Trust. The lender also had a charge over the
property-at 309 Regent Street however this was not released when the loan was repaid. The Quintin Hogg Trust owns

. 309 Regent Street and leases, on a long lease, the building back to the University. In 2018/19 the Quintin Hogg Trust

reqwred the charge over the building to be released to be in a position to complete on a related property transaction. In
order to do this the University was required to re-confirm the or|g|nal guarantee and indemnity that was provnded in
1994.and in doing so agreed a stop date to the guarantee of 31 March 2024.

The risk of any fi fnancnal |mpact asa result of this guarantee and mdemmty is unquantifiable and considered to be
remote. :

Reconciliation of Nét debt
Consolidated

31 July 2023
£'000
Net debt 1" August 2022 R o ) 18,417
Movement in cash and cash equwalents L 4,?79
Other non-cash changes v : o ©(11,139)
Net debt 31 July 2023 . - o . : 12,057
Change in net debt : v S . 6,360
' Analysis of net debt: ) A o 3 July 2023 © 31 July 2022.
i : £0000 . £'000
Cash and cash equivalents ) . ) . ’ : 11,_160 6,381
Borrowings: amounts falling due within one year . ' ' ’
Unsecured loans : ) . ) i (1,719) (1,604)
) - B . (1,719) - (1,604) ..
Borrowings: amounts falling due after more than one year .
Unsecured loans : ’ (21,498) (23,194)
’ : (21,498) (23,194)
Net debt ' B S ' (12,057) (18,417)

30

Events after the reporting period

There are no events arising after the year end that require reporting in the financial statements.
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31 US Department of Educaﬁon Financial Responsibility Supplemental Schedule '

In satisfaction of its obligations to facilitate students’ access to US federal financial aid, the university is
.required, by the US Department. of Educatlon to present the following Supplemental Schedule in a prescribed

* format.
The ‘amounts. presented WIthln the schedules have been: .
" prepared under the hlstorlcal cost conventlon subject to the revaluatlon of certain fixed assets;

prepared using United-Kingdom generally accepted accounting practice, in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) and the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting for Further

and ngher Education (2019 edition);

presented in pounds sterling.
The schedules set out how each amount disclosed has been extracted from the financial statements. As set out
above, the accounting policies used in determining the amounts disclosed are not intended to and do not-
comply with the requirements of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. -
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31 US Department of Education Financial Responsibility Suppleniental Schedule

[Supplementary schedule - Sterling £ - |
Year ended 31 July 2023 Year ended 31 July 2022
Page |Lines Expendable Net Assets £'000 £'000 £'000  £'000
54 24 -| Statement of Financial Net assets without 512,920 404,171
Position - Net assets without [donor restrictions '
donor restrictions .
54 30 Statement of Financial Net assets with donor 1,343 1,328
Position - Net assets with restrictions
donor restrictions
4 Statement of Financial Secured and Unsecured - -
Position - Related party related party receivable
receivable and Related party
note disclosure
4 Statement of Financial Unsecured related party - -
Position - Related party receivable
receivable and Related party ’
note disclosure
54 8 Statement of Financial Property, plant and 386,095 375,442
Position - Property, Plant equipment, net (includes )
and equipment, net Construction in progress)
70 FS Note | Note of the Financial Property, plant and 340,626 336,194
line 8A Statements - Statement of |equipment - pre-
Financial Position - Property, |implementation
plant and equipment - pre- '
implementation
FS Note Note of the Financial Property, plant and - -
line 88 Statements - Statement of equibment - post-
Financial Position - Property, [implementation with’
plant and equipment - post- |outstanding debt for
implementation with original purchase
outstanding debt for original :
purchase
70 FS Note Note of the Financial Property, plant and 29,214 30,278
line 8D Statements - Statement of  |equipment - post- :
Financial Position - Property, limplementation without
plant and equipment - post- |outstanding debt for
“[implementation without original purchase
outstanding debt for original )
purchase
|70 FS Note Note of the Financial Construction in progress 16,255 8,950
’ line 8C Statements - Statement of
- Financial Position -
Construction in progress
9 Statement of Financial Lease right-of-use asset, - -
Position - Lease right-of-use |net
assets, net
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31

US Department of Education Financial Responsibility Supplementat Schedule

Year ended 31 July 2023

Year ended 31 July 2022

_|Page

Lines Expendable Net Assets £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Excluded | Note of the Financial Lease right-of-use asset - - o '
Line 9 Statements - Statement of pre-implementation
Note Financial Position - Lease
Leases right-of-use asset pre- s
implementation : . X
M9 Note | Note of the Financial Lease right-of-use asset - -
Leases Statements - Statement of postiimp!ementation
Financial Position - Lease ' !
right-of-use asset post-
implementation
110 Statement of Financia! Intangible assets - -
. |Position - Goodwill .
i0 Statement of Financial Intangible assets - - -
Position -Other intangible .
assets '
76 . |17 Statement of Financial Post-employment and (5,212) 70,178
(note . Position - Post-employment |pension liabilities ‘
20.2) and pension liabilities (Note ’
20- Provisions for laibilities)
75 ° }14,20,22 | Statement of Financial Long-term debt - for 23,217 24,798
{note Position - Note Payable and I‘ong'term purposes '
19) Line of Credit for long-term (securéd and unsecured
. purposes (both current and -|loans)
long term) and Line of Credit
for Construction in process
M24,20,2 | Statement of Financial Long-term debt - for - - - -
2,Note |Position - Note Payable and |long term purposes pre-
Debt A Line of Credit for long-term |[implementation
purposes (both current-and
‘ long term) and Line of Credit
" |for Construction in process
M24,20,2 | Statement of Financial Long-term debt - for - - -
2, Note - |Position - Note Payable and |long term purposes post-
Debt B Line of Credit for long-term |implementation -
“|purposes (both current and . )
long term) and Line of Credit |-
for Construction in process
M24,20,2 | Statement of Financial Line of Credit for - -
2, Note  |Position - Note Payable and Construction in process
Line of Credit for long-term | ' : :

* |DebtC

purposes (both current and
long term) and Line of Credit
for Construction in process -
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31 US Department of Education Financial Responsibility Supplemental Schedule

92

. Year ended 31 July 2023 Year ended 31 July 2022
Page |Lines Expendable Net Assets £'000 £'000 " £'000 £'000
) 21 Statement of Financial Lease right-of-use asset - -
Position - Lease right-of-use |{liability
asset liability
Line 21 Statement of Financial Pre-implementation - -
Note Position - Lease right-of-use |right-of-use leases
Treases. |asset liability pre-
implementation g
Line 21 | Statement of Financial Post-implementation - -
Note- Position - Lease right:of-use |right-of-use leases- -
Leases asset liability post- '
implementation
25 Statement of Financial Annuities with donor - -
Position - Annuities restrictions B
77 26 -| Statement of Financial Term endowments with 465 465
{note Position --Term endowments|donor restrictions
21) ) : ‘
27 Statement of Financial - | Life income funds with- - -
Position - Life Income Funds |donor restrictions .
77 29 Statement of Financial Net assets with donor 878 863
{note |Position - Perpetual Funds  |restrictions: restricted in ’
21) ' . perpetuity
Total Expenses and Losses
52|43 Statement of Activites - Total expenses without 238,205 225,576
Total Operating Expenses donor restrictions -
(Total-from Statement of  |taken directly from
Activities prior to . |Statement of Activities
adjustments) : -
) <
(
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. 31 US Department of Education Financial Responsibility Supplemental Schedule

Year ended 31 July 2023

Year ended 31 July 2022

Page

Lines

Total Expenses and Losses

£'000]. £'000

“£'000 £'000

52

(35),45,46
,47,48,49

Statement of Activites - Non-
Operating {(Investment
return appropriated for_
spending), Investments, net
of annual spending gain
(loss), Other components of
net periodic pension costs;

. Pension-related chafiges

other than net périodic
pension, changes other than
net periodic pension,
Change in value of $plit-
interest agreements and
Other gains (loss) - (Total
from Statement of Activities
prior to adjustments) )

Non-Operating and Net
Investment (loss)

86,575|

162,086

52

(35),45

Statement of Activites -
{Investment return )
appropriated for spending)
and Investments, net of
annual spending, gain {loss)

Net investment
gain/(losses)

'(2,566)

1,558

52

47

Statement of Activities - |

" [Pension related changes -

other than periodic pension

Pension-related changes
other than net periodic
costs

89,141

160,528

Modified Net Assets

54

24

Statement of Financial
Position - Net assets without
donor restrictions

Net assets without
donor restrictions

512,920

404,171

54

30 -

Statement of Financial
Position - total Net assets
with donor restrictions

Net assets with donor
restrictions

1,343

1,328

10

Statement of Financial
Position - Goodwill

J.Intangible assets

Statement of Financial
Position - Related party’

|receivable and Related party

note disclosure

Secured and Unsecured
related party receivable

Statement of Financial
Position - Related party
receivable and Related party
note disclosure . )

Unsecured related part:
receivable :

54

12

Statement of Financial

Total Assets

.623,548

578,682

Position - Total Assets
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31 US Department of Education Financial Responsfbilit'y Supplemental Schedule

. Year ended 31 July 2023 Year ended 31 July 2022
Page |Lines Total Expenses and Losses - |£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Excluded | Note of the Financial . -| Lease right-of-use asset S - -
Line9. * |Statements - Statement of pre-impiemen\tation .
Note Financial Position - Lease :
Leases right-of-use asset pre-
. implementation
Excluded | Statement of Financial Pre-implementation - -
“|Line 21 Position - Lease right—of—ﬁse right-of-use leases
Note asset liability pre- :
Leases implementation
10 Statement of Financial® Intangible assets - -
Position - Goodwill
4. _| Statement of Financial Secured and Unsecured - -
Position - Related party related party receivable
receivable and Related party’ :
. note disclosure
4 Statement of Financial Unsecured related party - -
Position - Related party receivable
receivable and Related party
note disclosure
Net Income Ratio . .
52|55 Statement of Activities- ] Change in Net Assets 108,764 179,523
' ‘ Change in Net Assets Without Donor ’
Without Donor Restrictions |Restrictions
52|38, (35), | Statement of Activities - Total Revenue and 260,919 242,01}3
" |50 ‘|(Net assets released from Gains ’ ’ ’
.[restriction), Total Operating ’
1Revenue and Other
Additions and Sale of Fixed
\ssets. eains {lgsses) )
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